UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

SCHEDULE 14A

Proxy Statement Pursuant to Section 14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (Amendment No.)

Filed by the Registrant

 $\hfill\square$ Filed by a Party other than the Registrant

Check th	Check the appropriate box:					
	Preliminary Proxy Statement					
	CONFIDENTIAL, FOR USE OF THE COMMISSION ONLY (AS PERMITTED BY RULE 14a-6(e)(2))					
5	Definitive Proxy Statement					
	Definitive Additional Materials					
	Soliciting Material Pursuant to §.240.14a-12					



(Name of Registrant as Specified In Its Charter) (Name of Person(s) Filing Proxy Statement, if other than the Registrant)

Paymen	t of Filing Fee (Check the appropriate box):						
~	No fee required.						
	Fee computed on table below per Exchange Act Rules 14a-6(i)(1) and 0-11.						
	(1) Title of each class of securities to which transaction applies:						
	(2) Aggregate number of securities to which transaction applies:						
	(3) Per unit price or other underlying value of transaction computed pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 0-11 (set forth the amount on which the filing fee is calculated and state how it was determined):						
	(4) Proposed maximum aggregate value of transaction:						
	(5) Total fee paid:						
	Fee paid previously with preliminary materials.						
	Check box if any part of the fee is offset as provided by Exchange Act Rule 0-11(a)(2) and identify the filing for which the offsetting fee was paid previously. Identify the previous filing by registration statement number, or the Form or Schedule and the date of its filing.						
	(1) Amount Previously Paid:						
	(2) Form, Schedule or Registration Statement No.:						
	(3) Filing Party:						
	(4) Date Filed:						



2016 Proxy Statement

Notice of Annual Meeting of Shareowners



TASTE THE FEELING[™] Learn more at coca-colacompany.com

Annual Meeting Wednesday, April 27, 2016

8:45 a.m., local time World of Coca-Cola Atlanta, Georgia

Coca-Cola Shareowner Day

Wednesday, April 27, 2016

11:00 a.m. – 3:00 p.m., local time World of Coca-Cola Atlanta, Georgia

TABLE OF CONTENTS

LETTER TO SHAREOWNERS FROM OUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS	<u>2</u>
Q&A WITH OUR CHAIRMAN AND CEO	<u>4</u>
NOTICE OF 2016 ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREOWNERS	<u>6</u>
PROXY SUMMARY	<u>7</u>
Roadmap of Voting Matters	
Corporate Governance Highlights Director Nominees	7 7 8 9 9 10 10 13 13
2015 Compensation	9
Compensation Program Enhancements Annual and Long-Term Incentive Pay in 2015	<u>9</u> 10
Pay-for-Performance Analysis	$\frac{10}{12}$
Questions and Answers Learn More About Our Company	<u>13</u> <u>13</u>
PROXY STATEMENT	<u>14</u>
GOVERNANCE	<u>15</u>
Item 1 - Election of Directors Board and Committee Governance	<u>15</u> <u>28</u> <u>34</u> <u>36</u> <u>38</u>
Additional Governance Features Director Compensation	<u>34</u> 36
Director Independence and Related Person Transactions	<u>38</u>
SHARE OWNERSHIP	<u>43</u>
Ownership of Equity Securities of the Company Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance	<u>43</u> <u>45</u>
COMPENSATION	<u>46</u>
Item 2 - Advisory Vote to Approve Executive Compensation Compensation Discussion and Analysis	<u>46</u> 47
Report of the Compensation Committee	62
Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation Compensation Tables	<u>62</u> 63
Payments on Termination or Change in Control	73
Summary of Plans Equity Compensation Plan Information	46 47 62 63 73 77 80
Item 3 - Approval of the Material Terms of the Performance Incentive Plan of The Coca-Cola Company to Permit the Tax Deductibility of	
Certain Awards	<u>81</u>
AUDIT MATTERS	<u>84</u>
Report of the Audit Committee Item 4 - Ratification of the Appointment of Ernst & Young LLP as Independent Auditors	<u>84</u> <u>86</u>
	_
SHAREOWNER PROPOSALS	89
Item 5 - Shareowner Proposal Regarding Holy Land Principles	<u>89</u> 90
Item 6 - Shareowner Proposal Regarding Restricted Stock Item 7 - Shareowner Proposal Regarding Alignment Between Corporate Values and Political and Policy Activity	<u>90</u> <u>92</u>
QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS Proxy Materials and Voting Information	<u>94</u>
Meeting Information	<u>94</u> <u>98</u>
Company Documents, Communications, Shareowner Proposals and Director Nominees	<u>100</u>
IMPORTANT REGISTRATION INFORMATION FOR COCA-COLA SHAREOWNER DAY	<u>101</u>
ANNEX A	<u>102</u>
Reconciliation of GAAP and Non-GAAP Financial Measures	<u>102</u>
2016 Proxy Statement	any 0



LETTER TO SHAREOWNERS FROM OUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS

"A priority for the Board is listening to the views of our shareowners and considering them as we make decisions in the boardroom."

Dear Fellow Shareowner:

First, we want to thank you for your investment in The Coca-Cola Company and for trusting us to represent you and oversee your interests.

Our Board operates under the premise that we are elected by you, the shareowners, to oversee the long-term health and overall success of our Company. We are the ultimate decision-making body of the Company, except for those matters reserved to or shared with shareowners, and we play a critical role in strategic planning. We select and oversee members of senior management, who are charged by the Board with conducting the business of the Company.

We oversee a very capable management team that is optimistic about the future of this business. Beginning in 2014, they took thoughtful steps to reorganize and refocus the business to capture the growth opportunities that remain ahead of us. Management and your Board remain passionate in our belief about the future.

This past year was an important year. It was a transition year where strategic actions were taken with a goal of restoring momentum and growth to this business. We believe the Company made significant progress and remains committed to continue delivering long-term value for our shareowners going forward.

A priority for the Board is listening to the views of our shareowners and considering them as we make decisions in the boardroom. We accomplish this through robust outreach and engagement with you, the owners of this business. Partnering with management, we engage with shareowners throughout the year on a variety of topics. Based on this engagement, we have routinely made enhancements to the Company's governance and compensation programs.

Proxy Access

One recent enhancement is our adoption of "proxy access", which allows eligible shareowners to have their own director nominees named in the Company's proxy materials, along with the candidates nominated by the Company's Board of Directors.

The Board adopted the proxy access bylaw following several months of thoughtful discussions with shareowners. We learned there was broad agreement among our shareowners about the desire for proxy access and that many of our shareowners consider proxy access to be a fundamental right.

Board Refreshment

We also hear from our shareowners about the need to ensure that the Directors they elect to represent their interests are, indeed, the right people to be making decisions on their behalf. The issue of Board refreshment is an important area of focus for shareowners.



We believe that new perspectives and new ideas are critical to a forward-looking and strategic Board. At the same time, it is equally important to benefit from the valuable experience and familiarity that longer-serving Directors bring to the boardroom.

Ensuring diverse perspectives, including a mix of skills, experience and backgrounds, is key to effectively representing the long-term interests of shareowners. Doing so is a top priority of the Board. In just the last few years, eight new Directors have been elected, and average tenure for our Directors is now 9.4 years and our Board's gender diversity is 27% women. These benchmarks are just a snapshot in time but we believe they signal our commitment to Board refreshment.

Our shareowners are telling us that effective Board evaluations are an important part of this equation. We take the Board evaluation process seriously, and it has become an increasing focus for our Board (see page 17).

We remain committed to ensuring your Board is composed of a highly capable and diverse group of Directors well-equipped to oversee the success of the business and effectively represent the interests of shareowners.

Compensation

Our shareowners continue to tell us that a fundamental principle underlying any compensation program is that it should pay for performance. We agree. Meaningful dialogue with our shareowners continues to contribute to our decisions on compensation. We have made a number of enhancements to further link the Company's compensation programs with the Company's business and talent strategies and the long-term interests of our shareowners (see page 47).

Board Accountability

As we conduct the activities of this Board, we consider accountability to you, our shareowners, as not only a mark of good governance, but a key to the long-term success of our Company. We remain accountable to shareowners through a variety of governance practices, including:

- Annual election of Directors.
- A majority vote bylaw in uncontested Director elections.
- A Lead Independent Director.
- A robust Director nomination and Board evaluation process.
- A proxy access bylaw.
- The right of shareowners to call a special meeting.
- An annual advisory vote on executive compensation.
- Year round, proactive shareowner engagement.

Communicating with the Board

Finally, we value your input and encourage you to share your thoughts or concerns with us on any topic. We have established a process to facilitate communication by shareowners with Directors. Communications can be addressed to the Board of Directors in care of the Office of the Secretary, The Coca-Cola Company, P.O. Box 1734, Atlanta, Georgia 30301 or by e-mail to asktheboard@coca-cola.com.

As always, thank you for the trust that you have placed in us.

March 10, 2016

Muhtar Kent







Kotick

a

Ana

Botín

111 Maria Elena Lagomasino

Sam Nunn

26. Buffett

Howard G

Buffett

Richard M

Daley

David B Weinberg

2016 Proxy Statement

The CCCCola Company ³

Barry

Diller

Helene D. Dayle

Helene D. Gayle

Evan G Greenbera



Q&A WITH OUR CHAIRMAN AND CEO

"Throughout the year, we engage with shareowners on a variety of topics. Here, I address guestions and comments that are commonly raised."



Muhtar Kent

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer The Coca-Cola Company March 10, 2016

How would you rate The Coca-Cola Company's performance in 2015?

We said from the start that 2015 would be a year of transition for the Company, as we worked to advance the five key actions we outlined in late 2014 to reinvigorate growth and increase profitability.

We said we would drive revenue and profit growth with clear and distinct portfolio roles for our markets. I'm pleased to report the Company delivered on its plan in 2015 despite an increasingly challenging global macroeconomic environment. We gained global value share while increasing organic revenue 4%. Global price/mix-which measures our variety of package sizes, prices and brands-rose 2% as did our total unit case volume, with our sparkling portfolio up 1% and our stills portfolio up 5%. And our profit, as measured by comparable currency neutral profit before tax (structurally adjusted), increased 6%.

At the same time, we became more efficient and more productive, reducing costs and reinvesting the savings back in our brands and business. We made disciplined investments in our brands and other growth opportunities, including investing in more and better marketing. Importantly, we took steps to refocus on our core business model while strengthening our bottling system around the world. And we recently announced plans to further accelerate our refranchising efforts in North America and the entry into a non-binding letter of intent to refranchise our bottling operations in China.

Looking forward to 2016, we recognize we still have work to do, but we have a clear plan in place to continue to transform the Company and remain committed to delivering long-term, sustainable value to our system and shareowners.

Can you tell us more about the new Coca-Cola global campaign, "Taste the Feeling," and the "one brand" strategy?

I am very excited about our new marketing campaign and strategy, introduced in January of this year. We have launched a "one brand" global marketing strategy that, for the first time ever, unites Coca-Cola, Diet Coke/Coca-Cola Light, Coca-Cola Zero and Coca-Cola Life under the iconic Coca-Cola brand positioning in one global creative campaign, "Taste the Feeling." The "one brand" strategy extends the global equity and iconic appeal of original Coca-Cola across all trademark Coca-Cola brands, uniting the Coca-Cola family under the world's number one beverage brand, while still retaining the core values of Coca-Cola—refreshing, uplifting and great tasting. The campaign brings to life the idea that drinking a Coca-Cola—any Coca-Cola—is a simple pleasure that makes everyday moments more special. "Taste the Feeling" also features universal storytelling with the product at the heart to reflect both the functional and emotional aspects of the Coca-Cola experience.

The strategy underscores the Company's commitment to choice, offering consumers whichever Coca-Cola suits their taste, lifestyle and diet-with or without calories, with or without caffeine. We are activating in all of our 200 plus markets and have created television commercials, campaign images, a new visual identity system, a new music anthem and audio signature and an interactive digital experience. All Coca-Cola variants will now share the same values and visual iconography. Even though consumers want Coca-Cola in different ways, consumers always receive a Coca-Cola product with great taste and refreshment.



Last year, James Quincey was appointed President and Chief Operating Officer. What prompted the Company to appoint a COO? Why now?

James' appointment was a logical step to enable us to accelerate execution of our strategic priorities. As our business is evolving and we accelerate our momentum, we believed it was the right time to appoint a President and Chief Operating Officer with a dedicated focus on operations. We feel good about making this change from a position of strength and I look forward to working with James as we continue to take this business forward.

You serve as both Chairman of the Board and CEO of the Company. Is this an appropriate leadership structure given some investor concerns around the issue?

Our Board understands this is a focus for some shareowners and that there is a preference among some for the roles of Chairman and CEO to be split. Many others, however, believe that the Board should have the discretion to choose the appropriate leadership structure based on the circumstances and needs of the business.

We believe that the Company's existing Board leadership structure provides independent oversight. We have a Lead Independent Director, Sam Nunn, along with very active and strong non-employee Directors. In addition, key Board committees are led by independent Directors. This structure, which is described further beginning on page 28, remains effective and continues to serve the business and shareowners well. We have a high-quality group of Directors, and all of them play an active role in overseeing the Company's business. Importantly, the Board has the discretion to change this leadership structure if it believes something different would better serve shareowners.

The Company adopted a proxy access bylaw last year. What was the reasoning behind this?

We have a robust shareowner engagement program, and we spend a significant amount of time talking with our shareowners. As with many things, our shareowners' perspectives on this issue helped determine our approach. We know that many shareowners view proxy access as a fundamental right. For several months last year, we took a very measured and thoughtful approach in developing a proxy access bylaw. During that time, we engaged with shareowners to ensure we understood their views on proxy access. The proxy access bylaw we adopted was guided by that shareowner input. We believe it is the right one for our Company. See page 18.

You have commented recently about the importance of gender diversity on boards. Will our Board continue to increase the level of gender diversity as it has done over the last few years?

This is a priority of mine. I do think there is some momentum toward greater gender diversity in the boardroom. Clearly we need to increase gender diversity on boards of public companies at a more rapid pace. Gender diversity is a proven value. There is a customer imperative for gender diversity, and having gender diversity improves the quality of boardroom dialogue and decision making. Today, there are four tremendously talented women on our Board and two of them chair key Board committees.

Ultimately, I believe all aspects of board diversity are meaningful pursuits for boards. As your Board Chairman, I assure you that we will continue to evaluate potential Board candidates based on a range of parameters and select new members who are the best qualified for the position.

What is Coca-Cola Shareowner Day?

We are excited to introduce a new event this year, Coca-Cola Shareowner Day, which will be held following the 2016 Annual Meeting at World of Coca-Cola from 11:00 a.m. – 3:00 p.m., local time, on April 27th. Coca-Cola Shareowner Day is an opportunity to thank our shareowners in a special way that World of Coca-Cola allows us to do. Coca-Cola Shareowner Day will provide free admission to World of Coca-Cola to shareowners and one guest per shareowner.

At World of Coca-Cola, shareowners will experience the fascinating story of the world's best-known beverage brand in a dynamic, multimedia attraction. Shareowners can spend time with the Coca-Cola Polar Bear, visit the vault holding the legendary formula for Coca-Cola, treat their taste buds to a trip around the world with more than 100 different beverages and get a behind-the-scenes look at the Coca-Cola bottling process. Shareowners will also have the chance to learn more about our new global marketing campaign, "Taste the Feeling."

I hope you will participate in Coca-Cola Shareowner Day. Please note you do not have to attend the 2016 Annual Meeting to attend Coca-Cola Shareowner Day. However, you must book tickets in advance to attend Coca-Cola Shareowner Day. Space is limited, so please see "Important Registration Information for Coca-Cola Shareowner Day" on page 101 for details about how to attend.



NOTICE OF 2016 **ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREOWNERS**

When: Wednesday, April 27, 2016, 8:45 a.m., local time Where: World of Coca-Cola, 121 Baker Street NW, Atlanta, Georgia 30313

We are pleased to invite you to join our Board of Directors and senior leadership at The Coca-Cola Company's 2016 Annual Meeting of Shareowners.

Items of Rusiness

- To elect the 15 Director nominees identified in the accompanying proxy 1. statement to serve until the 2017 Annual Meeting of Shareowners. (Item 1)
- 2. To hold an advisory vote to approve executive compensation. (Item 2)
- To approve the material terms of the Performance Incentive Plan of The 3 Coca-Cola Company to permit the tax deductibility of certain awards. (Item 3)
- To ratify the appointment of Ernst & Young LLP as Independent Auditors of the Company to serve for the 2016 fiscal year. (Item 4)
- 5 To vote on three shareowner proposals described in the proxy statement if properly presented at the meeting. (Items 5-7)
- 6 To transact such other business as may properly come before the meeting and at any adjournments or postponements of the meeting.

Record Date:

The Board of Directors set February 29, 2016 as the record date for the meeting. This means that our shareowners as of the close of business on that date are entitled to receive this notice of the meeting and vote at the meeting and any adjournments or postponements of the meeting. On the record date, there were 4.328.749.732 shares of common stock of The Coca-Cola Company (the "Company") issued and outstanding and entitled to vote at the meeting.

Important Changes to this Year's Meeting:

If you plan to attend the meeting in person, see Question 21 on page 98 for more information about the new location, format and how to attend the meeting. We are also excited to announce a new event - Coca-Cola Shareowner Day - to be held following the meeting. Please see "Important Registration Information for Coca-Cola Shareowner Day" on page 101.

Webcast of the 2016 Annual Meeting:

If you are unable to attend the meeting in person, you can listen to a live webcast of the meeting by visiting the 2016 Annual Meeting page of the Company's website, at www.cocacolacompany.com/investors/annual-meeting-of-shareowners. On the website, you can also vote through the Internet, access the proxy materials, submit questions in advance of the 2016 Annual Meeting and learn more about our Company.

March 10. 2016

By Order of the Board of Directors Gloria K. Bowden Associate General Counsel and Secretary

Voting Information

It is very important that you vote in order to play a part in the future of the Company. Please carefully review the proxy materials for the 2016 Annual Meeting of Shareowners and follow the instructions below to cast your vote on all of the voting matters.

.....

How to Vote: Even if you plan to attend the meeting in person, please vote right away using one of the following advance voting methods. Make sure to have your proxy card or voting instruction form (VIF) in hand and follow the instructions.

SHAREOWNERS OF RECORD **BENEFICIAL OWNERS** (shares registered on the books of the Company via Computershare) Via the Internet Visit Visit www.envisionreports.com/coca-cola



Scan this QR code to vote with your mobile device



By phone Call 1-800-652-VOTE or the telephone number on your proxy card



Sign, date and return your proxy card

(shares held through your bank or brokerage account)



Via the Internet www.proxyvote.com



Scan this QR code to vote with your mobile device



By phone Call 1-800-454-8683 or the telephone number on your voting instruction form



By mail Sign, date and return your voting instruction form

All shareowners of record may vote in person at the meeting. Beneficial owners may vote in person at the meeting if they have a legal proxy, as described in the response to guestion 8 on page 96.



Electronic Shareowner Document Delivery

Instead of receiving future proxy materials by mail, shareowners of record and most beneficial owners can elect to receive an e-mail that will provide electronic links to these documents. Opting to receive your proxy materials online will save us the cost of producing and mailing documents and also will give you an electronic link to the proxy voting site. In addition, the Company has a tree planted on behalf of each shareowner that signs up for electronic delivery. Since we began offering electronic delivery in 2005, approximately 372,000 trees have been planted on behalf of Company shareowners.

2016 Proxy Statement

PROXY SUMMARY

This summary highlights information contained elsewhere in the proxy statement. This summary does not contain all of the information that you should consider, and you should read the entire proxy statement before voting. For more complete information regarding the Company's 2015 performance, please review the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015.

ROADMAP OF VOTING MATTERS

Shareowners are being asked to vote on the following matters at the 2016 Annual Meeting of Shareowners:

	Our Board's Recommendation
ITEM 1. Election of Directors (page 15)	
The Board and the Committee on Directors and Corporate Governance believe that the 15 Director nominees possess the	FOR each
necessary qualifications, attributes, skills and experiences to provide quality advice and counsel to the Company's management	Director Nominee
and effectively oversee the business and the long-term interests of shareowners.	
ITEM 2. Advisory Vote to Approve Executive Compensation (page 46)	
The Company seeks a non-binding advisory vote to approve the compensation of its Named Executive Officers as described in	FOR
the Compensation Discussion and Analysis section beginning on page 47 and the Compensation Tables section beginning on	
page 63. The Board values shareowners' opinions, and the Compensation Committee will take into accountthe outcome of the	
advisory vote when considering future executive compensation decisions.	
ITEM 3. Approve the Material Terms of the Performance Incentive Plan of The Coca-Cola Company to Permit the Tax	
Deductibility of Certain Awards (page 81)	
To comply with the shareowner approval requirements under Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended	FOR
(the "Tax Code"), shareowners are asked to approve the material terms of the Performance Incentive Plan of The Coca-Cola	
Company.	
ITEM 4. Ratification of the Appointment of Ernst & Young LLP as Independent Auditors (page 86)	FOR
The Audit Committee and the Board believe that the retention of Ernst & Young LLP to serve as the Independent Auditors for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2016 is in the best interests of the Company and its shareowners. As a matter of good	FUR
corporate governance, shareowners are being asked to ratify the Audit Committee's selection of the Independent Auditors.	
ITEMS 5 – 7. Shareowner Proposals, if properly presented (page 89)	
Holy Land Principles (Item 5)	AGAINST
Restricted stock (Item 6)	AGAINST
Alignment between corporate values and political and policy activity (Item 7)	AGAINST
	AGAINOT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE HIGHLIGHTS

We are committed to good corporate governance, which promotes the long-term interests of shareowners, strengthens Board and management accountability and helps build public trust in the Company. The Governance section beginning on page 15 describes our governance framework, which includes the following highlights:

- 15 Director nominees
- 13 independent Director nominees
- Commitment to Board refreshment
- Robust Director nominee selection process
- Adopted a proxy access right
- Annual election of Directors
- Majority voting for Directors
- Regular Board, committee and Director evaluations
- Lead Independent Director

- Independent Audit, Compensation and Directors/Governance Committees
- Regular executive sessions of independent Directors
- Risk oversight by full Board and committees
- Long-standing active shareowner engagement
- Transparent public policy engagement
- Long-standing commitment toward sustainability
- Shareowner right to call special meeting
- Anti-hedging, anti-short sale and anti-pledging policies



DIRECTOR NOMINEES

					(Committ	ee Mer	nbers	hips ¹		
		Director									Other
Name	Age	Since	Primary Occupation	Α	С	DCG	E	F	MD	PIDR	Boards ²
Herbert A. Allen	76	1982	President, Chief Executive Officer and Director, Allen & Company Incorporated				~	~	Ě.		0
Ronald W. Allen*	74	1991	Former Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer, Aaron's Inc.	~	~						2
Marc Bolland*	56	2015	Chief Executive Officer, Marks & Spencer Group p.l.c.	~							1 ³
Ana Botín*	55	2013	Executive Chair, Banco Santander, S.A.			~					2
Howard G. Buffett*	61	2010	President, Buffett Farms; Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, Howard G. Buffett Foundation							~	1
Richard M. Daley*	73	2011	Executive Chairman, Tur Partners LLC; Of Counsel, Katten Muchin Rosenman LLP			~					1
Barry Diller*	74	2002	Chairman of the Board and Senior Executive, IAC/InterActiveCorp and Expedia, Inc.			~	~	-	~		3
Helene D. Gayle*	60	2013	Chief Executive Officer, McKinsey Social Initiative		~					~	1
Evan G. Greenberg*	61	2011	Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, Chubb Limited	i.				~			1
Alexis M. Herman*	68	2007	Chair and Chief Executive Officer, New Ventures LLC		~					.	3
Muhtar Kent	63	2008	Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer, The Coca-Cola Company				i				1
Robert A. Kotick*	53	2012	President, Chief Executive Officer and Director, Activision Blizzard, Inc.					~	~		1
Maria Elena Lagomasino*	66	2008	Chief Executive Officer and Managing Partner, WE Family Offices		-	~			~		2 ⁴
Sam Nunn*	77	1997	Co-Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, Nuclear Threat Initiative			å		~		~	0
David B. Weinberg*	64	2015	Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, Judd Enterprises, Inc.	~							0

* Independent Director 🎽 Chair ✔ Member

1 A = Audit Committee; C = Compensation Committee; DCG = Committee on Directors and Corporate Governance; E = Executive Committee; F = Finance Committee; MD = Management Development Committee; PIDR = Public Issues and Diversity Review Committee

2 Other public company boards.

3 In January 2016, Marks & Spencer Group p.I.c. announced that Mr. Bolland will remain on the Board until the end of its current financial year on April 2, 2016.

4 In December 2015, Avon Products, Inc. announced that Ms. Lagomasino intends to resign from the Board effective upon the closing of a transaction with respect to its North America business, which is expected to occur in the spring of 2016.

Snapshot of 2016 Director Nominees

All Director nominees exhibit:

- High integrity
- A proven record of success
- An appreciation of multiple cultures
 A commitment to sustainability and social issues
- Innovative thinking

Knowledge of corporate governance requirements and practices

Our Director nominees bring a balance of relevant skills to our boardroom

Our Director nominees exhibit an effective mix of diversity, experience and fresh perspective



2015 COMPENSATION

Set forth below is the 2015 compensation for each Named Executive Officer as determined under Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") rules. See the 2015 Summary Compensation Table and the accompanying notes to the table beginning on page 63 for more information.

In order to show the effect that the year-over-year change in pension value had on total compensation, as determined under applicable SEC rules, we have included an additional column to show total compensation minus the change in pension value. The amounts reported in the Total Without Change in Pension Value column may differ substantially from the amounts reported in the Total column required under SEC rules and are not a substitute for total compensation. The change in pension value is subject to many external variables, such as interest rates, that are not related to Company performance. Therefore, we do not believe a year-over-year change in pension value is helpful in evaluating compensation for comparative purposes and instead, believe shareowners may find the accumulated pension benefits in the 2015 Pension Benefits table on <u>page 71</u> a more useful calculation of the pension benefits provided to the Named Executive Officers.

Name and Principal Position	Salary (\$)	Stock Awards (\$)	Option Awards (\$)	Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation (\$)	Change in Pension Value and Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Earnings (\$)	All Other Compensation (\$)	Total (\$)	Total Without Change in Pension Value ¹ (\$)
Muhtar Kent Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer	\$ 1,600,000	\$ 4,904,848	\$ 2,830,597	\$ 4,600,000	\$ 0 ²	\$ 655,126	\$ 14,590,571	\$ 14,590,571
Kathy N. Waller Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer	728,406	1,897,287	1,094,927	1,200,083	751,588	59,755	5,732,046	4,980,458
James Quincey ³ President and Chief Operating Officer	700,972	3,727,920	636,243	1,523,032	59,071	199,713	6,846,951	6,787,880
J. Alexander M. Douglas, Jr. Executive Vice President and President, Coca- Cola North America	698,091	4,377,783	1,019,016	1,237,934	73,198	63,682	7,469,704	7,396,506
Irial Finan Executive Vice President and President, Bottling Investments and Supply Chain	884,844	2,229,487	1,286,634	1,611,947	1,639,329	1,542,463	9,194,704	7,555,375

1 Total Without Change in Pension Value represents total compensation, as determined under applicable SEC rules, minus the change in pension value reported in the Change in Pension Value and Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Earnings column (but including the nonqualified deferred compensation earnings reported in that column, if any).

2 For Mr. Kent, \$0 is reported because there was a decrease of \$520,561 in the actuarial present value of his pension value for 2015. This decrease was primarily due to Mr. Kent having already attained the earliest age at which he is eligible for unreduced pension benefits as of the beginning of 2015 and a higher discount rate assumption for 2015.

3 Mr. Quincey was appointed President and Chief Operating Officer effective August 13, 2015. Prior to becoming President and Chief Operating Officer, compensation for Mr. Quincey was delivered in British pounds. In calculating the dollar equivalent for items that are not denominated in U.S. dollars, the Company converts each payment into dollars based on an average exchange rate.

COMPENSATION PROGRAM ENHANCEMENTS

We have made several enhancements to further link the Company's compensation programs with the Company's business and talent strategies and the long-term interests of our shareowners. Key enhancements are highlighted below.

What We Did	Notes/Results
Updated the annual incentive program, including adjusting performance metrics to further align with business strategy and, for 2016 and after, reduced potential maximum payout.	Net operating revenue and profit before tax growth were added as annual incentive metrics; weightings were adjusted to decrease emphasis on unit case volume. For 2016, maximum payout decreased from 300% of target to 250% of target. See <u>page 54</u> .
Adopted Equity Stewardship Guidelines to reduce share utilization.	Significantly decreased the "burn rate" of shares and met the burn rate commitment of 0.4% a full year early. See <u>page 56</u> .
Adjusted the mix of equity compensation to use fewer stock options and more performance share units.	Mix adjusted to 50/50 in 2015. For 2016, mix is 1/3 stock options and 2/3 performance share units.
Reduced the number and value of long-term incentive awards for Named Executive Officers.	Reflects 2015 as a transition year and taking into account recent performance relative to comparator companies.
	The Grant of C

2016 Proxy Statement

The Coa Cola Company 9

ANNUAL AND LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PAY IN 2015

In 2015, the Company took several strategic actions to accelerate top-line and bottom-line growth. As a result, we viewed 2015 as a transition year where the Company was implementing the necessary changes to its operating model.

- Annual incentive targets were set at the beginning of 2015 consistent with the expectations of 2015 as a transition year. The Company delivered results at or above these targets. In addition, management accelerated progress on several key business initiatives, including bottler refranchising. As a result, annual incentive awards for 2015 were above the target amount, and vary based on individual contributions. You can read more about pay decisions for each Named Executive Officer beginning on page 52.
- The value of long-term incentive awards granted in February 2015 to Named Executive Officers was significantly lower than in 2014, reflecting 2015 as a transition year and taking into account recent performance relative to comparator companies. For example, Mr. Kent received a long-term incentive grant valued at \$7.7 million in 2015, compared to \$15.8 million in 2014. You can see the values awarded to each Named Executive Officer in the 2015 Summary Compensation Table on page 63.
- The performance share units ("PSUs") for the 2013-2015 performance period will have zero payout because pre-established economic profit growth target was not met. As with the two prior PSU programs, no compensation will be realized for this portion of long-term incentive compensation. See page 58 for the status of annual PSU programs.

PAY-FOR-PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS

We view Company performance in two primary ways:

- 1. the Company's operating performance, including results against long-term growth targets; and
- return to shareowners over time, both on an absolute basis and relative to other companies, including the S&P 500 companies and our compensation 2. comparator group.

In addition to Company performance, we also take into account individual performance when making compensation decisions.

2015 Operating Performance

In October 2014, the Company announced five strategic actions to accelerate top-line and bottom-line growth:

- Drive revenue and profit growth, with clear portfolio roles across our markets.
- 2. Target disciplined brand and growth investments to reinvigorate top-line growth in our existing portfolio while expanding our participation across a range of consumption occasions.
- Drive efficiency by expanding our productivity program to result in \$3 billion in incremental annualized savings by 2019.
- Streamline and simplify our organization in order to speed decision making and enhance our local market focus.
- 5 Refocus on our core business model of building the world's greatest beverage brands and leading an unmatched global system of strong local bottling partners.

In 2015, a transition year for the Company as we implemented these strategic actions, the Company made significant progress against our initiatives and achieved our key objectives of improving our revenues and profits, despite an increasingly challenging global macroeconomic environment. Company operating highlights included:

- The Company gained global value share in nonalcoholic ready-to-drink beverages.
- Reported net revenue declined 4% while organic revenue grew 4%.
- Global volume grew 2%.
- Global price/mix grew 2%.
- Reported income before income taxes increased 3% and, excluding the impact of structural changes, comparable currency neutral income before income taxes increased 6%
- Reported earnings per share ("EPS") was up 5% and comparable currency neutral EPS was up 6%.

See Annex A for a reconciliation of non-GAAP financial measures to our results as reported under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States ("GAAP").



Return to Shareowners

The Company has delivered consistent positive return to shareowners over time, and has a long history of increasing dividends and conducting share repurchases, which continued in 2015.



The following chart shows how a \$100 investment in the Company's Common Stock on December 31, 2010 would have grown to \$151 on December 31, 2015, with dividends reinvested quarterly. The chart also compares the total shareowner return on the Company's Common Stock to the same investment in the S&P 500 Index and the Company's 2015 compensation comparator group (see page 59) over the same period, with dividends reinvested quarterly.



Source: Standard & Poor's Research Insight. Includes the Company's 2015 comparator group (see page 59) for the five-year period whether or not a company was included in the group for the entire period. For foreign companies included in the comparator group, market value has been converted to U.S. dollars and excludes the impact of currency. Market returns are weighted by relative market capitalization and are adjusted for spin-offs and special dividends.

2016 Proxy Statement



Analysis of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Pay

This section provides an analysis of the relationship between the compensation of our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and the Company's performance. See <u>page 52</u> for additional information about Mr. Kent's 2015 compensation and individual performance highlights.

Directional Relationship Between Pay and Key Metrics

The following illustrates the three-year directional relationship between Company performance, based on three of our key operating metrics, and the compensation (as defined below) of our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer.



- 1 Compensation for Mr. Kent in each of 2013, 2014 and 2015, as reported in the 2015 Summary Compensation Table on page 63, excluding "change in pension value and nonqualified deferred compensation earnings." We believe it is appropriate to exclude this component when analyzing the relationship between pay and performance because there are no enhanced or special pension plans for the Named Executive Officers and change in pension value is subject to many variables, such as external interest rates, that are not related to Company performance. See page 71 for a description of the accumulated pension benefit for Mr. Kent and the other Named Executive Officers.
- 2 Reflects growth in comparable currency neutral net operating revenue adjusting for the impact of structural items (2013 and 2014), organic revenue (2015) and comparable currency neutral profit before tax after adjusting for the impact of structural items (2013-2015), which differ from what is reported under GAAP. See Annex A for a reconciliation of non-GAAP financial measures to our results as reported under GAAP.

Reported and Realized Pay

The reported pay of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in the 2015 Summary Compensation Table (excluding the change in pension value) has decreased over the past three years. Since the vast majority of reported pay represents potential pay, we also look at pay actually realized each year, which may include the value of long-term equity compensation granted many years earlier. The following graphic shows reported pay included in the 2015 Summary Compensation Table (excluding the change in pension value) and the realized pay over the last three years. For the past three years in aggregate, realized pay was 70% of reported pay.



* Mr. Kent continues to hold all shares received from PSU releases and stock option exercises, other than those withheld for taxes.

Reported pay includes base salary, actual annual incentive earned, the grant date fair value of long-term equity compensation and all other compensation, each as reported in the 2015 Summary Compensation Table on page 63.

Realized pay includes base salary, actual annual incentive earned and all other compensation, each as reported in the 2015 Summary Compensation Table on page 63, and the value of stock options exercised or stock awards released in the applicable year.

2016 Proxy Statement A The Concernant 12

Tracking of Long-Term Incentives

						Vested or	ι	Jnvested o
		Reported	Realize	ed	"In th	ne Money" ¹		"At-Risk"
Year		at Grant	as of 12/31/20 ⁻	15	as of	12/31/2015	as of	12/31/201
2013	Stock Options	\$ 7,113,946	\$	0	\$	5,115,536	\$	5,115,54
	PSUs	6,399,988		0		0		
2014	Stock Options	9,314,144		0		3,427,292		10,281,88
	PSUs	6,489,441		0		0		8,618,93
2015	Stock Options	2,830,597		0		0		693,14
	PSUs	4,904,848		0		0		5,538,66
Total		\$37,052,964	\$	0	\$	8,542,828	\$	30,248,17

Long-term incentive compensation is performance-based and the largest component of pay for executives. While no long-term awards granted in 2013, 2014 or 2015 have been realized by Mr. Kent, the following table illustrates how the awards were tracking as of December 31, 2015.

1 Represents the intrinsic value of vested stock options granted each year. Intrinsic value is the difference between the exercise price of the stock option and the closing price of the Common Stock, which was \$42.96 on December 31, 2015. No PSUs granted in 2013, 2014 or 2015 were vested as of December 31, 2015.

2 Represents the intrinsic value of unvested stock options granted each year. PSUs granted in 2013 were certified with a zeropayout. The value for PSUs in 2014 and 2015 represents the target number of PSUs multiplied by \$42.96, the closing price of Common Stock on December 31, 2015.

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS

Please see the Questions and Answers section beginning on page 94 for important information about the proxy materials, voting, the annual meeting, Company documents, communications and the deadlines to submit shareowner proposals and director nominees for the 2017 Annual Meeting of Shareowners. Additional questions may be directed to Shareowner Services at (404) 676-2777 or shareownerservices@coca-cola.com.

LEARN MORE ABOUT OUR COMPANY

You can learn more about the Company, view our governance materials and much more by visiting our website, www.coca-colacompany.com.

Please also visit our 2016 Annual Meeting website, www.coca-colacompany.com/investors/annual-meeting-of-shareowners, to easily access the Company's interactive proxy materials, vote through the Internet, submit questions in advance of the 2016 Annual Meeting of Shareowners and listen to a live webcast of the meeting.

2016 Proxy Statement





ONE COCA-COLA PLAZA ATLANTA, GEORGIA 30313

PROXY STATEMENT

The Board of Directors of The Coca-Cola Company (the "Board") is furnishing you this proxy statement to solicit proxies on its behalf to be voted at the 2016 Annual Meeting of Shareowners of The Coca-Cola Company (the "Company"). The meeting will be held at World of Coca-Cola, 121 Baker Street NW, Atlanta, Georgia 30313 on April 27, 2016, at 8:45 a.m., local time. The proxies also may be voted at any adjournments or postponements of the meeting.

The mailing address of our principal executive offices is The Coca-Cola Company, P.O. Box 1734, Atlanta, Georgia 30301. We are first furnishing the proxy materials to shareowners on March 10, 2016.

All properly executed written proxies and all properly completed proxies submitted by telephone or Internet that are delivered pursuant to this solicitation will be voted at the meeting in accordance with the directions given in the proxy, unless the proxy is revoked prior to completion of voting at the meeting.

Only owners of record of shares of common stock of the Company ("Common Stock") as of the close of business on February 29, 2016, the record date, are entitled to notice of, and to vote at, the meeting or at any adjournments or postponements of the meeting. Each owner of record on the record date is entitled to one vote for each share of Common Stock held. On February 29, 2016, there were 4,328,749,732 shares of Common Stock issued and outstanding.

IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING THE AVAILABILITY OF PROXY MATERIALS FOR THE ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREOWNERS TO BE HELD ON APRIL 27, 2016.

The Notice of Annual Meeting, Proxy Statement and Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015 are available at www.edocumentview.com/coca-cola.



GOVERNANCE

Message from the Lead Independent Director



I am very pleased to serve as your Lead Independent Director. I join with my fellow Board members in overseeing the long-term interests of our shareowners with a commitment to good corporate governance practices.

In this role, I am elected by the independent Directors for a one-year term. Although elected annually, our Lead Independent Director is generally expected to serve for more than one year for continuity and effectiveness.

I take this role very seriously, and I understand that you, our shareowners, are putting your trust in me to provide independent Board leadership. You can see the duties assigned to this role on page 28.

In the context of these responsibilities, I would like to highlight three governance initiatives that were a focus in 2015:

- . I endeavored to meet personally with a number of our investors through our well-established shareowner engagement program. Our Board believes that investors should have line of sight into decisions we make in the boardroom. In my view, to do our jobs as Directors effectively, we need to understand what our owners think. In addition to receiving regular reports from our established shareowner engagement program activities, during 2015, I personally engaged with nearly 20 shareowners, including some of our largest investors.
- Muhtar and I also want to provide our Directors with an opportunity to have more practical, hands-on experience with our Company. When our Directors travel, we help facilitate market visits and meetings with our operators on the ground. Our Board believes it has an obligation to oversee the Company's business strategy and this is a way for Directors to see in practical terms - in real life if you will - the execution of the strategy we discuss inside the boardroom. In 2015, Directors visited many locations including China, Mexico, Japan, Spain, Panama, Italy, South Africa and Chile. This is an excellent way for our individual Directors to understand the challenges, the opportunities and, most importantly, our people.
- . Another focus area has been our Board evaluation process. We know that a robust Board evaluation process is a critical element of good corporate governance and board effectiveness. A description of our evaluation process can be found on page 17.

I remain committed to helping ensure that this Board of highly capable and diverse Directors is well-equipped to effectively oversee the business and represent the long-term interests of shareowners.

Sampun

ITEM 1 - ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

What am I voting on?

Shareowners are being asked to elect 15 Director nominees for a one-year term.

Voting recommendation:

FOR the election of each Director nominee. The Board and the Committee on Directors and Corporate Governance believe the 15 Director nominees possess the necessary qualifications, attributes, skills and experiences to provide quality advice and counsel to the Company's management and effectively oversee the business and the long-term interests of shareowners.



Role of the Board

The Board is elected by the shareowners to oversee their interests in the long-term health and overall success of the Company's business and financial strength. The Board serves as the ultimate decision-making body of the Company, except for those matters reserved to or shared with the shareowners. The Board plays a critical role in the strategic planning process and regularly discusses strategy throughout the year. The Board selects and oversees the members of senior management, who are charged by the Board with conducting the business of the Company.

Board Composition and Refreshment

Ensuring the Board is composed of Directors who bring diverse viewpoints and perspectives, exhibit a variety of skills, professional experience and backgrounds, and effectively represent the long-term interests of shareowners, is a top priority of the Board and the Committee on Directors and Corporate Governance. The Board and the Committee on Directors and Corporate Governance also understand the importance of Board refreshment, and strive to maintain an appropriate balance of tenure, turnover, diversity and skills on the Board. The Board believes that new perspectives and ideas are critical to a forward-looking and strategic Board as is the ability to benefit from the valuable experience and familiarity that longer-serving Directors bring.

Board Refreshment

Under Muhtar Kent's leadership of the Board since 2009

Eight new Directors elected

- Full rotation of Board committee chairs
- New Lead Independent Director elected
- Expanded gualifications and diversity represented on the Board

Board Membership Criteria

The Board and the Committee on Directors and Corporate Governance believe there are general qualifications that all Directors must exhibit and other qualifications, attributes, skills and experience that should be represented on the Board as a whole, but not necessarily by each Director.

Qualifications Required of All Directors

The Board and the Committee on Directors and Corporate Governance require that each Director be a recognized person of high integrity with a proven record of success in his or her field and have the ability to devote the time and effort necessary to fulfill his or her responsibilities to the Company. Each Director must demonstrate innovative thinking, familiarity with and respect for corporate governance requirements and practices, an appreciation of multiple cultures and a commitment to sustainability and to dealing responsibly with social issues. In addition, the Board conducts interviews of potential Director candidates to assess intangible gualities, including the individual's ability to ask difficult guestions and, simultaneously, to work collegially.

The Board does not have a specific diversity policy, but considers diversity of race, ethnicity, gender, age, cultural background and professional experience in evaluating candidates for Board membership. Diversity is important because the Board believes that a variety of points of view contributes to a more effective decision-making process. When recommending Director nominees for election by shareowners, the Board and the Committee on Directors and Corporate Governance focus on how the experience and skill set of each Director nominee complements those of fellow Director nominees to create a balanced Board with diverse viewpoints and deep expertise.

Specific Qualifications, Attributes, Skills and Experience to be Represented on the Board

The Board has identified particular qualifications, attributes, skills and experience that are important to be represented on the Board as a whole, in light of the Company's current and expected future business needs. The following table summarizes certain key characteristics of the Company's business and the associated gualifications, attributes, skills and experience that the Board believes should be represented on the Board.





Business Characteristics		Qualifications, Attributes, Skills and Experience
The Company's business is multifaceted and involves complex financial transactions in many countries and in many currencies.		High level of financial experience
		Relevant senior leadership/Chief Executive Officer experience
The Company's business is truly global and multicultural, with its products sold in over 200 countries around the world.	۲	Broad international exposure/emerging market experience
		Diversity of race, ethnicity, gender, age, cultural background or professional experience
The Company's business is a complicated global enterprise and most of the Company's products are manufactured and sold by bottling partners around the world.		Extensive knowledge of the Company's business and/or industry
Marketing and innovation are core focuses of the Company's business and the Company seeks to develop and deploy the world's most effective marketing and innovative products and technology.	0	Marketing experience
	\bigcirc	Innovation/technology experience
The Company's business requires compliance with a variety of regulatory requirements across a number of countries and relationships with various governmental entities and non-governmental organizations.		Governmental or geopolitical expertise
The Boards responsibilities include understanding and overseeing the various risks facing the Company and ensuring that appropriate policies and procedures are in place to effectively manage risk.		Risk oversight/management expertise

Board Evaluation Process

The Board recognizes that a robust and constructive evaluation process is an essential component of good corporate governance and Board effectiveness. The Board evaluation process was a focus area for the Lead Independent Director and the Committee on Directors and Corporate Governance in 2015.

The Committee on Directors and Corporate Governance oversees an annual evaluation process led by the Lead Independent Director. Evaluations are designed to assess the qualifications, attributes, skills and experience represented on the Board and whether the Board, its committees and individual Directors are functioning effectively. The evaluation process includes these components:

- The Board conducts an annual self-evaluation.
- Each committee conducts an annual self-evaluation.
- Committee chairs meet to provide feedback and input prior to the annual Board self-evaluation.
- Each Director evaluates the Board and the committees on which he or she serves and conducts a self-assessment.

Once the evaluation process is complete, the results are discussed by the full Board and each committee, as applicable, and changes in practices or procedures are considered and implemented as appropriate. The Committee on Directors and Corporate Governance periodically reviews the format of the evaluation process to ensure that actionable feedback is solicited on the operation of the Board and Director performance.

For 2015, a key component of the annual evaluation process was a Board review in which each Director participated. The review covered four areas:

- Board composition and structure
- Board and committee meetings and associated materials
- Board interaction with management
- Effectiveness of the Board

As part of the review process, the Lead Independent Director spoke with each Director individually to discuss issues in greater depth and obtain more targeted feedback and suggestions. This evaluation process generated robust comments and discussion at all levels of the Board, including with respect to Board refreshment and Board processes.



Director Nominee Selection Process

The Committee on Directors and Corporate Governance is responsible for recommending to the Board a slate of nominees for election at each Annual Meeting of Shareowners. Nominees may be suggested by Directors, members of management, shareowners or, in some cases, by a third-party firm.

The Committee on Directors and Corporate Governance considers a wide range of factors when assessing potential Director nominees. This assessment includes a review of the potential nominee's judgment, experience, independence, understanding of the Company's business or other related industries and such other factors as the committee concludes are pertinent in light of the current needs of the Board. A potential nominee's qualifications are considered to determine whether they meet the qualifications required of all Directors and the specific qualifications, attributes, skills and experience to be represented on the Board described above. Further, the Committee on Directors and Corporate Governance assesses how each potential nominee would impact the skills and experience represented on the Board as a whole in the context of the Board's overall composition and the Company's current and future needs.

Shareowner-Recommended Director Candidates

Shareowners who would like the Committee on Directors and Corporate Governance to consider their recommendations for nominees for the position of Director should submit their recommendations in writing by mail to the Committee on Directors and Corporate Governance in care of the Office of the Secretary, The Coca-Cola Company, P.O. Box 1734, Atlanta, Georgia 30301, by e-mail to asktheboard@coca-cola. com or by fax to (404) 676-8409. Recommendations by shareowners that are made in accordance with these procedures will receive the same consideration by the Committee on Directors and Corporate Governance as other suggested nominees.

Shareowner-Nominated Director Candidates

In September 2015, our Board adopted a "Proxy Access for Director Nominations" bylaw after engaging with a number of our shareowners to understand their views on the desirability of proxy access and the appropriate proxy access structure for the Company. The proxy access bylaw permits a shareowner, or a group of up to 20 shareowners, owning 3% or more of the Company's outstanding Common Stock continuously for at least three years to nominate and include in the Company's proxy materials director nominees constituting up to two individuals or 20% of the Board (whichever is greater), provided that the shareowner(s) and the nominee(s) satisfy the requirements specified in Article I, Section 12 of our By-Laws. See guestion 30 on page 101 for more information.

Annual Elections of Directors; Majority Voting Standard

Directors are elected each year, at the Annual Meeting of Shareowners, to hold office until the next annual meeting and until their successors are elected and gualified. Because term limits may cause the loss of experience and expertise important to the optimal operation of the Board, there are no limits on the number of terms a Director may serve. However, the Committee on Directors and Corporate Governance evaluates the qualifications and performance of each incumbent Director before recommending the nomination of that Director for an additional term.

In addition, pursuant to our Corporate Governance Guidelines, Directors whose job responsibilities change or who reach the age of 74 are asked to submit a letter of resignation to the Board. These letters are considered by the Board and, if applicable, annually thereafter.

Our By-Laws provide that, in an election of Directors where the number of nominees does not exceed the number of Directors to be elected, each Director must receive the majority of the votes cast with respect to that Director. If a Director does not receive a majority vote, he or she has agreed that a letter of resignation will be submitted to the Board. The Committee on Directors and Corporate Governance will make a recommendation to the Board on whether to accept or reject the resignation, or whether other action should be taken. The Board will act on the resignation taking into account the recommendation of the Committee on Directors and Corporate Governance, which will include consideration of the vote and any relevant input from shareowners. The Board will publicly disclose its decision and its rationale within 100 days of the certification of the election results. The Director who tenders his or her resignation will not participate in the decisions of the Committee on Directors and Corporate Governance or the Board that concern the resignation.



2015 Director Nominees

Our By-Laws provide that the number of Directors shall be determined by the Board, which has set the number at 15. Upon the recommendation of the Committee on Directors and Corporate Governance, the Board has nominated each of Herbert A. Allen, Ronald W. Allen, Marc Bolland, Ana Botín, Howard G. Buffett, Richard M. Daley, Barry Diller, Helene D. Gayle, Evan G. Greenberg, Alexis M. Herman, Muhtar Kent, Robert A. Kotick, Maria Elena Lagomasino, Sam Nunn and David B. Weinberg for election as a Director. All of the nominees are independent under New York Stock Exchange ("NYSE") corporate governance rules, except Herbert A. Allen and Muhtar Kent. See "Director Independence and Related Person Transactions" beginning on page 38.

Each of the Director nominees currently serves on the Board and was elected by the shareowners at the 2015 Annual Meeting of Shareowners. If elected, each Director will hold office until the 2017 Annual Meeting of Shareowners and until his or her successor is elected and qualified. We have no reason to believe that any of the nominees will be unable or unwilling to serve if elected.

However, if any nominee should become unable for any reason or unwilling for good cause to serve, proxies may be voted for another person nominated as a substitute by the Board, or the Board may reduce the number of Directors.

The Board and the Committee on Directors and Corporate Governance believe that the combination of the various qualifications, attributes, skills and experiences of the Director nominees would contribute to an effective and well-functioning Board and that, individually and as a whole, the Director nominees possess the necessary qualifications to provide effective oversight of the business and quality advice and counsel to the Company's management.

Included in each Director nominee's biography below is an assessment of the specific qualifications, attributes, skills and experience of such nominee based on the qualifications described above.

The Board of Directors recommends a vote FOR the election of each of the Director nominees.



Back to Contents

Herbert A. Allen



M

Mr. Allen is President, Chief Executive Officer and a Director of Allen & Company Incorporated, a privately held investment firm, and has held these positions for more than the past five years. He previously served as a Director of Convera Corporation from 2000 to 2010.

Director since 1982

Age: 76

Board Committees: Executive, Finance, Management Development (Chair)

Other Public Company Boards: None

Specific Qualifications, Attributes, Skills and Experience:

High Level of Financial Experience

Extensive experience in venture capital, underwriting, mergers and acquisitions, private placements and money management services at Allen & Company Incorporated. Supervises Allen & Company Incorporated's principal financial and accounting officers on all matters related to the firm's financial position and results of operations and the presentation of its financial statements.

Relevant Senior Leadership/Chief Executive Officer Experience

President and Chief Executive Officer of Allen & Company Incorporated, a preeminent investment firm focused on the media, entertainment and technology industries.



Extensive Knowledge of the Company's Business and/or Industry

Director of the Company since 1982 and through Allen & Company Incorporated, has served as financial advisor to the Company and its bottling partners on numerous transactions.

Marketing Experience

Significant marketing experience through ownership of a controlling interest and management of Columbia Pictures, a film production and distribution studio, from 1973 to 1982, and through a ten-year public company directorship at Convera Corporation, a company that used technology to help clients build an online community and increase their Internet advertising revenues.

Ronald W. Allen



Mr. Allen served as Chief Executive Officer of Aaron's. Inc. from February 2012 until his retirement in August 2014. Mr. Allen served as a Director of Aaron's, Inc. from 1997 until August 2014. Mr. Allen also served as President of Aaron's Inc. from February 2012 to April 2014 and as Chairman of the Board of Aaron's, Inc. from November 2012 until April 2014. Mr. Age: 74 Allen served as interim President and Chief Executive Officer of Aaron's, Inc. from November 2011 to February 2012. Mr. Allen retired as the Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer of Delta Air Lines, Inc. ("Delta"), one of the world's largest global airlines, in July 1997. From July 1997 through July 2005, Mr. Allen was a consultant to and Advisory Director of Delta. He previously served as a Director of Guided Therapeutics Inc. from 2008 to January 2014.

Director since 1991

Board Committees: Audit, Compensation

Other Public Company Boards: Aircastle Limited (since 2006) and Forward Air Corporation (2011-2013 and since 2014)

Specific Qualifications, Attributes, Skills and Experience:



High Level of Financial Experience

Oversaw financial matters in his role as Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer of Aaron's, Inc., a leader in the sales and lease ownership and specialty retailing of residential furniture, consumer electronics, home appliances and accessories; also served on its Audit Committee prior to becoming interim President and Chief Executive Officer. Serves on the Audit Committee of Aircastle Limited, a global company that acquires, leases and sells high-utility commercial jet aircraft to customers throughout the world. Served on the Investment Committee of Interstate Hotels & Resorts, Inc., a large independent hotel management company of major global brands.



Relevant Senior Leadership/Chief Executive Officer Experience

Served as Chief Executive Officer of Aaron's, Inc. from February 2012 to August 2014 and as its President from February 2012 to April 2014. Served as Chief Executive Officer and President of Delta from 1987 to 1997. During his tenure at Delta, he managed the company through very difficult times, brought it back to sustained profitability, established a program to lower the airline's cost structure and grew the business through expansion into foreign markets.



Broad International Exposure/Emerging Market Experience

Former Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Delta, a leading global carrier with service to countries on six continents. Serves as a Director at Aircastle Limited and served as a Director at Interstate Hotels & Resorts, Inc. from 2006 to 2010, each of which has international operations.

Extensive Knowledge of the Company's Business and/or Industry

25-year directorship at the Company. Significant manufacturing experience as a senior executive at Aaron's, Inc., whose business includes a furniture manufacturing division.





Marc Bolland



Mr. Bolland is Chief Executive Officer and a Director of Marks & Spencer Group p.l.c. ("Marks & Spencer"), an international, multi-channel retailer, and has held this position since May 2010. In January 2016, Marks & Spencer announced that Mr. Bolland will retire from these positions on April 2, 2016. He served as Chief Executive Officer and a Director of WM Morrison Supermarkets PLC, a leading supermarket chain in the United Kingdom, from September 2006 to April 2010. He served as Chief Operating Officer of Heineken N.V., one of the world's largest brewers, from 2005 to July 2006, and as an executive board member of Heineken N.V. from 2001 to July 2006. Mr. Bolland started his career at Heineken N.V. in the Netherlands in 1987, serving in several international management positions including Managing Director of Heineken Export Group Worldwide, a subsidiary of Heineken N.V., from 1999 to 2001, and Managing Director of Heineken Slovensko, a subsidiary of Heineken N.V., from 1995 to 1998. He previously served as a Director of ManpowerGroup Inc. from 2004 to February 2015.

Director since 2015 Age: 56 Board Committees: Audit Other Public Company Boards: Marks & Spencer Group p.l.c. (since May 2010)*

Specific Qualifications, Attributes, Skills and Experience:

High Level of Financial Experience



Significant operational and financial experience as Chief Executive Officer of Marks & Spencer, Chief Executive Officer of WM Morrison Supermarkets PLC and Chief Operating Officer of Heineken N.V., all public companies.

Relevant Senior Leadership/Chief Executive Officer Experience

Since 2010, has served as Chief Executive Officer of Marks & Spencer, an international, multi-channel retailer based in the United Kingdom with over £10 billion in annual revenues. From 2006 to 2010, served as Chief Executive Officer of WM Morrison Supermarkets PLC where he successfully led the development and implementation of its long-term strategy, turning around the business.

Broad International Exposure/Emerging Market Experience

Appointed a UK Business Ambassador by the British Prime Minister to promote the United Kingdom in overseas markets and highlight trade and investment opportunities. Led international expansion of Marks & Spencer, which has stores in the United Kingdom and 59 countries outside the United Kingdom. In addition, while at Heineken N.V., he was Managing Director in Slovakia, Managing Director for Heineken Export Worldwide and had responsibility for Western Europe, the United States, Latin America, Northern Africa and Global Marketing. Vice Co-Chair of The Consumer Goods Forum.

Marketing Expertise

Extensive marketing and retail expertise as Chief Executive Officer of Marks & Spencer and WM Morrison Supermarkets PLC, as well as serving as Chief Operating Officer and head of Global Marketing for Heineken N.V., where he was responsible for brand and marketing strategies.

* In January 2016, Marks & Spencer announced that Mr. Bolland will remain on the Board until the end of its current financial year on April 2, 2016.

Ana Botín

Ms. Botin is Executive Chair of Banco Santander, S.A., the parent bank of Grupo Santander, and has held this position since September 2014. She has served as a Director of Banco Santander, S.A. since 1989. Ms. Botin served as Chief Executive Officer of Santander UK plc, a leading financial services provider in the United Kingdom and subsidiary of Banco Santander, S.A., from December 2010 to September 2014. She has served as a Director of Santander UK plc since December 2010. Ms. Botín served as Executive Chair of Banco Español de Crédito, S.A., also a subsidiary of Banco Santander, S.A., from 2002 to 2010. She started her 35-year career in the banking industry at JP Morgan in New York in 1981 and in 1988 joined Banco Santander, S.A., where she established and led its international corporate banking business in Latin America in the 1990s. She previously served as a Director of Assicurazioni Generali S.p.A., a global insurance company based in Italy, from 2004 to 2011.

Director since 2013

Age: 55

Board Committees: Directors and Corporate Governance

Other Public Company Boards: Banco Santander, S.A. (since 1989) and Santander UK plc (since 2010)

Specific Qualifications, Attributes, Skills and Experience:



High Level of Financial Experience

Internationally recognized expert in the investment banking industry with knowledge of global macroeconomic issues as well as significant experience in oversight and management of financial risks. Over 35 years of experience in investment and commercial banking. Has served as Executive Chair of Banco Santander, S.A. since September 2014 and a member of Banco Santander, S.A.'s Board and Executive Committee since 1989 and of its Management Committee since 1994. Began career at JP Morgan in New York in 1981 where she worked in its investment banking and treasury service areas until 1988. Joined Banco Santander, S.A. in 1988 where she established and led its international corporate banking business in Latin America in the 1990s. Subsequently served as Executive Chair of Banco Español de Crédito, S.A. from 2002 to 2010 and served as Chief Executive Officer of Santander UK plc from 2010 to September 2014, both of which are banking subsidiaries of Banco Santander, S.A. Member of the British Prime Minister's Business Advisory Group which provides high-level advice on critical business and economic issues facing the United Kingdom.

Relevant Senior Leadership/Chief Executive Officer Experience

Executive Chair of Banco Santander, S.A. since September 2014. Also served as Chief Executive Officer of Santander UK plc, a leading financial services provider in the United Kingdom from 2010 to September 2014.

Broad International Exposure/Emerging Market Experience

Executive Chair of Banco Santander, S.A., a global financial institution with operations in Europe, North America, Latin America and Asia. Board member of the Institute of International Finance, a global association of financial institutions. Founder and Vice Chair of Fundación Empresa y Crecimiento, which finances small and medium sized companies in Latin America, and co-founder and Chair of the Fundación Conocimiento y Desarrollo, a nonprofit organization that promotes the contribution of universities in Spain to the country's economic and social development. Co-founder and Chair of Fundación Empieza Por Educar, the Spanish member of the global Teach For All network. Director of Assicurazioni Generali S.p.A., a global insurance company based in Italy, from 2004 to 2011.

Diversity

Spanish national; female; significant experience with non-U.S. companies and nonprofit organizations.





Back to Contents

Howard G. Buffett



Mr. Buffett is President of Buffett Farms, a commercial farming operation, and has held this position since 1986. Mr. Buffett is Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Howard G. Buffett Foundation, a charitable foundation that directs funding for humanitarian and conservation related issues, and has held these positions since December 2013. He previously served as President of the Howard G. Buffett Foundation from 1999 to December 2013 and as a Director of Lindsay Corporation from 1995 to January 2016.

Director since 2010 Age: 61

Board Committees: Public Issues and **Diversity Review**

Other Public Company Boards: Berkshire Hathaway Inc. (since 1993)



Specific Qualifications, Attributes, Skills and Experience:

Broad International Exposure/Emerging Market Experience

The Howard G. Buffett Foundation. of which Mr. Buffett is Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, focuses much of its work in communities in Africa and Latin America. In 2007, the Foundation launched the Global Water Initiative to address productive and household water resource constraints in Africa and Central America. In 2012, the Global Water Initiative refocused its mission to look at water resource constraints for agricultural production globally. Serves as a Trustee of the Sequoia Farm Foundation, an initiative of the Howard G. Buffett Foundation, which invests in applied research to improve production practices for smallholder farmers in developing countries in Latin America and Africa. Served in various management roles at Archer-Daniels-Midland Company, one of the largest agricultural processors in the world, including a lead business development role for Latin America.



Extensive Knowledge of the Company's Business and/or Industry

From 1993 to 2004, served as a Director of Coca-Cola Enterprises Inc., then the world's largest Coca-Cola bottler, which enabled Mr. Buffett to acquire extensive knowledge of its bottling operations and an understanding of the Coca-Cola system.

Governmental or Geopolitical Expertise

Served on two United States Trade Representative Committees and was appointed a United Nations Goodwill Ambassador Against Hunger in 2007. Gained governmental experience through service in elected office in Douglas County, Nebraska from 1989 to 1992. Extensive experience on international socioeconomic and regulatory issues including agricultural resource development and supply chain and water resource management as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Howard G. Buffett Foundation, which works to improve subsistence agriculture and resolve conflicts tied to food shortages. Served as Chairman of Coca-Cola Enterprises Inc.'s Public Issues Review Committee.



Risk Oversight/Management Expertise

Oversight and management of operational risks as President of Buffett Farms and Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Howard G. Buffett Foundation, as a Director of Berkshire Hathaway Inc., a complex and diversified multinational company, as a former Director of Lindsay Corporation, a global leader in the manufacture of agricultural irrigation products, and as a former Director of Sloan Implement, a privately owned distributor of John Deere agricultural equipment.

Richard M. Daley



Mr. Daley was the Mayor of Chicago from 1989 to 2011. Mr. Daley is the Executive Chairman of Tur Partners LLC, an investment and advisory firm focusing on sustainable solutions within the urban environment, and has held this position since May 2011. He is Of Counsel at Katten Muchin Rosenman LLP, a full-service law firm with attorneys in locations across the United States and in London and Shanghai, and has held this position since June 2011. In October 2011, he was appointed a senior advisor to JPMorgan Chase & Co., where he chairs the "Global Cities Initiative," a joint project of JPMorgan Chase & Co. and the Brookings Institution to help cities identify and leverage their greatest economic development resources. Mr. Daley also has been a distinguished senior fellow at the University of Chicago Harris School of Public Policy since May 2011.

Director since 2011 Age: 73 Board Committees: Directors and

Corporate Governance **Other Public Company Boards:**

Diamond Resorts International, Inc. (since 2013)

Specific Qualifications, Attributes, Skills and Experience:

Relevant Senior Leadership/Chief Executive Officer Experience

As Mayor of Chicago, served as the chief executive of one of the world's largest cities, managing all aspects of a complex governmental organization, including its multi-billion dollar budget and over 30 departments with over 35,000 employees. Serves as Executive Chairman of Tur Partners LLC.



Broad International Exposure/Emerging Market Experience

As Mayor, helped Chicago become a prominent player in the global economy. Particular focus on developing relationships in China through efforts such as the Chicago-China Friendship Initiative Campaign. Ongoing international exposure with policymakers from around the world as distinguished senior fellow at the University of Chicago Harris School of Public Policy and as a member of the International Advisory Board for the Russian Direct Investment Fund.



Governmental or Geopolitical Expertise

Over a 42-year career in public service. Mayor of Chicago for 22 years and the longest serving Mayor in Chicago's history. As Mayor, earned a reputation for improving Chicago's quality of life, acting to improve public schools, strengthening its economy and helping Chicago become among the most environmentally friendly cities in the world.

Risk Oversight/Management Expertise

Significant expertise in managing and overseeing risks as Mayor of Chicago, including emergency and crisis management, and oversight of governmental, economic, environmental, human resources and social risks.



Barry Diller



Since December 2010, Mr. Diller has served as Chairman and Senior Executive of IAC/InterActiveCorp, a leading media and Internet company. Prior to that time, Mr. Diller held the positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of IAC/InterActiveCorp (and its predecessor companies) since August 1995. Mr. Diller has also served as Chairman and Senior Executive of Expedia, Inc., one of the world's leading travel companies, since August 2005. Mr. Diller has also served as Special Advisor to the Chief Executive Officer of TripAdvisor, Inc., an online travel company, since April 2013, and served as its Chairman and Senior Executive from December 2011, when it was spun off from Expedia, Inc., until December 2012, and as a member of its Board until April 2013. Mr. Diller also served as the non-executive Chairman of Live Nation Entertainment, Inc. (and its predecessor companies, Ticketmaster Entertainment, Inc. and Ticketmaster) from August 2008 to October 2010 and was a member of its Board until January 2011.

Director since 2002 Age: 74

Board Committees: Directors and Corporate Governance, Executive, Finance (Chair), Management Development

Other Public Company Boards: Expedia, Inc. (since 2005), Graham Holdings Company (since 2000) and IAC/InterActiveCorp (since 1995)

Specific Qualifications, Attributes, Skills and Experience:

High Level of Financial Experience

Extensive experience in financings, mergers, acquisitions, investments and strategic transactions, including transactions with Silver King Broadcasting, QVC, Inc., Ticketmaster Entertainment, Inc. and Home Shopping Network, Inc. Serves on the Finance Committee of Graham Holdings Company, a diversified education and media company.

Relevant Senior Leadership/Chief Executive Officer Experience

Served as Chief Executive Officer of IAC/InterActiveCorp (and its predecessors) from 1995 to 2010. Beginning with QVC, Inc. in 1992, served as chief executive for a number of predecessor companies engaged in media and interactivity prior to the formation of IAC/InterActiveCorp. Previously served as Chief Executive Officer of Fox, Inc. from 1984 to 1992 and was responsible for the creation of Fox Broadcasting Company, in addition to Fox's motion picture operations. Prior to joining Fox, served for ten years as Chief Executive Officer of Paramount Pictures Corporation.



Broad International Exposure/Emerging Market Experience

Chairman of the Board and Senior Executive of IAC/InterActiveCorp, a leading media and internet company focused on the areas of search and applications, dating, education and fitness businesses, media and e-commerce, whose family of websites is one of the largest in the world, reaching users in more than 190 countries. Chairman of the Board and Senior Executive of Expedia, Inc., one of the world's leading online travel companies. Served as Chairman of the Board and Senior Executive of TripAdvisor, Inc., the world's largest travel site, with websites in 45 countries. Served as a member of the Council on Foreign Relations.

Innovation/Technology Experience

Significant experience and leadership roles in the media and Internet sectors. This includes experience at IAC/InterActiveCorp, which has several businesses in the marketing and technology industries, with brands such as Ask.com, About.com, Match, HomeAdvisor, DailyBurn and Vimeo, at Expedia, Inc., an online travel company with brands such as Expedia, HomeAway, Hotels.com, and Hotwire, and at TripAdvisor, Inc., which operates the flagship TripAdvisor-branded websites and numerous other travel brands.

Helene D. Gayle



Dr. Gayle is the Chief Executive Officer of McKinsey Social Initiative, an independent nonprofit organization founded by McKinsey & Company, which brings together expert problem solvers to develop innovative approaches to complex social challenges. Dr. Gayle held the positions of President and Chief Executive Officer of CARE USA, a leading international humanitarian organization, from 2006 to 2015. From 2001 to 2006, she served as program director in the Global Health Program at the Bill & Melinda Gates Foundation. Dr. Gayle started her 20-year career in public health at the U.S. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention ("CDC") in 1984 where she held various positions, ultimately becoming the director of the CDC's National Center for HIV, STD and TB Prevention in 1995.

Director since 2013

Age: 60

Board Committees: Compensation, Public Issues and Diversity Review

Other Public Company Boards: Colgate-Palmolive Company (since 2010)

Specific Qualifications, Attributes, Skills and Experience:

Relevant Senior Leadership/Chief Executive Officer Experience

Chief Executive Officer of McKinsey Social Initiative, a nonprofit focused on developing innovative approaches to complex social challenges, and former President and Chief Executive Officer of CARE USA, a leading humanitarian organization fighting global poverty, with operating support and revenues exceeding \$500 million per year.

Broad International Exposure/Emerging Market Experience

Currently implementing the McKinsey Social Initiative's Generation program, which is aimed at fighting unemployment globally, including the goal to reach 1 million young people across five countries in five years. Experience managing international operations at CARE USA, which has long-term programs in countries around the world, including in many emerging markets. Helped develop global health initiatives in leadership roles at the CDC and the Bill & Melinda Gates Foundation. Currently serves on the Board of Trustees of the Center for Strategic and International Studies and the Rockefeller Foundation, and on the Advisory Board of the Harvard Business School Social Enterprise Initiative. Member of the Council on Foreign Relations.



Diversity

African-American; female; a medical specialist with a masters in public health; an expert on health, global development and humanitarian issues.



Governmental or Geopolitical Expertise

Extensive leadership experience in the global public health field through service at the CDC and through a leadership position with the Bill & Melinda Gates Foundation, directing programs on HIV/AIDS and other global health issues. Member of the U.S. Department of State's Foreign Affairs Policy Board and serves on the President's Commission on White House Fellowships. Achieved the rank of Assistant Surgeon General and Rear Admiral in the United States Public Health Service. Director of New America Foundation, a nonprofit, nonpartisan public policy institute and think tank.

2016 Proxy Statement

Evan G. Greenberg



Mr. Greenberg is Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Chubb Limited, the world's largest publicly traded property and casualty insurance company. Prior to ACE Limited's acquisition of The Chubb Corporation in January 2016, Mr. Greenberg was Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of ACE Limited (renamed Chubb Limited), the parent company of the ACE Group of Companies, a global insurance and reinsurance organization. He served as President and Chief Operating Officer of ACE Limited from June 2003 to May 2004, when he was elected to the position of President and Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Greenberg served on the Board of ACE Limited since 2002 and was elected as Chairman of the Board in May 2007. Prior to joining ACE Limited in 2001 as Vice Chairman, Mr. Greenberg spent 25 years at American International Group, Inc. ("AIG"), where he held a number of senior management positions, most recently serving as President and Chief Operating Officer from 1997 until 2000.

Director since 2011 Age: 61 Board Committees: Audit (Chair), Finance **Other Public Company Boards:** Chubb Limited (since 2002)

Specific Qualifications, Attributes, Skills and Experience:

High Level of Financial Experience

Over 40 years of experience in the insurance industry, including managing global businesses and overseeing complex financial transactions involving numerous countries and currencies.

Relevant Senior Leadership/Chief Executive Officer Experience

President and Chief Executive Officer of Chubb Limited (formerly known as ACE Limited) since 2004. President and Chief Operating Officer of ACE Limited from 2003 to 2004. Chief Executive Officer of ACE Overseas General from 2002 to 2003 and Chief Executive Officer of ACE Tempest Re from 2001 to 2002. President of AIG, a leading international insurance organization, from 1997 to 2000.

Broad International Exposure/Emerging Market Experience

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Chubb Limited, a global insurance leader with operations in 54 countries. Extensive experience and business relationships in Asia, including serving as Chief Executive Officer of AIG Far East, based in Japan. Serves on the Board of the National Committee on United States-China Relations, is Chairman Emeritus of the US-ASEAN Business Council, is on the Advisory Council of the Center for the National Interest and serves on the Center for Strategic and International Studies Southeast Asia Advisory Board and Asia Economic Strategy Commission.



Risk Oversight/Management Expertise

Extensive risk oversight/management experience through various underwriting and management positions in the global property, casualty and life insurance sectors.

Alexis M. Herman



Ms. Herman is the Chair and Chief Executive Officer of New Ventures LLC, a corporate consulting company, and has held these positions since 2001. She served as Chair of the Business Advisory Board of Sodexo, Inc., an integrated food and facilities management services company, through 2013 and serves as a member of Toyota Motor Corporation's Diversity Advisory Board and Global Advisory Board. As Chair of the Company's Human Resources Task Force from 2001 to 2006, Ms. Herman worked with the Company to identify ways to improve its human resources policies and practices following the November 2000 settlement of an employment lawsuit. From 1997 to 2001, she served as U.S. Secretary of Labor.

Director since 2007

Age: 68

Board Committees: Compensation, Public Issues and Diversity Review (Chair)

Other Public Company Boards: Cummins Inc. (since 2001), Entergy Corporation (since 2003) and MGM Resorts International (since 2002)



Specific Qualifications, Attributes, Skills and Experience: Broad International Exposure/Emerging Market Experience

15-year public company directorship at Cummins Inc., a global power leader that designs, manufactures, distributes and services diesel and natural gas engines and related technologies and serves customers in more than 190 countries and territories. Serves as U.S. representative on Toyota Motor Corporation's Global Advisory Board. Served as Chair of the Working Party for the Role of Women in the Economy for the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development ("OECD"), an international organization helping governments tackle the economic, social and governance challenges of a globalized economy.



Diversity

African-American: female: professional experience in government, nonprofit/charitable organizations and business. Senior Vice Chair of the Board of Trustees of the National Urban League, a civil rights organization.

Governmental or Geopolitical Expertise

Former U.S. Secretary of Labor from 1997 to 2001. Former White House Assistant to President Clinton and Director of the White House Office of Public Liaison. Served as Director of the Labor Department's Women's Bureau under President Jimmy Carter. Former Chief of Staff and former Vice Chair of the Democratic National Committee. Served as a Trustee of the Clinton Bush Haiti Fund. Served as Chair of the Working Party for the Role of Women in the Economy for OECD. Serves as Chair of the Community Affairs Committee for MGM Resorts International, a global hospitality company.



Risk Oversight/Management Expertise

Significant expertise in management and oversight of labor and human relations risks, including handling the United Parcel Service workers' strike in 1997 while U.S. Secretary of Labor. Chair of the Company's Human Resources Task Force following the November 2000 settlement of an employment lawsuit. Serves as Lead Director and is on the Audit Committee of Cummins Inc. and served as Lead Director and a member of the Audit Committee of MGM Resorts International.



Muhtar Kent



Mr. Kent is Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of the Company. He has held the position of Chairman of the Board since April 2009 and the position of Chief Executive Officer since July 2008. Mr. Kent served as President of the Company from December 2006 through August 2015 and as Chief Operating Officer of the Company from December 2006 through June 2008. From January 2006 through December 2006, Mr. Kent served as President of Coca-Cola International and was elected Executive Vice President of the Company in February 2006. From May 2005 through January 2006, he was President and Chief Operating Officer of the Company's North Asia, Eurasia and Middle East Group, an organization serving a broad and diverse region that included China, Japan and Russia. Mr. Kent originally joined the Company in 1978 and held a variety of marketing and operations roles until 1995, when he became Managing Director of Coca-Cola Amatil Limited-Europe covering bottling operations in 12 countries. From 1999 until his return to the Company in May 2005, he served as President and Chief Executive Officer of the Efes Beverage Group, a diversified beverage company with Coca-Cola and beer operations across Southeast Europe, Turkey and Central Asia.

Director since 2008 Age: 63 Board Committees: Executive (Chair) **Other Public Company Boards:** 3M Company (since 2013)

Specific Qualifications, Attributes, Skills and Experience:

High Level of Financial Experience

Substantial financial experience gained in roles as Chief Executive Officer and President of the Company and Efes Beverage Group, both multinational companies. Oversight of complex financial transactions and profit and loss responsibility during prior operations and leadership roles with the Company. Serves on the Audit Committee and Finance Committee of the Board of Directors of 3M Company.

Relevant Senior Leadership/Chief Executive Officer Experience

In addition to serving as the Company's Chief Executive Officer, served as President and Chief Executive Officer of Efes Beverage Group.

Broad International Exposure/Emerging Market Experience

Over 35 years of Coca-Cola system experience including extensive experience in international markets. Director of 3M Company, a global innovation company. Immediate past Chairman of the International Business Council of the World Economic Forum, member of the Board of Directors of the National Committee on United States-China Relations and a fellow of the Foreign Policy Association. Member of the Board of Directors and past Chairman of the United States-China Business Council and member of the Board of Directors and past Co-Chair of The Consumer Goods Forum. Chairman Emeritus of the US-ASEAN Business Council and a member of the Eminent Persons Group for ASEAN appointed by President Obama and then Secretary of State Clinton. Member of the Board of Trustees of the United States Council for International Business and the Center for Strategic and International Studies and member of the Board of Directors of the Special Olympics.



Extensive Knowledge of the Company's Business and/or Industry

Chairman of the Board (since 2009), Chief Executive Officer (since 2008), Chief Operating Officer (2006 to 2008) and President (2006 to 2015) of the Company. Joined the Company in 1978, holding a variety of marketing and operations leadership positions over the course of his career in the Coca-Cola system.

R	lo	b	e	rt	Α	۱.	K	0	ti	С	



Mr. Kotick is President, Chief Executive Officer and a Director of Activision Blizzard, Inc., an interactive entertainment software company, and has held these positions since 2008. Mr. Kotick served as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the predecessor to Activision Blizzard, Inc. from 1991 to 2008.

Director since 2012 Age: 53 Board Committees: Management Development, Finance

Other Public Company Boards: Activision Blizzard, Inc. (since 1991)

Specific Qualifications, Attributes, Skills and Experience:



High Level of Financial Experience

Over 24 years of experience as Chief Executive Officer of Activision Blizzard, Inc. and its predecessor, including managing complex international operations and financial transactions.

Relevant Senior Leadership/Chief Executive Officer Experience

Served as Chief Executive Officer of Activision Blizzard, Inc.'s predecessor for over 17 years and has served as Chief Executive Officer and President of Activision Blizzard, Inc. since 2008.

Marketing Experience

Significant marketing experience with Activision Blizzard, Inc. and its predecessor, bringing extensive insight about key demographic groups and utilization of technology and social media in marketing.

Innovation/Technology Experience

As Chief Executive Officer of Activision Blizzard, Inc., a worldwide developer and publisher of online, personal computer, video game console, handheld, mobile and tablet games, is responsible for some of the most successful entertainment franchises including Call of Duty®, Destiny®, Hearthstone[®], Skylanders[®] and World of Warcraft[®].





Maria Elena Lagomasino



Maria Elena Lagomasino is the Chief Executive Officer and Managing Partner of WE Family Offices, a global family office serving high net worth families, and has held these positions since March 2013. Ms. Lagomasino served as Chief Executive Officer of GenSpring Family Offices, LLC, an affiliate of SunTrust Banks, Inc., from November 2005 through October 2012. From 2001 to 2005, Ms. Lagomasino was Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of JPMorgan Private Bank, a division of JPMorgan Chase & Co., a global financial services firm. Prior to assuming this position, she was Managing Director of The Chase Manhattan Bank in charge of its Global Private Banking Group. Ms. Lagomasino had been with Chase Manhattan since 1983 in various positions in private banking. She served as a Director of the Company from April 2003 to April 2006.

Director since 2008 Age: 66

Board Committees: Compensation (Chair), Directors and Corporate Governance, Management Development

Other Public Company Boards: Avon Products, Inc. (since 2000)* and The Walt Disney Company (since 2015)

Specific Qualifications, Attributes, Skills and Experience:

High Level of Financial Experience

Over 33 years of experience in the financial industry and a recognized leader in the wealth management industry. Chief Executive Officer and Managing Partner at WE Family Offices, a global family office serving high net worth families. Former Chief Executive Officer of GenSpring Family Offices, LLC, a wealth management firm that is an affiliate of SunTrust Banks, Inc. Founding member of the Institute for the Fiduciary Standard, a nonprofit formed in 2011 to provide research, education and advocacy of the fiduciary standard's importance to investors receiving investment and financial advice.



Relevant Senior Leadership/Chief Executive Officer Experience

Serves as Chief Executive Officer of WE Family Offices and served as Chief Executive Officer of GenSpring Family Offices, LLC and JPMorgan Private Bank

Broad International Exposure/Emerging Market Experience

Significant international experience as Chief Executive Officer of GenSpring Family Offices, LLC and Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of JPMorgan Private Bank. During tenure with The Chase Manhattan Bank, served as Managing Director of the Global Private Banking Group, Vice President of private banking in the Latin America region and head of private banking for the western hemisphere. Over 38 years of experience working with Latin America. Exposure to international issues as a Board member of the Americas Society and the Cuba Study Group, as a Trustee of the National Geographic Society and as a member of the Council on Foreign Relations.



Diversitv

Hispanic; female; professional experience in global capital markets.

In December 2015, Avon Products, Inc. announced that Ms. Lagomasino intends to resign from the Board effective upon the closing of a transaction with respect to its North America business, which is expected to occur in the spring of 2016.

Sam Nunn



Mr. Nunn is Co-Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Nuclear Threat Initiative, a Director since 1997; Lead Independent position he has held since 2001. The Nuclear Threat Initiative is a nonprofit organization Director since 2014 working to reduce the global threats from nuclear, biological and chemical weapons. He is Age: 77 Chairman Emeritus of the Board of Trustees of the Center for Strategic and International Board Committees: Directors and Studies. He served as a member of the U.S. Senate from 1972 through 1996. He previously Corporate Governance (Chair), Finance, served as a Director of Chevron Corporation from 1997 to 2011, Dell Inc. from 1999 to 2011 Public Issues and Diversity Review where he served as Lead Director, General Electric Company from 1997 to April 2013 and Hess Corporation from August 2012 to May 2013. Other Public Company Boards: None

Specific Qualifications, Attributes, Skills and Experience:



High Level of Financial Experience

Has served on the Company's Finance Committee for over 18 years. Served on the Finance Committee of Dell Inc. and the Audit Committees of Dell Inc. and Scientific-Atlanta, Inc.

Broad International Exposure/Emerging Market Experience

16-year public company directorship at General Electric Company, one of the largest and most diversified infrastructure and financial services corporations in the world which serves customers in more than 100 countries. 14-year public company directorship at Chevron Corporation, which has U.S. and international subsidiaries that engage in fully integrated petroleum operations, chemicals operations, mining activities, power generation and energy services. 12-year public company directorship at Dell Inc., a global information technology company. Also served as a Director of Hess Corporation, a global independent energy company. Chairman Emeritus of the Board of Trustees of the Center for Strategic and International Studies, a preeminent international policy institution, where he served as Chairman from 1999 to November 2015.

Marketing Experience

Regular exposure to marketing and marketing-related technology through directorships at Dell Inc., a global information technology company, General Electric Company, a diversified technology, media and financial services company and Chevron Corporation, one of the world's largest integrated energy companies.

Governmental or Geopolitical Expertise

Recognized leader in the U.S. on national security and foreign policy. Extensive experience in government, public and social policy and international affairs as a result of his 24 years of service as a U.S. Senator from Georgia and since 2001 as Co-Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Nuclear Threat Initiative. During his tenure in the U.S. Senate, chaired the Senate Committee on Armed Services and the Permanent Subcommittee on Investigations. Also served on the Senate Intelligence and Small Business Committees. Continues his service in the public policy arena as Distinguished Professor in the Sam Nunn School of International Affairs at Georgia Institute of Technology. Served as Chair of the Public Responsibilities Committee at General Electric Company and served as Chair of the Public Policy Committee at Chevron Corporation.





David B. Weinberg



M

Mr. Weinberg is Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of Judd Enterprises, Inc., a private, investment-management office with diverse interests in a variety of asset classes, and President of Digital Bandwidth LLC, its private, early-stage technology investing affiliate, and has held these positions since 1996. From September 1989 to June 1996, Mr. Weinberg was a partner in the corporate, securities and investment-management practice of Mayer, Brown & Platt, a leading international law firm.

Director since 2015 Age: 64 Board Committees: Audit Other Public Company Boards: None

Specific Qualifications, Attributes, Skills and Experience:

High Level of Financial Experience

In his position as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Judd Enterprises, Inc., oversees substantial assets in a wide variety of asset classes. Significant experience in reviewing financial statements as an investor, and as a securities lawyer when structuring transactions. Previously served on the audit committee and currently serves on the executive, finance and investment committees of Northwestern University.

Relevant Senior Leadership/Chief Executive Officer Experience

Since 1996, has served as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Judd Enterprises, Inc., a private, investment-management office, and President of Digital BandWidth LLC, its private early-technology investing affiliate.

Innovation/Technology Experience

Extensive entrepreneurial experience as President of Digital Bandwidth LLC, overseeing investments in early stage companies focusing on technologies, including wireless networks, speech recognition, network security and radio frequency identification tags.

Risk Oversight/Management Expertise

Extensive risk oversight and management experience overseeing a private investment management office as Chief Executive Officer of Judd Enterprises, Inc. As a partner in the corporate, securities and investment-management practice of the Mayer, Brown & Platt law firm, advised clients on a broad range of regulatory and transactional matters. Additional risk oversight experience through former service on the audit committee and current service on the executive, finance and investment committees of Northwestern University.



BOARD AND COMMITTEE GOVERNANCE

Board Leadership Structure

The Company's governance framework provides the Board with flexibility to select the appropriate leadership structure for the Company. In making leadership structure determinations, the Board considers many factors, including the specific needs of the business and what is in the best interests of the Company's shareowners. The current leadership structure is comprised of a combined Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer, a Lead Independent Director, Board committees led primarily by independent Directors and active engagement by all Directors. The Board believes this structure provides an effective balance between strong Company leadership and appropriate safeguards and oversight by independent Directors.

Board Leadership Structure

- Chairman of the Board and CEO: Muhtar Kent
- Lead Independent Director: Sam Nunn
- Audit, Compensation and Directors/Corporate Governance Committees led by independent Directors
- Active engagement by all Directors

Duties and Responsibilities of Lead Independent Director

The Lead Independent Director, who is elected by the independent Directors for a one-year term:

- presides at all meetings of the Board at which the Chairman of the Board is not present, including all meetings of independent Directors and non-employee Directors;
- encourages and facilitates active participation of all Directors;
- serves as a liaison between the independent Directors and the Chairman of the Board on sensitive issues and otherwise when appropriate;
- approves Board meeting materials for distribution to and consideration by the Board;
- approves Board meeting agendas after conferring with the Chairman of the Board and other members of the Board, as appropriate, and may add agenda items at his or her discretion:
- approves Board meeting schedules to assure that there is sufficient time for discussion of all agenda items;
- has the authority to call meetings of the independent Directors;
- leads the Board's annual evaluation of the Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer;
- monitors and coordinates with management on corporate governance issues and developments;
- is available to advise the committee chairs in fulfilling their designated roles and responsibilities to the Board;
- is available for consultation and communication with shareowners where appropriate, upon reasonable request; and
- performs such other functions as the Board or other Directors may request.

Leadership Structure – Details and Rationale

Consistent with the Board's commitment to corporate governance practices that are in the best interests of the Company and its shareowners, at least one executive session of the non-employee Directors each year includes a review of the Board's leadership structure and consideration of whether the position of Chairman of the Board should be held by the Chief Executive Officer. This section describes the details and the Board's rationale for its current leadership structure.

Under the Company's By-Laws, the Chairman of the Board presides over meetings of the Board, presides over meetings of shareowners, consults and advises the Board and its committees on the business and affairs of the Company, and performs such other duties as may be assigned by the Board. The Chief Executive Officer is in general charge of the affairs of the Company, subject to the overall direction and supervision of the Board and its committees and subject to such powers as reserved by the Board. Muhtar Kent serves as both Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer.

The duties and responsibilities of the Lead Independent Director are described above and are set forth in the Company's Corporate Governance Guidelines and the Charter for the Committee on Directors and Corporate Governance. Although annually elected, the Lead Independent Director is generally expected to serve for more than one year. Sam Nunn serves as the Lead Independent Director.



Importantly, all Directors play an active role in overseeing the Company's business both at the Board and committee levels. As set forth in the Company's Corporate Governance Guidelines, the core responsibility of the Directors is to exercise their business judgment to act in what they reasonably believe to be in the best interests of the Company and its shareowners. The 2016 Director nominees consist of one Director nominee who serves as a member of management and 14 non-employee Director nominees. The non-employee Director nominees are skilled and experienced leaders in business, education, government and public policy. They currently serve or have served as chief executives and members of senior management of Fortune 1000 companies, investment banking and financial services firms, private for-profit and nonprofit organizations, and as U.S. federal, state and local government officials. In these roles, the non-employee Director nominees have been called upon to provide solutions to various complex issues and are expected to, and do, ask hard questions of management. As such, the non-employee Director nominees are well-equipped to oversee the success of the business and to provide advice and counsel to the Chief Executive Officer and Company management.

As part of each regularly scheduled Board meeting, the non-employee Directors meet in executive session without the Chief Executive Officer present. These meetings allow non-employee Directors to discuss issues of importance to the Company, including the business and affairs of the Company as well as matters concerning management, without any member of management present. In addition, the independent Directors meet in executive session several times a year at regularly scheduled Board meetings. All of the Board committees, except the Management Development Committee and the Executive Committee, are chaired by independent Directors.

The Board believes that leadership of both the Board and the Company by Mr. Kent is the optimal structure to guide the Company and maintain the focus required to achieve the Company's long-term business goals. The Company's business is complex and its products are sold in more than 200 countries around the world. Further, most of the Company's products are manufactured and sold by bottling partners around the world, most of which are independent companies. This franchise structure requires the Chief Executive Officer to have strong relationships with the leaders of the bottlers and be close to the many facets of the business. Given the complexity and global reach of our business, the Board believes the Chief Executive Officer is in the best position to focus Directors' attention on critical business matters and to speak for and lead both the Company and the Board.

The Board believes that the Company's leadership structure is effective and currently serves the business and shareowners well.

Board Oversight of Risk

The Board oversees the proper safeguarding of the assets of the Company, the maintenance of appropriate financial and other internal controls and the Company's compliance with applicable laws and regulations and proper governance. Inherent in these responsibilities is the Board's understanding and oversight of the various risks facing the Company. The Board does not view risk in isolation. Risks are considered in virtually every business decision. The Board recognizes that it is neither possible nor prudent to eliminate all risk. Indeed, purposeful and appropriate risk taking is essential for the Company to be competitive on a global basis and to achieve the Company's long-term strategic objectives.

Oversight of Risk

- The Board oversees risk management.
- Board committees, which meet regularly and report back to the full Board, play significant roles in carrying out the risk oversight function.
- Company management is charged with managing risk, through robust internal processes and effective internal controls.

Effective risk oversight is an important priority of the Board. The Board has implemented a risk governance framework designed to:

- understand critical risks in the Company's business and strategy;
- allocate responsibilities for risk oversight among the full Board and its committees;
- evaluate the Company's risk management processes and whether they are functioning adequately;
- facilitate open communication between management and Directors; and
- foster an appropriate culture of integrity and risk awareness.

The Company believes that its leadership structure supports the risk oversight function of the Board (see page 28). The Board implements its risk oversight function both as a whole and through delegation to Board committees, which meet regularly and report back to the full Board. Because overseeing risk is an ongoing process and inherent in the Company's strategic decisions, the Board discusses risk throughout the year at meetings in general terms and in relation to specific proposed actions.



The table below summarizes the significant role Board committees play in carrying out the risk oversight function.

o	
Committee	Risk Oversight Focus Areas
Audit Committee	Oversees risks related to the Company's financial statements, the financial reporting process, and accounting and legal matters.
	Oversees the internal audit function, the Company's ethics programs, including the Codes of Business Conduct, and the Company's quality, safety, environmental assurance and information technology security programs including cybersecurity.
	Periodically receives reports on and discusses governance of the Company's risk management process and reviews significant risks and exposures identified by management, the internal auditors or the Independent Auditors (whether financial, operating or otherwise), and management's steps to address them.
	In connection with its oversight of these matters, the committee members will regularly meet separately with the Company's General Counsel, Chief of Internal Audit and representatives of the Independent Auditors.
Compensation Committee	Evaluates the risks and rewards associated with the Company's compensation philosophy and programs.
	Reviews and approves compensation programs with features that mitigate risk without diminishing the incentive nature of the compensation.
Finance Committee	Oversees certain financial matters and risks relating to the Company's capital structure, pension plan investments, currency risk and hedging programs, taxes, mergers and acquisitions and capital projects.
Management Development Committee	Oversees management development and succession planning across senior management positions.
Public Issues and Diversity Review Committee	Oversees issues that could pose significant reputational risk to the Company.
Committee on Directors and Corporate Governance	Oversees the Company's governance practices, Director succession and committee leadership to manage risks associated with corporate governance.

While the Board and its committees oversee risk management, Company management is charged with managing risk. The Company has robust internal processes and an effective internal control environment which facilitate the identification and management of risks and regular communication with the Board. These include an enterprise risk management program, a Risk Council and Risk Steering Committee under the leadership of the Chief Financial Officer and Chief Operating Officer, regular internal management Disclosure Committee meetings, Codes of Business Conduct, robust product quality standards and processes, a strong Ethics and Compliance Office, and a comprehensive internal and external audit process. The Board and the Audit Committee monitor and oversee the evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal controls and the risk management program. Management communicates routinely with the Board, Board committees and individual Directors on the significant risks identified and how they are being managed. Directors are free to, and indeed often do, communicate directly with senior management.

To learn more about risks facing the Company, you can review the factors included in Part I, "Item 1A. Risk Factors" in the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015 (the "Form 10-K"). The risks described in the Form 10-K are not the only risks facing the Company. Additional risks and uncertainties not currently known or that may currently be deemed to be immaterial also may materially adversely affect the Company's business, financial condition or results of operations in future periods.

Board and Committee Meetings and Attendance

Regular meetings of the Board are held at such times as the Board may determine. Special meetings of the Board may be called by the Chairman, the Secretary or by a majority of the Directors by written request to the Secretary. Committee meetings can be called by the committee's chair or by a majority of committee members

In 2015, the Board held six meetings and committees of the Board held a total of 40 meetings. Overall attendance at such meetings was approximately 98%. Each Director attended 75% or more of the aggregate of all meetings of the Board and the committees on which he or she served during 2015.



Board Committees

The Board has an Audit Committee, a Compensation Committee, a Committee on Directors and Corporate Governance, an Executive Committee, a Finance Committee, a Management Development Committee and a Public Issues and Diversity Review Committee. The Board has adopted a written charter for each of these committees, which is available on the Company's website *www.coca-colacompany.com*, by clicking on "Investors" and then "Corporate Governance." Information about each committee is provided below.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Meetings Held in 2015: 11							
Members	Independence*	Skills/qualifications					
Evan G. Greenberg (Chair)	~	۲					
Ronald W. Allen	~	۵ کې کې کې					
Marc Bolland	~	۵ 😧 😭					
David B. Weinberg	~	۲					

- * Each member of the Audit Committee is financially literate, knowledgeable and qualified to review financial statements, and meets the independence requirements of the NYSE, the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "1934 Act"), and the Company's Corporate Governance Guidelines.
- ** The Board has designated Mr. Greenberg as the "Audit Committee financial expert".

Primary Responsibilities:

- Represents and assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibility relating to the integrity of the Company's financial statements and the financial reporting process, the systems of internal accounting and financial controls, the internal audit function and the annual independent audit of the Company's financial statements.
- Oversees the Company's compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the Independent Auditors' qualifications and independence, the performance of the Company's internal audit function and the Independent Auditors, the Company's ethical compliance programs, including the Company's Codes of Business Conduct, and the Company's quality, safety, environmental assurance and information technology security programs.
- Oversees the Company's enterprise risk management ("ERM") program and has direct oversight over certain risks within the ERM framework. Periodically receives reports on and discusses governance of the Company's risk management process and reviews significant risks and exposures identified to the committee (whether financial, operating or otherwise), and management's steps to address them.
- Additional information regarding the Audit Committee can be found beginning on page 84.

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

Meetings Held in 2015: 7

Members	Independence*	Skills/qualifications
Maria Elena Lagomasino (Chair)	~	۵ کې کې
Ronald W. Allen	~	۵ کې کې کې
Helene D. Gayle	~	۵ 🚯 🧕 🗉
Alexis M. Herman	~	9 🎲 🏟 🥑

* Each member of the Compensation Committee meets the independence requirements of the NYSE, the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Tax Code") and the Company's Corporate Governance Guidelines.

Primary Responsibilities:

- Responsible for evaluating and approving compensation plans, policies and programs applicable primarily to the Company's senior executive group, which includes all individuals subject to Section 16 of the 1934 Act.
- Approves all equity awards to employees, including stock options, performance share units, restricted stock and restricted stock units.
- Sole authority to retain, terminate, approve fees and other terms of engagement of its compensation consultant, and to obtain advice and assistance from internal or external legal, accounting or other advisors.
- Understands and considers shareowner viewpoints on compensation.
- Additional information regarding the Compensation Committee can be found beginning on page 47.

Legend: Specific Qualifications, Attributes, Skills and Experience (see page 16)



High level of Relevant senior leadership/Chief financial experience



Broad international Diversity of race, ethnicity background or profess experience

Diversity of race, ethnicity, gender, age, cultural Extensive knowledge of the background or professional experience Company's business and/or industry

Extensive knowledge of the





/ Governmental or Risk oversight/ geopolitical expertise management expertise

2016 Proxy Statement





COMMITTEE ON DIRECTORS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Meetings Held in 2015: 4				
Members	Independence*	Skills/qualifications		
Sam Nunn (Chair)	~	۵ 🔮		
Ana Botín	~	۱		
Richard M. Daley	~	۲ کې کې کې		
Barry Diller	~	٢		
Maria Elena Lagomasino	~	۲		

* Each member of the Committee on Directors and Corporate Governance meets the independence requirements of the NYSE and the Company's Corporate Governance Guidelines

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Meetings Held in 2015: 3				
Members	Independence	Skills/qualifications		
Muhtar Kent (Chair)	×	۵ 😧 🐑		
Herbert A. Allen	X	۵ 🖨 🏠 🙆		
Barry Diller	~	۲		

Primary Responsibilities:

Authorized to exercise the power and authority of the Board between meetings, except the powers reserved for the Board or the shareowners by Delaware General Corporation Law. If matters are delegated to the Executive Committee by the Board, the committee may act at a meeting or by written consent in lieu of a meeting.

Primary Responsibilities:

- Responsible for considering and making recommendations concerning Director nominees and the function and needs of the Board and its committees.
- Regularly reviews the Company's Corporate Governance Guidelines and provides oversight of the corporate governance affairs of the Board and the Company consistent with the long-term best interests of the Company and its shareowners.
- Coordinates the annual review of Board, committee and Director evaluation process, which is led by the Lead Independent Director.
- Understands and considers shareowner viewpoints on corporate governance matters.
- 0 Additional information regarding the Committee on Directors and Corporate Governance can be found beginning on page 15.

FINANCE COMMITTEE

Meetings Held in 2	015: 6	
Members	Independence	Skills/qualifications
Barry Diller (Chair)	~	۲ 🔮 🏟
Herbert A. Allen	X	۵ 🕒 🌰
Evan G. Greenberg	V	۲ کې کې کې
Robert A. Kotick	~	(1)
Sam Nunn	~	۵ 🔮 🙆

Primary Responsibilities:

- Helps the Board fulfill its responsibilities relating to oversight of the Company's financial affairs, including reviewing and recommending to the Board dividend policy, capital expenditures, debt and other financings, major strategic investments and other transactions.
- Oversees the Company's policies and procedures on risk management, hedging, swaps and other derivative transactions.

Legend: Specific Qualifications, Attributes, Skills and Experience (see page 16)



High level of Relevant senior leadership/Chief financial experience





Diversity of race, ethnicity, gender, age, cultural



Governmental or



Executive Officer experience





background or professional experience







technology geopolitical expertise management expertise experience

The Coa Cola Company 32

2016 Proxy Statement
MANAGEMENT DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

Meetings Held in 2	2015: 5		COMMITTEE			
Members	Independence	Skills/qualifications	Meetings Held in 2	015: 4		
Herbert A. Allen	x	🏦 🔐 🌗 🔘	Members	Independence	Skills/qualifications	
(Chair)			Alexis M. Herman	~	I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I	
Barry Diller	~	🏦 🕋 🔇 🔿	(Chair)	•		
·	·		Howard G. Buffett	~	I) (A) (A) (I)	
Robert A. Kotick	~	🏦 🕋 🔘 🔇	noward G. Dunch	•	I	
			Helene D. Gavle	~	🔒 🔇 🚯 🌦	
Maria Elena	~	(ffi) (iii) (ffi) (ffi)	incluie Di Guște	•		
Lagomasino			Sam Nunn	~	۵ 🔇 🏠	
Primary Respons			Sum runn			
Helps the Board fulfill its responsibilities relating to oversight of talent development for senior positions and succession planning.			Primary Respons		ilities relating to diversity cornorate social	

responsibility and public issues of significance, which may affect the shareowners, the Company, the business community and the general public.

PUBLIC ISSUES AND DIVERSITY REVIEW

View the Company's Governance Materials

You can view the Company's governance materials, including the Certificate of Incorporation, By-Laws, Corporate Governance Guidelines and Board Committee Charters on the Company's website, www.coca-colacompany.com, click on "Investors" and then "Corporate Governance." Instructions on how to obtain copies of these materials are included in the response to guestion 26 in the Questions and Answers section on page 100.

Communication with the Board

The Board has established a process to facilitate communication by shareowners and other interested parties with Directors. Communications can be addressed to Directors in care of the Office of the Secretary, The Coca-Cola Company, P.O. Box 1734, Atlanta, Georgia 30301 or by e-mail to asktheboard@coca-cola.com. At the direction of the Board, all mail received may be opened and screened for security purposes. All mail, other than trivial, obscene, unduly hostile, threatening, illegal or similarly unsuitable items, will be forwarded or delievered, as appropriate. Mail addressed to a particular Director will be forwarded or delivered to that Director. Mail addressed to "Outside Directors" or "Non-Employee Directors" will be forwarded or delivered to the Lead Independent Director. Mail addressed to the "Board of Directors" will be forwarded or delivered to the Chairman of the Board and the Lead Independent Director.

Legend: Specific Qualifications, Attributes, Skills and Experience (see page 16)



High level of financial experience

Relevant senior leadership/Chief Executive Officer experience

Ο Broad international exposure/emerging market experience





Company's business and/or industry experience



technology

experience



Risk oversight/ Governmental or geopolitical expertise management expertise

2016 Proxy Statement

(a)

The Coa Cola Company 33

ADDITIONAL GOVERNANCE FEATURES

Shareowner Engagement

Our Board believes that shareowners should have line of sight into decisions made in the boardroom. We do this by making a full-time effort of building relationships and trust over time with our shareowners. We have for some time cultivated meaningful and value-added relationships with our shareowners through an engagement program that is management led and overseen by the Board.

Shareowner Engagement

Our longstanding commitment to shareowner engagement includes:

- An engagement program that is management led and overseen by the Board
- Dedicated resources to actively engage with shareowners on a variety of topics throughout the year
- Engagements designed to address questions and concerns, seek input and provide perspective on Company policies and practices
- Feedback provided to the Board on a regular basis and reflected in enhancements to policies and practices

The Board long ago established dedicated resources to actively engage with shareowners. The Company engages with shareowners on a variety of topics throughout the year to ensure we are addressing questions and concerns, to seek input and to provide perspective on Company policies and practices.

Shareowner feedback from this engagement is considered by the Board and reflected in enhancements to policies and practices. One recent example is our adoption of a proxy access bylaw, which the Board adopted following several months of thoughtful discussions with shareowners.

In addition to direct engagement, the Company has instituted a number of complementary mechanisms that allow shareowners to effectively communicate a point of view with the Board, including:

- the annual election of Directors and a majority vote standard (see page 18);
- the annual advisory vote to approve executive compensation (see page 46);
- our commitment to thoughtfully consider shareowner proposals submitted to the Company (see page 100);
- the ability to attend and voice opinions at the Annual Meeting of Shareowners (see page 98);
- our dedicated 2016 Annual Meeting page on our Company website (see page 99);
- the ability to direct communications to individual Directors or the entire Board (see page 100); and
- a quarterly newsletter for our shareowners (see www.coca-colacompany.com/shareowner-newsletter-signup).

Public Policy Engagement

We participate in public policy dialogues around the world related to our industry and business priorities, our more than 700,000 system associates, our shareowners and the communities we serve.

In the U.S., the Company and our affiliated political action committees comply with applicable laws and other requirements regarding contributions to: political organizations, candidates for federal, state and local public office, ballot measure campaigns, political action committees and trade associations. We engage with organizations and individuals to make our views clear and uphold our commitment to help support the communities in which we operate. We base our U.S. political contributions on many considerations, supporting candidates who take reasonable positions on policies that promote economic growth as well as affect our long-term business objectives.

The Public Issues and Diversity Review Committee of our Board of Directors reviews our advocacy efforts, including political contributions. Additional information about our public policy engagement efforts, including our political contributions policy and a report of U.S. political contributions from our Company and from associate-funded programs, which include The Coca-Cola Company Nonpartisan Committee for Good Government and various other state political action committees, can be viewed on our Company website, www.coca-colacompany.com, by clicking on "Investors" and then "Public Policy Engagement."



Sustainability

At The Coca-Cola Company, we remain committed to integrating sustainability into our everyday actions to help create value for shareowners and the communities in which the Company operates. Our "Me, We, World" sustainability framework is our shared vision for how we strive to create social value and make a positive difference for the communities we serve through enhancing people's well-being (Me), building stronger communities (We), and working to protect the environment we all share (World). We believe the majority of innovation over the next decade will happen at the intersection of sustainability and the supply chain. Working together with our bottling partners on our leadership priorities to empower women, better manage water resources and promote wellbeing gives us opportunities to build business resiliency and add value across our system.

In addition, our pay-for-performance philosophy awards executives in a way that motivates them to operate the Company's business in a profitable and more sustainable manner, consistent with the six areas highlighted in the Company's 2020 Vision-people, portfolio, partners, planet, profit and productivity.

To learn more about the Company's sustainability efforts, including our comprehensive sustainability commitments, please view our 2014/2015 Sustainability Report on the Company's website, by visiting www.coca-colacompany.com/sustainability.

Special Meeting of Shareowners

Our By-Laws provide that a special meeting of shareowners may be called by the Chairman of the Board, the Chief Executive Officer, a majority of our Board of Directors or the Secretary, if appropriately requested by a person (or group of persons) beneficially owning at least a 25% "net long position" of the Company's Common Stock. A shareowner's "net long position" is generally defined as the amount of Common Stock in which the shareowner holds a positive (also known as "long") economic interest, reduced by the amount of Common Stock in which the shareowner holds a negative (also known as "short") economic interest.

Anti-Hedging, Anti-Short Sale and Anti-Pledging Policies

The Company's hedging policy prohibits Directors, the Company's executive officers and other designated employees from purchasing any financial instrument that is designed to hedge or offset any decrease in the market value of the Company's Common Stock, including prepaid variable forward contracts, equity swaps, collars and exchange funds. Directors, the Company's executive officers and other designated employees are also prohibited from engaging in short sales related to the Company's Common Stock. All other employees are discouraged from entering into hedging transactions and engaging in short sales related to the Company's Common Stock.

The Company's pledging policy discourages any pledging of the Company's Common Stock, including holding Common Stock in a margin account. In addition, Directors and the Company's executive officers are required to obtain pre-approval from the Company's General Counsel before pledging shares of Common Stock. Such approval will be granted only if the individual can clearly demonstrate the financial capacity to repay the loan without resorting to the pledged securities.

Codes of Business Conduct

The Company has adopted a Code of Business Conduct for Non-Employee Directors. In addition, the Company has adopted a Code of Business Conduct applicable to the Company's employees, including the Named Executive Officers. Our associates, bottling partners, suppliers, customers and consumers can ask questions about our Code and other ethics and compliance issues, or report potential violations, through EthicsLine, a global Internet and telephone information and reporting service. The Codes of Business Conduct and information about EthicsLine are available on the Company's website at www.cocacolacompany.com, by clicking on "Investors", then "Corporate Governance" and then "Code of Business Conduct." In the event the Company amends or waives any of the provisions of the Code of Business Conduct applicable to our principal executive officer, principal financial officer or controller that relates to any element of the definition of "code of ethics" enumerated in Item 406(b) of Regulation S-K under the 1934 Act, the Company intends to disclose these actions on the Company's website.



DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

The Committee on Directors and Corporate Governance is responsible for reviewing and making recommendations to the Board regarding all matters pertaining to compensation paid to Directors for Board, committee and committee chair services. Under the Committee on Directors and Corporate Governance's charter, the committee is authorized to engage consultants or advisors in connection with its review and analysis of Director compensation, although it did not engage any consultants or advisors in 2015. Directors who also serve as employees of the Company do not receive payment for service as Directors.

In making non-employee Director compensation recommendations, the Committee on Directors and Corporate Governance takes various factors into consideration, including, but not limited to, the responsibilities of Directors generally, as well as committee chairs, and the form and amount of compensation paid to Directors by comparable companies. The Board reviews the recommendations of the Committee on Directors and Corporate Governance and determines the form and amount of Director compensation.

Director compensation is provided under The Coca-Cola Company Directors' Plan effective January 1, 2013 (the "Directors' Plan"), which is described further below. The Committee on Directors and Corporate Governance and the Board believe that the Directors' Plan:

- ties the majority of Directors' compensation to shareowner interests because the value of share units fluctuates up or down depending on the stock price;
- focuses on the long term, since the share units are not paid until after the Director leaves the Board; and
- is equitable based on the work required of Directors serving an entity of the Company's size and scope.

2015 Annual Compensation

Director compensation in 2015 remained the same as in 2014. Under the Directors' Plan, 2015 annual compensation to non-employee Directors consisted of \$50,000 paid in cash in guarterly installments and \$200,000 credited in deferred share units. Non-employee Directors have the option of deferring all or a portion of their cash compensation into share units that are paid out in cash after leaving the Board. The number of share units awarded to non-employee Directors is equal to the number of shares of Common Stock that could be purchased on the open market for \$200,000 on April 1 (or the next business day if April 1 is not a business day). Share units do not have voting rights but are credited with hypothetical dividends that are reinvested in additional units to the extent dividends on Common Stock are received by shareowners. Share units will be paid out in cash on the later of (i) January 15 of the year following the year in which the Director leaves the Board and (ii) six months after the Director leaves the Board. Directors may elect to take their payout in a lump sum or in up to five annual installments

In addition, each non-employee Director who served as a committee chair in 2015 received an additional \$20,000 in cash, or a prorated portion thereof where applicable. Directors do not receive fees for attending Board or committee meetings. Non-employee Directors are reimbursed for reasonable expenses incurred in connection with Board-related activities.

The following table details the total compensation of the Company's non-employee Directors for the year ended December 31, 2015.



2015 Director Compensation Table

	Fees Earned o				Non-Equity Incentive Plan	Change in Pension Value and Nonqualified Deferred Compensation	All Other	
4	Paid in Cash		Stock Awards	Option Awards	Compensation	Earnings	Compensation	Total
Name ¹	(\$		(\$)	(\$)	(\$)	(\$)	(\$)	(\$)
(a)	(b		(c)	(d)	(e)	(f)	(g)	(h)
Herbert A. Allen	\$ 70,000		200,000	\$ 0	\$ 0	\$ 0	\$ 368	\$ 270,368
Ronald W. Allen	50,000		200,000	0	0	0	1,190	251,190
Marc Bolland	50,000		200,000	0	0	0	368	250,368
Ana Botín	50,000		200,000	0	0	0	368	250,368
Howard G. Buffett	50,000)	200,000	0	0	0	6,737	256,737
Richard M. Daley	50,000)	200,000	0	0	0	3,292	253,292
Barry Diller	70,000)	200,000	0	0	0	11,499	281,499
Helene D. Gayle	50,000)	200,000	0	0	0	368	250,368
Evan G. Greenberg	70,000)	200,000	0	0	0	929	270,929
Alexis M. Herman	70,000)	200,000	0	0	0	5,693	275,693
Robert A. Kotick	50,000)	200,000	0	0	0	368	250,368
Maria Elena								
Lagomasino	70,000)	200,000	0	0	0	36,029	306,029
Sam Nunn	70,000)	200,000	0	0	0	36,584	306,584
James D. Robinson III ²	25,000)	40,000	0	0	0	22,341	87,341
Peter V. Ueberroth ²	25,000)	40,000	0	0	0	13,536	78,536
David B. Weinberg	50,000)	200,000	0	0	0	660	250,660

1 Muhtar Kent is a Company employee and therefore receives no compensation under the Directors' Plan.

2 Messrs. Robinson and Ueberroth did not stand for election at the 2015 Annual Meeting of Shareowners. Therefore, the information above reflects their service on the Board through April 29. 2015.

Fees Earned or Paid in Cash(Column (b))

The amounts reported in the Fees Earned or Paid in Cash column reflect the cash fees earned by each non-employee Director in 2015, whether or not such fees were deferred. In addition to the \$50,000 annual cash fees (or prorated portion thereof), each of Mses. Herman and Lagomasino, and Messrs. H. Allen, Diller, Greenberg and Nunn received an additional \$20,000 for service as a committee chair. Ms. Botin and Messrs. R. Allen, Daley and Kotick each deferred their 2015 cash compensation into 1,234 share units. Ms. Lagomasino and Messrs. Diller, Greenberg and Nunn each deferred their 2015 cash compensation into 1,728 share units. The number of share units is equal to the number of shares of Common Stock that could be purchased for the deferred amount based on the average of the high and low prices of a share of Common Stock on April 1, 2015.

Stock Awards (Column (c))

The amounts reported in the Stock Awards column reflect the grant date fair value associated with each Director's share units that are required to be deferred under the Directors' Plan, calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification 718, Compensation-Stock Compensation ("ASC Topic 718").

The table below shows the number of outstanding share units held by each Director as of December 31, 2015.

	Outstanding Share Units
Director	as of 12/31/2015
Mr. H. Allen	73,296
Mr. R. Allen	71,677
Mr. Bolland	5,097
Ms. Botín	15,096
Mr. Buffett	24,475
Mr. Daley	25,579
Mr. Diller	104,250
Ms. Gayle	14,921
Mr. Greenberg	31,187
Ms. Herman	36,506
Mr. Kotick	23,858
Ms. Lagomasino	38,290
Mr. Nunn	129,876
Mr. Robinson	115,436
Mr. Ueberroth	131,574
Mr. Weinberg	5,097

All Other Compensation (Column (g))

As described further below, the amounts reported in the All Other Compensation column reflect, where applicable, Company matching gifts to nonprofit organizations, medical and dental insurance, the costs of Company products provided to Directors without charge, and the premiums for life insurance (including accidental death and dismemberment and business travel coverage). In addition, infrequently, spouses and guests of Directors may ride along on Company aircraft for personal reasons when the aircraft is already going to a specific destination for a business reason, which has minimal incremental cost to the Company. When this occurs, a nominal amount is included in the All Other Compensation column. In addition, income is imputed to the Director for income tax purposes and the Director is not provided a tax reimbursement.

Perquisites and Other Personal Benefits

The Directors are eligible to participate in the Company's matching gifts program, which is the same program available to all U.S. based employees and retirees. In 2015, this program matched up to \$10,000 of charitable contributions on a two-for-one basis to tax-exempt arts, cultural, environmental and educational organizations. The amounts paid by the Company in 2015 to match gifts made by the non-employee Directors under this program are set forth in the table below. The total cost of matching contributions on behalf of the non-employee Directors for 2015 gifts was \$70,000.

Name	Matching C	Gifts
Mr. Diller	\$ 10.),000
Ms. Lagomasino		,000
Mr. Nunn	20.),000
Mr. Robinson	20.),000

For Directors who elected coverage prior to 2006 (Messrs. Nunn and Ueberroth), the Company provides medical and dental coverage on the same terms and at the same cost as available to U.S. Company employees. This coverage was discontinued in 2006 for all other Directors. The total cost for this health coverage for the participating non-employee Directors in 2015 was \$19,612.

To help expand the Directors' knowledge of the Company's products, the Company provides certain products to Directors' offices without charge. The total cost of Company products provided during 2015 to non-employee Directors was \$48,577.

Insurance Premiums

For Directors who elected coverage prior to 2006, the Company provides life insurance coverage, which includes \$30,000 term life insurance and \$100,000 group accidental death and dismemberment insurance. This coverage was discontinued in 2006 for all other Directors. The Company cost for this insurance for participating non-employee Directors is set forth in the table below. The total cost for these insurance benefits to the participating non-employee Directors in 2015 was \$2,025.

Name	Life Insurance Premiums
Mr. R. Allen	\$ 534
Mr. Diller	534
Mr. Nunn	578
Mr. Robinson	186
Mr. Ueberroth	193

Business travel accident insurance coverage of \$200,000 is provided to all non-employee Directors while traveling on Company business, at a Company cost of \$1 per Director.

DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE AND RELATED PERSON TRANSACTIONS

Independence Determinations

Under the corporate governance listing standards of the NYSE and the Company's Corporate Governance Guidelines, the Board must consist of a majority of independent Directors. In making independence determinations, the Board observes NYSE and Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") criteria and considers all relevant facts and circumstances. Under NYSE corporate governance listing standards, to be considered independent:

- the Director must not have a disqualifying relationship, as defined in the NYSE standards; and
- the Board must affirmatively determine that the Director otherwise has no material relationship with the Company directly, or as an officer, shareowner or partner of an organization that has a relationship with the Company. To aid in the Director independence assessment process, the Board has adopted categorical standards that identify categories of relationships that the Board has determined would not affect a Director's independence. These categorical standards, which are part of the Company's Corporate Governance Guidelines, are described below.



Categorical Standards

The following will not be considered material relationships that would impair a Director's independence:

Immaterial Sales/Purchases	The Director is an executive officer or employee or any member of his or her immediate family is an executive officer of any other organization that does business with the Company and the annual sales to, or purchases from, the Company are less than \$1 million or 1% of the consolidated gross revenues of such organization, whichever is more.
Immaterial Indebtedness	The Director or any member of his or her immediate family is an executive officer of any other organization which is indebted to the Company, or to which the Company is indebted, and the total amount of either company's indebtedness to the other is less than \$1 million or 1% of the total consolidated assets of the organization on which the Director or any member of his or her immediate family serves as an executive officer, whichever is more.
Immaterial Position	The Director is a director or trustee, but not an executive officer, or any member of his or her immediate family is a director, trustee or employee, but not an executive officer, of any other organization (other than the Company's outside auditing firm) that does business with, or receives donations from, the Company.
Immaterial Ownership	The Director or any member of his or her immediate family holds a less than 10% interest in any other organization that has a relationship with the Company.
Immaterial Nonprofit Relationship	The Director or any member of his or her immediate family serves as an executive officer of a charitable or educational organization which receives contributions from the Company in a single fiscal year of less than \$1 million or 2% of that organization's consolidated gross revenues, whichever is more.

In addition, when determining Director independence, the Board does not consider transactions:

with entities for which a Director or an immediate family member served only as a director or trustee;

of less than \$120,000; and

with entities in which the Director's or an immediate family member's only interest is a less than 10% ownership interest.

The Board, through its Committee on Directors and Corporate Governance, annually reviews all relevant business relationships any Director nominee and any person who served as a Director during 2015 may have with the Company. As a result of its annual review, the Board has determined that none of the following Director nominees has a material relationship with the Company and, as a result, such Director nominees are independent: Ronald W. Allen, Marc Bolland, Ana Botín, Howard G. Buffett, Richard M. Daley, Barry Diller, Helene D. Gayle, Evan G. Greenberg, Alexis M. Herman, Robert A. Kotick, Maria Elena Lagomasino, Sam Nunn and David B. Weinberg. In addition, the Board previously determined that James D. Robinson III and Peter V. Ueberroth, who served as Directors for a portion of 2015, were independent during the period in which they each served on the Board. None of the Directors who were determined to be independent had any relationships that were outside the categorical standards identified above, except for Peter V. Ueberroth as described below. The Board determined that this relationship was not material.

Muhtar Kent, the Chairman of the Board, also serves as the Company's Chief Executive Officer and therefore is not an independent Director. Even though Herbert A. Allen is not currently determined to be independent, he contributes greatly to the Board and the Company through his wealth of experience, expertise and judgment.

All of the Directors who serve as members of the Audit Committee, Compensation Committee and Committee on Directors and Corporate Governance are independent as required by the NYSE corporate governance rules. Under these rules, Audit Committee members also satisfy the separate SEC independence requirement and the Compensation Committee members satisfy the additional NYSE independence requirement.

The table below summarizes the relationships that were considered in connection with the independence determinations. None of the transactions described below were considered material relationships that impacted the applicable Director's independence.

Director Ana Botín	Categorical Standard Immaterial Sales/ Purchases	Description of Relationship The Board examined the interest received on the Company's investment of certain cash with Banco Santander, S.A. where Ana Botín, one of our Directors, is Executive Chairman. The Board determined that the relationship was not material since (i) the amounts involved were less than 1% of the consolidated gross revenues of both the Company and Banco Santander, S.A., (ii) the investments were made in the ordinary course of business and
Howard G. Buffett	Immaterial Sales/ Purchases	generated market rate returns and (iii) the Company has had a relationship with Banco Santander, S.A. for many years prior to Ms. Botín's service as a Director of the Company. The Board examined the Company's relationship with Berkshire Hathaway Inc. ("Berkshire Hathaway") and its subsidiaries and affiliates. Howard G. Buffett is a Director of Berkshire Hathaway and his father, Warren E. Buffett, is the Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer and major stockholder of Berkshire Hathaway. This relationship is described beginning on page 41. The Board determined that this indirect relationship was not material since (i) the amounts involved were less than 1% of the consolidated gross revenues of both the Company and Berkshire Hathaway, (ii) the payments made and received were for various products and services in the ordinary course of business and (iii) the Company has had a relationship with most of these entities for many years prior to when they were owned by Berkshire Hathaway and prior to Mr. Buffett's service as a Director of the Company.



Director	Categorical Standard	Description of Relationship
Barry Diller	Immaterial Sales/ Purchases	The Board examined payments made by the Company to IAC/InterActiveCorp and its subsidiaries ("IAC") where Barry Diller, one of our Directors, is Chairman of the Board and Senior Executive. The Board determined that the relationship was not material since (i) the amounts involved were less than 1% of the consolidated gross revenues of both the Company and IAC, (ii) the payments were for online advertising and digital media promotions in the ordinary course of business and (iii) the Company has had a relationship with the predecessors of IAC for many years prior to Mr. Diller's service as a Director of the Company.
Evan G. Greenberg	Immaterial Sales/ Purchases	The Board examined payments made by the Company to ACE Limited and its subsidiaries ("ACE") where Evan G. Greenberg, one of our Directors, was Chairman and Chief Executive Officer until ACE Limited acquired The Chubb Corporation in January 2016. The combined company has been named Chubb Limited and Mr. Greenberg is its Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. This relationship is described on page 42. The Board determined that the relationship between Mr. Greenberg and ACE was not material since (i) the amounts involved were less than 1% of the consolidated gross revenues of both the Company and ACE, (ii) the payments were for insurance-related products and services in the ordinary course of business and (iii) the Company has had a relationship with ACE for many years prior to Mr. Greenberg's service as a Director of the Company. The Board also examined payments made by the Company to C.V. Starr and Co., Inc. where Mr. Greenberg's father is Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and a brother is Executive Vice President. The Board determined that the relationship with C.V. Starr and Co., Inc. where Mr. Grienberg's course of business and (iii) the payments involved were less than \$1 million, (ii) the payments were for insurance-related products and services in the ordinary course of business and company to C.V. Starr and Co., Inc. Norther Mr. Greenberg's father is Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and a brother is Executive Vice President. The Board determined that the relationship was not material since (i) the amounts involved were less than \$1 million, (ii) the payments were for insurance-related products and services in the ordinary course of business and (iii) the Company. In addition to the coverage previously provided by ACE, Chubb Limited will continue to provide the Company with the same coverage that The Chubb Corporation had provided prior to its acquisition by ACE Limited.
Peter V. Ueberroth	Immaterial Sales/ Purchases	The Board examined payments made by the Company to Preferred Hotels & Resorts, where Mr. Ueberroth's brother and sister-in-law are executive officers and have an ownership interest greater than 10%. The Board determined that this indirect relationship was not material since (i) the amounts involved were less than \$1 million and (ii) although the ownership interest is greater than 10%, the amounts involved are less than \$200,000 and determined to be immaterial to Mr. Ueberroth, his brother and his sister-in-law and did not affect Mr. Ueberroth's independence.

Related Person Transaction Policy and Process

A "Related Person Transaction" is a transaction, arrangement or relationship (or any series of similar transactions, arrangements or relationships) in which the Company (including any of its subsidiaries) was, is or will be a participant and, as relates to Directors or shareowners who have an ownership interest in the Company of more than 5%, the amount involved exceeds \$120,000, and in which any Related Person had, has or will have a direct or indirect material interest. Under Company policy, there is no threshold amount applicable to executive officers with regard to Related Person Transactions.

A "Related Person" means:

- any person who is, or at any time during the applicable period was, a Director of the Company or a nominee for Director or an executive officer;
- any person who is known to the Company to be the beneficial owner of more than 5% of the outstanding Common Stock;
- any immediate family member of any of the persons referenced in the preceding two bullets, which means any child, stepchild, parent, stepparent, spouse, sibling, motherin-law, father-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, brother-in-law or sister-in-law of the Director, nominee for Director, executive officer or more than 5% beneficial owner of Common Stock, and any person (other than a tenant or employee) sharing the household of such Director, nominee for Director, executive officer or more than 5% beneficial owner of Common Stock; and
- any firm, corporation or other entity in which any of the foregoing persons is a partner or principal or in a similar position or in which such person has a 10% or greater beneficial ownership interest.

In general, the Company will enter into or ratify Related Person Transactions only when the Board, acting through the Committee on Directors and Corporate Governance, determines that the Related Person Transaction is reasonable and fair to the Company. When considering whether a Related Person Transaction is reasonable and fair to the Company, among other things, the committee considers the evaluation of the transaction by employees directly involved and the recommendation of the Chief Financial Officer. In addition, any Related Person Transaction involving an executive officer must be pre-approved by the Chief Executive Officer and any Related Person Transaction involving the Chief Executive Officer or a beneficial owner of more than 5% of the outstanding Common Stock must be submitted to the Audit Committee for approval.

Many transactions that constitute Related Person Transactions are ongoing and some arrangements predate any relationship with the Director or predate the Director's relationship with the Company. When a transaction is ongoing, any amendments or changes are reviewed and the transaction is reviewed annually for reasonableness and fairness to the Company.

Identifying possible Related Person Transactions involves the following procedures:

Directors, executive officers and beneficial owners of more than 5% of the outstanding Common Stock are asked to complete customary annual questionnaires.



Directors and nominees for Directors are required to annually verify and update information about (i) where the Director is an employee, director or executive officer, (ii) each entity where an immediate family member of a Director is an executive officer, (iii) each firm, corporation or other entity in which the Director or an immediate family member is a partner or principal or in a similar position or in which such person has a 5% or greater beneficial ownership interest and (iv) each charitable or nonprofit organization where the Director or an immediate family member is an employee, executive officer, director or trustee.

When the Company receives the requested information from its Directors (including nominees), executive officers and beneficial owners of more than 5% of the outstanding Common Stock, the Company compiles a list of all persons and entities, including all subsidiaries of the entities identified, that may give rise to a Related Person Transaction. The Office of the Secretary reviews the updated list and expands the list if necessary, based on a review of SEC filings, Internet searches and applicable websites.

Once the list of approximately 2,800 persons and entities has been reviewed and updated, it is distributed within the Company to identify any potential transactions. This list also is sent to each of the Company's approximately 400 accounting locations to be compared to payments and receipts. All ongoing transactions, along with payment and receipt information, are compiled for each person and entity. The information is reviewed and relevant information is presented to the Committee on Directors and Corporate Governance or the Audit Committee, as the case may be.

Details regarding Related Person Transactions are included in the charters for the Committee on Directors and Corporate Governance and the Audit Committee and in our Codes of Business Conduct. These documents can be found on the Company's website, www.coca-colacompany.com, by clicking on "Investors" and then clicking on "Corporate Governance."

Certain Related Person Transactions

The Board, acting through the Committee on Directors and Corporate Governance, believes that the following related person transactions are reasonable and fair to the Company.

Herbert A. Allen. Herbert A. Allen, one of our Directors, is President, Chief Executive Officer and a Director of Allen & Company Incorporated ("ACI") and a principal shareowner of ACI's parent. ACI is an indirect equity holder of Allen & Company LLC ("ACL").

ACI has leased and subleased office space since 1977 in a building owned by one of our subsidiaries and located in New York City. In June 2005, ACI assigned the lease and sublease to ACL. In November 2015, the lease was renewed for a term of approximately 18 years. In 2015, ACL paid approximately \$5.6 million in rent and related expenses. In the opinion of management, the terms of the lease are fair and reasonable and as favorable to the Company as those that could have been obtained from unrelated third parties at the time of the execution of the lease.

Howard G. Buffett and Berkshire Hathaway. The father of Howard G. Buffett, one of our Directors, is Warren E. Buffett, the Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer and major stockholder of Berkshire Hathaway. Berkshire Hathaway's holdings constituted 9.24% of the Company's outstanding Common Stock as of February 29, 2016.

Berkshire Hathaway Specialty Insurance Company ("BHSI") is a wholly owned subsidiary of Berkshire Hathaway. In May 2015, the Company and BHSI renewed a one-year insurance contract under which BHSI provides the Company and one of its subsidiaries with insurance covering property on a primary basis. In 2015, the Company and the subsidiary paid an aggregate of approximately \$249,000 to BHSI for insurance coverage in the ordinary course of business.

Burlington Northern Santa Fe, LLC ("BNSF") is a wholly owned subsidiary of Berkshire Hathaway. In 2015, the Company paid BNSF approximately \$124,000 in demurrage fees in the ordinary course of business.

Business Wire, Inc. ("Business Wire") is a wholly owned subsidiary of Berkshire Hathaway. In July 2015, the Company and Business Wire entered into a new three-year services agreement under which Business Wire disseminates news releases for the Company. In 2015, the Company paid approximately \$248,000 to Business Wire in the ordinary course of business. This business relationship was in place prior to Berkshire Hathaway's acquisition of Business Wire in 2006.

FlightSafety International Inc. ("FlightSafety") is a wholly owned subsidiary of Berkshire Hathaway. In 2014, the Company entered into a new five-year agreement with FlightSafety to provide pilot training services to the Company and a new three-year agreement with FlightSafety to provide flight attendant and mechanic training services to the Company. In 2015, the Company paid FlightSafety approximately \$519,000 in the ordinary course of business.

International Dairy Queen, Inc. ("IDQ") is a wholly owned subsidiary of Berkshire Hathaway. In 2015, IDQ and its subsidiaries received promotional and marketing incentives from the Company totaling approximately \$1.5 million in the ordinary course of business. This business relationship was in place for many years prior to Berkshire Hathaway's acquisition of IDQ.

McLane Company, Inc. ("McLane") is a wholly owned subsidiary of Berkshire Hathaway. In 2015, McLane and its subsidiaries paid approximately \$244 million to the Company to purchase fountain syrup and other products in the ordinary course of business. Also in 2015, McLane received from the Company approximately \$9 million in agency commissions, marketing payments and other fees relating to the sale of the Company's products to customers in the ordinary course of business. This business relationship was in place for many years prior to Berkshire Hathaway's acquisition of McLane in 2003.

Marmon Holdings. Inc. ("Marmon") is a wholly owned subsidiary of Berkshire Hathaway. In January 2014, Marmon acquired Cornelius, Inc., Display Technologies, LLC and 3Wire Group, Inc. In 2015, the Company paid Cornelius, Inc. approximately \$7.7 million for fountain equipment under a 2006 master agreement, which is renewed on an annual basis. In 2015, the Company paid Display Technologies, LLC approximately \$4.5 million for shelving for in-store promotional programs under a three-year supply agreement entered into in February 2014. In 2015, the Company paid 3Wire Group, Inc. approximately \$15.3 million for fountain equipment parts under a 2005 master agreement, which is renewed on an annual basis. These business relationships were in place for many years prior to Marmon's acquisition of these three entities and all payments were made in the ordinary course of business.



XTRA Lease LLC ("XTRA") is a wholly owned subsidiary of Berkshire Hathaway. In 2015, the Company paid XTRA approximately \$856,000 for the rental of trailers used to transport and store finished product in the ordinary course of business under the terms of a national account agreement with XTRA.

Berkshire Hathaway holds a significant equity interest in American Express Company (together with its subsidiaries, "American Express"). In 2013, the Company and American Express entered into a new five-year agreement under which American Express provides global credit card services to the Company. In 2015, American Express paid the Company approximately \$1.5 million in rebates and incentives under the terms of the agreement and in the ordinary course of business. In 2015, the Company paid American Express fees of approximately \$854,000 for credit card memberships, business travel and other services in the ordinary course of business.

Berkshire Hathaway holds a significant equity interest in Moody's Corporation ("Moody's"). In 2012, the Company and a subsidiary of Moody's entered into a two-year agreement for rating services related to the Company's commercial paper programs and debt offerings, which was renewed in 2015 for an additional two-year period. In 2015, the Company paid a subsidiary of Moody's fees of approximately \$1.3 million for rating services.

Berkshire Hathaway held a significant equity interest in Munich Re Group ("Munich Re") during 2015. In May 2015, the Company and Munich Re entered into a one-year insurance contract under which Munich Re provides the Company and one of its subsidiaries with insurance covering property on a primary basis. In 2015, the Company and its subsidiaries paid an aggregate of approximately \$219,000 to Munich Re for insurance coverage in the ordinary course of business.

In the opinion of management, all of the relationships between the Company and the entities affiliated with Berkshire Hathaway described above are fair and reasonable and are as favorable to the Company as those that could have been obtained from unrelated third parties or are on terms substantially similar to the Company's relationship with other companies, as applicable.

Evan G. Greenberg. Prior to ACE Limited's acquisition of The Chubb Corporation in January 2016, Evan G. Greenberg, one of our Directors, was Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of ACE Limited. The combined company has been named Chubb Limited and Mr. Greenberg is its Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. ACE has provided insurance-related products and services to the Company since 1986. During 2015, ACE provided traditional insurance coverage where the Company sought to transfer risk and fronting services where the Company sought to retain risk. The Company renews its insurance coverage on an annual basis. During 2015, ACE provided the Company with insurance covering directors' and officers' liability, employment practices liability, property and excess liability on an excess basis, and insurance covering property, auto, product recall, fiduciary liability, employed lawyers' liability and prize (hole in one) on a primary basis. ACE also provided fronting services to the Company by issuing policies for U.S. and international general and product liability, U.S. workers' compensation and global property. In 2015, the Company paid ACE approximately \$2.7 million for insurance premiums and approximately \$8.5 million in fronting fees. In the opinion of management, the terms of the Company's insurance coverage and fronting arrangements with ACE were fair and reasonable and as favorable to the Company as those that could have been obtained from unrelated third parties.

SHARE OWNERSHIP

OWNERSHIP OF EQUITY SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Directors and Executive Officers

The following table sets forth information regarding beneficial ownership of Common Stock by each Director, each individual named in the 2015 Summary Compensation Table on page 63, and our Directors and executive officers as a group, all as of February 29, 2016. Unless otherwise noted, voting power and investment power in Common Stock are exercisable solely by the named person.

	Aggregate Number of Shares	Percent of Outstanding	
Name	Beneficially Owned	Shares ¹	Additional Information
Herbert A. Allen	18,098,431	*	Includes 6,000,000 shares held by ACI, 30,900 shares held by 12 trusts of which Mr. Allen, in each case, is one of three to five trustees, and 30,000 shares held by a foundation of which he is one of six directors. Mr. Allen disclaims beneficial ownership of the 30,000 shares held by the foundation. Also includes 37,531 shares held by a family member over which Mr. Allen has disclaimed beneficial ownership. Does not include 73,296 share units deferred under the Directors' Plan which are settled in cash.
Ronald W. Allen	24,000	*	Includes 4,000 shares held by a family member over which Mr. Allen has disclaimed beneficial ownership. Does not include 71,677 share units deferred under the Directors' Plan which are settled in cash.
Marc Bolland	10,000	*	Does not include 5,097 share units deferred under the Directors' Plan which are settled in cash.
Ana Botín	2,500	*	Shares held by a Spanish limited company of which Ms. Botín and her husband are the indirect beneficial owners. Does not include 15,096 share units deferred under the Directors' Plan which are settled in cash.
Howard G. Buffett	48,592	*	Includes 48,592 shares jointly held by Mr. Buffett and a family member. Does not include 24,475 share units deferred under the Directors' Plan which are settled in cash. Also, does not include shares owned by Berkshire Hathaway which are included in the "Principal Shareowners" table on page 45.
Richard M. Daley	6,500	*	Shares held by a trust of which Mr. Daley is sole trustee and beneficiary. Does not include 25,579 share units deferred under the Directors' Plan which are settled in cash.
Barry Diller	4,000,000	*	Held by a grantor retained annuity trust for the benefit of Mr. Diller and his family members. Does not include 104,250 share units deferred under the Directors' Plan which are settled in cash.
Helene D. Gayle	3,000	*	Does not include 14,921 share units deferred under the Directors' Plan which are settled in cash.
Evan G. Greenberg	28,058	*	Does not include 31,187 share units deferred under the Directors' Plan which are settled in cash.
Alexis M. Herman	2,000	*	Does not include 36,506 share units deferred under the Directors' Plan which are settled in cash.
Robert A. Kotick	70,018	*	Includes 18 shares held by a family member through the Uniform Transfers to Minors Act. Does not include 23,858 share units deferred under the Directors' Plan which are settled in cash.
Maria Elena Lagomasino	23,631	*	Does not include 38,290 share units deferred under the Directors' Plan which are settled in cash.
Sam Nunn	2,000	*	Does not include 129,876 share units deferred under the Directors' Plan which are settled in cash.



Nouro	Aggregate Number of Shares Boxeficially Owned	Percent of Outstanding	dditional Information
Name David B. Weinberg	Beneficially Owned 11,424,280	* Inc has gra thr me con pov gra ren 3,0 cu wh two but hel inv 48, inv 48, inv sol	dditional Information cludes 770,430 shares held by family members over which Mr. Weinberg s sole dispositive power, 1,000,000 shares held by a family member's antor retained annuity trust of which Mr. Weinberg is sole trustee and one of ree contingent remainder beneficiaries, and 152,930 shares held by a family ember's living trust of which Mr. Weinberg is one of three trustees and is a ntingent remainder beneficiary but over which he also has sole dispositive ower. Also includes 2,466,558 shares held by a family member's marital antor trust of which Mr. Weinberg is one of three trustees and contingent mainder beneficiaries but over which he also has sole dispositive power, and 000,000 shares held by three family trusts of which Mr. Weinberg is a rrent or contingent remainder beneficiary and one of three trustees but over hich he also has sole dispositive power. Also includes 48,000 shares held by to family trusts of which Mr. Weinberg is neither a trustee nor a beneficiary t over which he has sole dispositive power. Also includes 3,540,000 shares ld by two family limited partnerships over which Mr. Weinberg has sole vestment control and shares beneficial ownership interest. Also includes 3,888 shares held by two foundations over which Mr. Weinberg shares vestment power with other family members but over which he also has sole spositive power, and 42,260 shares held by two foundations over which Mr. Weinberg also has le dispositive power. Does not include 5,097 share units deferred under the rectors' Plan which are settled in cash.
Muhtar Kent	13,752,992	* Inc chi anc ber 78, Pla exc exc cre	cludes 13,000 shares held by a foundation of which Mr. Kent, his wife and ildren are trustees, 129,000 shares held by a trust of which Mr. Kent's wife d his children are beneficiaries and an independent trust company is trustee d 134,000 shares held by a trust of which Mr. Kent and his children are neficiaries and an independent trust company is trustee. Also includes ,783 shares credited to Mr. Kent under The Coca-Cola Company 401(k) an (the "401(k) Plan") and 13,009,709 shares that may be acquired upon the ercise of options which are presently exercisable or that will become ercisable on or before April 29, 2016. Does not include 58,438 share units edited under The Coca-Cola Company Supplemental 401(k) Plan") which are settled in cash post employment.
Kathy N. Waller	814,325	sha exe exe cre	cludes 15,251 shares credited to Ms. Waller under the 401(k) Plan, 200 ares of restricted stock and 745,549 shares that may be acquired upon the ercise of options which are presently exercisable or that will become ercisable on or before April 29, 2016. Does not include 5,463 share units edited under the Supplemental 401(k) Plan which are settled in cash post aployment.
James Quincey	521,362	Qu sha exe not are	cludes 44,678 shares held by a family member, 710 shares credited to Mr. uincey under the 401(k) Plan, 200 shares of restricted stock and 451,279 ares that may be acquired upon the exercise of options which are presently ercisable or that will become exercisable on or before April 29, 2016. Does it include 38 share units credited under the Supplemental 401(k) Plan which e settled in cash post employment. Also does not include 72,838 unvested stricted stock units.
J. Alexander M. Douglas, Jr.	2,261,727	Do the exe cre	cludes 2,800 shares held by a family member, 10,859 shares credited to Mr. buglas under the 401(k) Plan and 2,131,028 shares that may be acquired upon e exercise of options which are presently exercisable or that will become ercisable on or before April 29, 2016. Does not include 22,690 share units edited under the Supplemental 401(k) Plan which are settled in cash post apployment. Also does not include 94,253 unvested PSUs and restricted stock its.
Irial Finan	3,678,585	3,3 pre 20	cludes 1,041 shares credited to Mr. Finan under the 401(k) Plan and 350,178 shares that may be acquired upon the exercise of options which are esently exercisable or that will become exercisable on or before April 29, 106. Does not include 150 share units credited under the Supplemental 401(k) an which are settled in cash post employment.
All Directors and executive officers as a group (31 persons)	66,868,111	res 20 wh Ap Su Dir	cludes 241,609 shares credited under the 401(k) Plan, 1,600 shares of stricted stock, 60,197 restricted stock units which vest on or before April 29, 116 and 30,858,416 shares that may be acquired upon the exercise of options nich are presently exercisable or that will become exercisable on or before pril 29, 2016. Does not include 166,016 share units credited under the upplemental 401(k) Plan and 599,205 share units deferred under the irectors' Plan, all of which will be settled in cash. Also does not include 0,160 unvested PSUs and restricted stock units.

* Less than 1% of issued and outstanding shares of Common Stock.

1 Share units credited under the Directors' Plan and the Supplemental 401(k) Plan are not included as outstanding shares in calculating these percentages. Unvested PSUs and restricted stock units, which will be settled in shares upon vesting, also are not included.

Principal Shareowners

Set forth in the table below is information about the number of shares held by persons we know to be the beneficial owners of more than 5% of the issued and outstanding Common Stock.

Name and Address	Aggregate Number of Shares Beneficially Owned	Percent of Outstanding Shares ⁴
Berkshire Hathaway Inc. ¹ 3555 Farnam Street, Suite 1440 Omaha, Nebraska 68131	400,000,000	9.24%
The Vanguard Group ² 100 Vanguard Blvd. Malvern, Pennsylvania 19355	262,031,119	6.05%
BlackRock, Inc. ³ 55 East 52 nd Street New York, New York 10055	234,556,278	5.42%

1 Berkshire Hathaway, a diversified holding company, has informed the Company that, as of December 31, 2015, it held an aggregate of 400,000,000 shares of Common Stock through subsidiaries.

2 The information is based on a Schedule 13G/A filed by The Vanguard Group with the SEC on February 11, 2016 reporting beneficial ownership as of December 31, 2015. The Vanguard Group reported that it has sole voting power with respect to 7,365,604 shares of Common Stock, sole dispositive power with respect to 254,175,717 shares of Common Stock, shared voting power with respect to 420,800 shares of Common Stock and shared dispositive power with respect to 7,855,402 shares of Common Stock.

- 3 The information is based on a Schedule 13G/A filed by BlackRock, Inc. with the SEC on February 10, 2016 reporting beneficial ownership as of December 31, 2015. BlackRock, Inc. reported that it has sole voting power with respect to 201,370,260 shares of Common Stock, sole dispositive power with respect to 234,501,570 shares of Common Stock and shared voting and dispositive power with respect to 54,708 shares of Common Stock.
- 4 The ownership percentages set forth in this column are based on the assumption that each of the principal shareowners continued to own the number of shares reflected in the table above on February 29, 2016.

SECTION 16(A) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE

Executive officers, Directors and certain persons who own more than 10% of the outstanding shares of Common Stock are required by Section 16(a) of the 1934 Act and related regulations:

- to file reports of their ownership of Common Stock with the SEC and the NYSE; and
- to furnish us with copies of the reports.

We received written representations from each such person who did not file an annual statement on Form 5 with the SEC that no Form 5 was due. Based on our review of the reports and representations, we believe that all Section 16(a) reports were filed timely in 2015, except for a late filing of a Form 4 to include a purchase of Common Stock by Helene Gayle.

COMPENSATION

ITEM 2 - ADVISORY VOTE TO APPROVE EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

What am I voting on?

Shareowners are being asked to approve, on an advisory basis, the compensation of the Named Executive Officers as described in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis section beginning on page 47 and the Compensation Tables section beginning on page 63.

Voting recommendation:

FOR the advisory vote to approve executive compensation. The Compensation Committee takes very seriously its role in the governance of the Company's compensation programs and values thoughtful input from shareowners. The Compensation Committee will take into account the outcome of the advisory vote when considering future executive compensation decisions.

The Company seeks a non-binding advisory vote from its shareowners to approve the compensation of its Named Executive Officers as described in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis section beginning on page 47 and the Compensation Tables section beginning on page 63.

In deciding how to vote on this proposal, the Board encourages you to read the Compensation Discussion and Analysis and Compensation Table sections. The Compensation Committee has made numerous enhancements in recent years to enhance the link between pay and performance, further link compensation to our business and talent strategies and clearly detail the rationale for pay decisions.

The Board recommends that shareowners vote FOR the following resolution:

"RESOLVED, that the shareowners approve, on an advisory basis, the compensation of the Company's Named Executive Officers, as disclosed in this proxy statement, including the Compensation Discussion and Analysis, the Compensation Tables and the related narrative."

Because your vote is advisory, it will not be binding upon the Board. However, the Board values shareowners' opinions and the Compensation Committee will take into account the outcome of the advisory vote when considering future executive compensation decisions. The Board has adopted a policy of providing for annual advisory votes from shareowners on executive compensation. The next such vote will occur at the 2017 Annual Meeting of Shareowners.

The Board of Directors recommends a vote FOR the advisory vote to approve executive compensation.

COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Message from the Compensation Committee

The Compensation Committee is guided by our stewardship responsibility to oversee the Company's compensation programs. We take very seriously our role in the governance of these important programs, and we continuously seek to evolve our approach, address emerging concerns and stay attuned to the views of our shareowners.

This Compensation Discussion and Analysis focuses on the "how's" and "why's" of the decisions we made last year. We also want to share with you what is top of mind for us right now and for the upcoming year.

A key focus for 2016 is examining and validating the rigor with which we set and calibrate performance targets and ranges in the Company's incentive programs. This is a complex subject that we will continue to refine. This year, we have enhanced the methodology we use to set and test the targets and performance curves in our incentive programs. This process includes conducting probability analyses, benchmarking performance and evaluating the practices of comparator companies. While setting targets and payout ranges is never an exact science, our process and analyses provide additional confidence that the metrics and targets used are both rigorous and consistent with market-leading practices.

We remain focused on maintaining a strong link between compensation programs and the Company's strategy. To that end, we continue to align performance metrics with the Company's strategic priorities as can be seen in several key enhancements made to the Company's compensation programs that took effect in 2015. These and other enhancements are highlighted below. We have a long-standing shareowner outreach program which enables us to solicit and incorporate input from our shareowners when making compensation decisions. Many of these enhancements stemmed from your feedback, and we will continue to listen to you, our shareowners, in 2016 and beyond.



2015 Highlights

Compensation Program Enhancements

We have made several enhancements to further link the Company's compensation programs with the Company's business and talent strategies and the longterm interests of our shareowners. Key enhancements are highlighted below.

	What We Did		Notes/Results
•	Updated the annual incentive program, including adjusting performance metrics to further align with business strategy and, for 2016 and after, reduced potential maximum payout.	→	Net operating revenue and profit before tax growth were added as annual incentive metrics; weightings were adjusted to decrease emphasis on unit case volume. For 2016, maximum payout decreased from 300% of target to 250% of target. See <u>page 54</u> .
٠	Adopted Equity Stewardship Guidelines to reduce share utilization.	→	Significantly decreased the "burn rate" of shares and met the burn rate commitment of 0.4% a full year early. See <u>page 56</u> .
٠	Adjusted the mix of equity compensation to use fewer stock options and more performance share units.	→	Mix adjusted to 50/50 in 2015. For 2016, mix is 1/3 stock options and 2/3 performance share units.
٠	Reduced the number and value of long-term incentive awards for Named Executive Officers.	→	Reflects 2015 as a transition year and taking into account recent performance relative to comparator companies.

Annual and Long-Term Incentive Pay in 2015

In 2015, the Company took several strategic actions to accelerate top-line and bottom-line growth. As a result, we viewed 2015 as a transition year where the Company was implementing the necessary changes to its operating model.

Annual incentive targets were set at the beginning of 2015 consistent with the expectations of 2015 as a transition year. The Company delivered results at or above these targets. In addition, management accelerated progress on several key business initiatives, including bottler refranchising. As a result, annual incentive awards for 2015 were above the target amount, and vary based on individual contributions. You can read more about pay decisions for each Named Executive Officer beginning on page 52.



- The value of long-term incentive awards granted in February 2015 to Named Executive Officers was significantly lower than in 2014, reflecting 2015 as a transition year and taking into account recent performance relative to comparator companies. For example, Mr. Kent received a long-term incentive grant valued at \$7.7 million in 2015, compared to \$15.8 million in 2014. You can see the values awarded to each Named Executive Officer in the 2015 Summary Compensation Table on page 63.
- The performance share units ("PSUs") for the 2013-2015 performance period will have zero payout because pre-established economic profit growth target was not met. As with the two prior PSU programs, no compensation will be realized for this portion of long-term incentive compensation. See page 58 for the status of annual PSU programs.

Pay-for-Performance Analysis

We view Company performance in two primary ways:

- 1. the Company's operating performance, including results against long-term growth targets; and
- 2. return to shareowners over time, both on an absolute basis and relative to other companies, including the S&P 500 companies and our compensation comparator group.

In addition to Company performance, we also take into account individual performance when making compensation decisions.

2015 Operating Performance

In October 2014, the Company announced five strategic actions to accelerate top-line and bottom-line growth:

- 1. Drive revenue and profit growth, with clear portfolio roles across our markets.
- 2. Target disciplined brand and growth investments to reinvigorate top-line growth in our existing portfolio while expanding our participation across a range of consumption occasions.
- 3. Drive efficiency by expanding our productivity program to result in \$3 billion in incremental annualized savings by 2019.
- 4. Streamline and simplify our organization in order to speed decision making and enhance our local market focus.
- Refocus on our core business model of building the world's greatest beverage brands and leading an unmatched global system of strong local bottling partners.

In 2015, a transition year for the Company as we implemented these strategic actions, the Company made significant progress against our initiatives and achieved our key objectives of improving our revenues and profits, despite an increasingly challenging global macroeconomic environment. Company operating highlights included:

- The Company gained global value share in nonalcoholic ready-to-drink beverages.
- Reported net revenue declined 4% while organic revenue grew 4%.
- Global volume grew 2%.
- Global price/mix grew 2%.
- Reported income before income taxes increased 3% and, excluding the impact of structural changes, comparable currency neutral income before income taxes increased 6%.
- Reported earnings per share ("EPS") was up 5% and comparable currency neutral EPS was up 6%.

See Annex A for a reconciliation of non-GAAP financial measures to our results as reported under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States ("GAAP").

Return to Shareowners

The Company has delivered consistent positive return to shareowners over time, and has a long history of increasing dividends and conducting share repurchases, which continued in 2015.



The following chart shows how a \$100 investment in the Company's Common Stock on December 31, 2010 would have grown to \$151 on December 31, 2015, with dividends reinvested quarterly. The chart also compares the total shareowner return on the Company's Common Stock to the same investment in the S&P 500 Index and the Company's 2015 compensation comparator group (see page 59) over the same period, with dividends reinvested quarterly.



Source: Standard & Poor's Research Insight. Includes the Company's 2015 comparator group (see page 59) for the five-year period whether or not a company was included in the group for the entire period. For foreign companies included in the comparator group, market value has been converted to U.S. dollars and excludes the impact of currency. Market returns are weighted by relative market capitalization and are adjusted for spin-offs and special dividends.

Analysis of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Pay

This section provides an analysis of the relationship between the compensation of our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and the Company's performance. See page 52 for additional information about Mr. Kent's 2015 compensation and individual performance highlights.

Directional Relationship Between Pay and Key Metrics

The following illustrates the three-year directional relationship between Company performance, based on three of our key operating metrics, and the compensation (as defined below) of our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer.



1 Compensation for Mr. Kent in each of 2013, 2014 and 2015, as reported in the 2015 Summary Compensation Table on page 63, excluding "change in pension value and nonqualified deferred compensation earnings." We believe it is appropriate to exclude this component when analyzing the relationship between pay and performance because there are no enhanced or special pension plans for the Named Executive Officers and change in pension value is subject to many variables, such as external interest rates, that are not related to Company performance. See page 71 for a description of the accumulated pension benefit for Mr. Kent and the other Named Executive Officers.

2 Reflects growth in comparable currency neutral net operating revenue after adjusting for the impact of structural items (2013 and 2014), organic revenue (2015) and comparable currency neutral profit before tax after adjusting for the impact of structural items (2013-2015), which differ from what is reported under GAAP. See Annex A for a reconciliation of non-GAAP financial measures to our results as reported under GAAP.

Reported and Realized Pay

The reported pay of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in the 2015 Summary Compensation Table (excluding the change in pension value) has decreased over the past three years. Since the vast majority of reported pay represents potential pay, we also look at pay actually realized each year, which may include the value of long-term equity compensation granted many years earlier. The following graphic shows reported pay included in the 2015 Summary Compensation Table (excluding the change in pension value) and the realized pay over the last three years. For the past three years in aggregate, realized pay was 70% of reported pay.



Mr. Kent continues to hold all shares received from PSU releases and stock option exercises, other than those withheld for taxes.

Reported pay includes base salary, actual annual incentive earned, the grant date fair value of long-term equity compensation and all other compensation, each as reported in the 2015 Summary Compensation Table on page 63.

Realized pay includes base salary, actual annual incentive earned and all other compensation, each as reported in the 2015 Summary Compensation Table on page 63, and the value of stock options exercised or stock awards released in the applicable year.

Tracking of Long-Term Incentives

Long-term incentive compensation is performance-based and the largest component of pay for executives. While no long-term awards granted in 2013, 2014 or 2015 have been realized by Mr. Kent, the following table illustrates how the awards were tracking as of December 31, 2015.

Tracking of Long-Term Incentives (2013-2015)								
							Vested or	Unvested or
			Reported	Rea	lized		"In the Money" ¹	"At-Risk" ²
Year			at Grant	as of 12/31/	2015		as of 12/31/2015	as of 12/31/2015
2013	Stock Options	\$	7,113,946	\$	0	\$	5,115,536	\$ 5,115,542
	PSUs		6,399,988		0		0	0
2014	Stock Options		9,314,144		0		3,427,292	10,281,889
	PSUs		6,489,441		0		0	8,618,936
2015	Stock Options		2,830,597		0		0	693,142
	PSUs		4,904,848		0		0	5,538,661
Total		\$	37,052,964	\$	0	\$	8,542,828	\$ 30,248,170

1 Represents the intrinsic value of vested stock options granted each year. Intrinsic value is the difference between the exercise price of the stock option and the closing price of the Common Stock, which was \$42.96 on December 31, 2015. No PSUs granted in 2013, 2014 or 2015 were vested as of December 31, 2015.

2 Represents the intrinsic value of unvested stock options granted each year. PSUs granted in 2013 were certified with a zero payout. The value for PSUs in 2014 and 2015 represents the target number of PSUs multiplied by \$42.96, the closing price of Common Stock on December 31, 2015.



Shareowner Engagement and Results of 2015 Advisory Vote on Executive Compensation

The Company has a long-standing shareowner outreach program and routinely interacts with shareowners on a number of matters (see page 34).

- At the 2015 Annual Meeting of Shareowners, approximately 80.4% of the votes cast were in favor of the advisory vote to approve executive compensation. The Compensation Committee took into account these results as well as feedback received from shareowners during our engagements when making the enhancements to our compensation programs described in this Compensation Discussion and Analysis.
- At the 2016 Annual Meeting of Shareowners, we are again holding an advisory vote to approve executive compensation (see <u>page 46</u>) and will continue to consider the results of the advisory vote and engage with our shareowners.

Checklist of Compensation Practices

	What We Do		What We Don't Do
~	Vast majority of pay is performance-based and not guaranteed	×	Generally do not utilize employment contracts
V	Align pay and performance	×	No dividends or dividend equivalents on unearned PSUs
V	Mitigate undue risk in compensation programs	X	No repricing of underwater stock options
V	Include "double-trigger" change in control provisions in equity awards	x	No tax gross-ups for personal aircraft use or financial planning
V	Applys stringent share ownership and share retention policies	x	No separate change in control agreements or excise tax gross-ups
1	Provide limited perquisites with sound business rationale		
V	Prohibit hedging and short sales by executive officers and Directors		
V	Discourage pledging of Company stock and require pre-approval		
V	Provide reasonable post-employment and change in control provisions		
V	Include clawback provisions in most compensation programs		

Elements of Compensation and Link to Strategy

We have three elements of total direct compensation: base salary, annual incentives and long-term incentives, which are described below. We also provide limited perquisites (see <u>page 61</u>) and standard retirement and benefit plans (see <u>pages 60</u> and <u>77</u>).

2015 Total Direct Compensation*



* Base salary, actual annual incentive and the grant date fair value of the annual long-term incentive award for 2015.

2016 Proxy Statement The Concernance 51

The table below describes the three elements of total direct compensation and the link to the Company's business and talent strategies.

Pay Element Base Salary	 Description and Purpose Fixed cash compensation; reviewed annually and adjusted when appropriate. Designed to recognize individual performance, time in role, scope of responsibility, leadership skills and experience. 	 Link to Business and Talent Strategies Competitive base salaries help attract and retain executive talent. To promote a performance culture, increases are not automatic or guaranteed.
Annual Incentives (see <u>page 54</u>)	 Variable compensation, payable in cash, based on performance against annually established targets and individual performance. Designed to reward executives for annual performance on key operational and financial measures, as well as individual performance and significant non-financial achievements. 	 Metrics and targets align with business strategy. Consistent with our focus on balanced revenue and profit growth, net operating revenue and profit before tax growth are plan metrics, in addition to unit case volume. A portion of the award can be based on individual accomplishments and non-financial achievements, consistent with the Company's focus on quantitative and qualitative initiatives and priorities.
Long-Term Incentives (see <u>page 56</u>)	 Variable compensation payable in the form of equity awards (stock options and performance share units) for executives. Designed to drive sustainable performance that delivers long-term value to shareowners and directly ties the interests of executives to those of shareowners. Stock options generally vest 25% per year over four years; PSUs generally vest 100% after four years; (three-year performance period followed by a one-year holding period). The Compensation Committee reviews the award mix and performance metrics annually. In addition to annual awards, a limited number of awards may be granted during the year as time-based restricted stock units or performance share units. 	 Differentiating award values based on individual performance and multi-year vesting of awards assists in motivation and retention of key talent. Performance share units Metrics and targets align with business strategy. Driving economic profit growth, which in turn drives long-term value to shareowners, is a key component of our strategic initiatives. Revenue growth also continues to be a key focus for our business. Employees at the group and business unit levels are rewarded based on their relative contribution to overall results, creating better "line of sight" to metrics that they can more directly influence. Directly tied to long-term interests of shareowners through total shareowner return modifier on annual PSUs. Stock options Provide direct alignment to, and focus on, stock price appreciation.

2015 Compensation Decisions for Named Executive Officers

In 2015, the following compensation decisions were approved for our Named Executive Officers as a result of Company and individual performance.

Chief Executive Officer

Muhtar Kent Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

2015 Performance Highlights

Mr. Kent led the Company to deliver solid financial results in 2015, including meeting or exceeding key performance metrics, while at the same time accelerating strategic actions and targeting strategic investments. In 2015, the Company made significant progress against its five-point plan announced in late 2014, and, under Mr. Kent's leadership, was able to advance the pace of several initiatives. The Company accelerated global refranchising initiatives to return to a core business model. Mr. Kent advanced talent development initiatives, including the appointment of a President and Chief Operating Officer and continued focus on developing a diverse talent pipeline. He made progress ahead of schedule on productivity initiatives, allowing the Company to reinvest savings back in our brands and business. Mr. Kent oversaw the development of a new global marketing campaign and innovative "one brand" strategy. In addition, he continued progress toward our sustainability commitments in the areas of women, water and well-being.

Compensation decisions

- Base Salary: No change was made to Mr. Kent's base salary in 2015 or 2016.
- Annual Incentive: \$4,600,000, comprised of \$3,552,000 from applying the Company Performance Factor under the plan formula (111% for 2015) and \$1,048,000 for individual performance.
- Long-Term Incentive: Mr. Kent received a long-term incentive grant valued at \$7,735,445, split into 50% performance share units and 50% stock options.

Chief Financial Officer

Kathy N. Waller **Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer**

2015 Performance Highlights

Ms. Waller continued her strong leadership of the Finance function, maintaining accuracy and timeliness in financial analysis and reporting and adherence to governance and controls, while delivering additional value through cost reduction initiatives. She provided effective strategic leadership in the areas of capital structure, financial policy and cash management, including delivering substantial value with hedging programs and conducting a record-breaking euro debt offering. She oversaw various successful merger and acquisition initiatives, including bottler and brand transactions. She continued strong people and leadership development in the Finance function and beyond, with a focus on attracting and retaining talented associates and developing women and diverse talent for leadership roles.

Other Named Executive Officers

James Quincev

President and Chief Operating Officer

2015 Performance Highlights

Mr. Quincey was appointed President and Chief Operating Officer in August 2015 and successfully transitioned into the role. He led the Company's operations to deliver a solid second half of the year, developed 2016 business plans to accelerate growth, provided strategic leadership to address category challenges and continued to evolve the Company's approach to productivity and cost savings.

In his capacity as President, Europe Group, he led the achievement of the Europe business plan in revenues and profit before tax, led productivity efforts including streamlining group operations and restructuring business units, and played an instrumental role in leading the proposed transaction to form Coca-Cola European Partners Plc., in what would become the world's largest independent Coca-Cola bottler based on net revenues.

Compensation decisions

- Base Salary: Ms. Waller received a merit increase of 2.5% on April 1, 2015, and a merit increase of 3% to be effective April 1, 2016.
- Annual Incentive: \$1,200,083, comprised of \$1,016,864 from applying the Company Performance Factor under the plan formula (111% for 2015) and \$183,219 for individual performance.
- Long-Term Incentive: Ms. Waller received a long-term incentive grant valued at \$2,992,214, split into 50% performance share units and 50% stock options.

Compensation decisions

- Base Salary: Mr. Quincey received a merit increase of 2% on April 1, 2015. When he was appointed President and Chief Operating Officer, Mr. Quincey's base salary was adjusted to \$900,000. He received a merit increase of 3.5% to be effective April 1, 2016.
- Annual Incentive: \$1,523,032, comprised of \$1,290,508 from applying the Company Performance Factor under the plan formula (111% for 2015) and \$232,524 for individual performance. His target incentive was prorated for his two roles in 2015.
- Long-Term Incentive: Mr. Quincey received a long-term incentive grant valued at \$1,738,717, split into 50% performance share units and 50% stock options. This award's value was based on the range for his prior position as President, Europe Group.
- Additional Long-Term Award: On August 12, 2015, in conjunction with his appointment as President and Chief Operating Officer, Mr. Quincey received a restricted stock unit award valued at \$2,625,446. The award vests 50% on August 12, 2018 and 50% on August 12, 2019. The award is for retention and to further tie his interests to the long-term interests of shareowners.

J. Alexander M. Douglas, Jr. Executive Vice President and President, Coca-Cola North America

2015 Performance Highlights

Mr. Douglas delivered strong results in North America, growing net revenue and profit and outperforming the nonalcoholic ready-to-drink industry by gaining value share. Under Mr. Douglas' leadership, North America executed core strategies of building strong brands, creating value with customers and building system capabilities to sustain success. He drove significant progress with refranchising efforts and activation of the 21st century beverage partnership model, including the announcement and first steps in implementing a National Product Supply System.

Compensation decisions

- Base Salary: Mr. Douglas received a merit increase of 2.5% on April 1, 2015, and a merit increase of 3% to be effective April 1, 2016.
- Annual Incentive: \$1,237,934, comprised of \$974,544 from applying the Company Performance Factor under the plan formula (111% for 2015) and \$263,390 for individual performance.
- Long-Term Incentive: Mr. Douglas received a long-term incentive grant valued at \$2,784,786, split into 50% performance share units and 50% stock options.
- Additional Long-Term Award: On October 14, 2015, Mr. Douglas received a restricted stock unit award valued at \$2,612,013. The award vests 100% on December 31, 2017. The award is for Mr. Douglas' leadership in accelerating bottler refranchising efforts and business growth in North America and to reward and retain him for this critical work through the end of 2017.

Irial Finan

Executive Vice President and President, Bottling Investments and Supply Chain

2015 Performance Highlights

Internationally, through the Bottling Investments Group, Mr. Finan accelerated volume, revenue and share growth in China and drove growth against key metrics in important markets including Malaysia, Singapore, Myanmar, Cambodia, Vietnam, Nepal, Bangladesh and Sri Lanka. Mr. Finan worked to successfully prepare the German bottling operations in the proposed merger to create a new European bottler. In North America, Mr. Finan drove business results by focusing on growing brand Coca-Cola, accelerated implementation of a technology platform and productivity efforts.

Compensation decisions

- Base Salary: Mr. Finan received a merit increase of 1.5% on April 1, 2015, and a merit increase of 3% to be effective April 1, 2016.
- Annual Incentive: \$1,611,947, comprised of \$1,478,728 from applying the Company Performance Factor under the plan formula (111% for 2015) and \$133,219 for individual performance.
- Long-Term Incentive: Mr. Finan received a long-term incentive grant valued at \$3,516,121 in 2015, split into 50% performance share units and 50% stock options.

Annual and Long-Term Incentives

Annual Incentive Compensation

Overview

Annual incentives are determined under the Performance Incentive Plan of The Coca-Cola Company (the "Performance Incentive Plan"). In 2015, approximately 14,500 employees participated in the Performance Incentive Plan.

Annual incentive awards for executives are determined based on a formula with predetermined financial measures aligned with the Company's long-term growth metrics ("Company Performance Factor"), and an executive's individual performance is also taken into account ("Individual Performance Amount").

See "2015 Compensation Decisions for Named Executive Officers" beginning on page 52 for details of the 2015 annual incentives paid to the Named Executive Officers.

Enhancements Effective in 2015 and 2016

- Updated metrics, weightings and targets
- Reduced maximum from 300% of target to 250% of target starting in 2016





* The annual incentive plan includes a pool funding feature intended to allow the awards to Named Executive Officers to meet the requirements for tax deductibility under Section 162(m) of the Tax Code. The maximum pool that can be used to pay annual incentives to Named Executive Officers is 0.40% of the Company's comparable income before income taxes and there is an additional cap of 0.15% of comparable income before income taxes for the Chief Executive Officer. The Compensation Committee does not expect to award the full amount authorized by this pool funding and the amounts awarded for 2015 are well below these caps.

2015 Named Executive Officer Target Annual Incentive

	Base		Target
	Salary		Annual
Name	(12/31/2015)	Target (%)	Incentive (\$)
Mr. Kent	\$ 1,600,000	200%	\$ 3,200,000
Ms. Waller	732,875	125%	916,094
Mr. Quincey*	900,000	129%	1,162,620
Mr. Douglas	702,374	125%	877,968
Mr. Finan	888,125	150%	1,332,188

* Mr. Quincey's target incentive percentage is prorated for the time he was in his roles as President, Europe Group and President and Chief Operating Officer.

Company Performance Factor

- For 2015, the Company Performance Factor included three metrics and was determined by the actual performance (rounded to the nearest 0.5%) versus the midpoint of the target range for each performance metric, taking into account the weighting assigned to each performance metric. The Company Performance Factor is subject to a cap of 225% (to be reduced to 200% starting in 2016). No payout is earned for a metric if there is no growth over the prior year for that metric.
- Metrics and weightings were updated in 2015 consistent with our business strategy to focus on balanced revenue and profit growth. Net operating revenue growth (25% weighting) and profit before tax growth (50% weighting) were added as metrics, and unit case volume growth remained a metric (25% weighting).
- As seen in the following chart, Company performance in 2015 for each performance metric was at or above target and, as a result, the Company Performance Factor was 111%.
- For 2016, metrics and weightings remain the same as 2015, and the target ranges for comparable currency neutral profit before tax growth and comparable currency neutral net revenue growth increased.

Company Performance Factor for 2015				
	Target	Midpoint of	Actual	Actual vs Midpoint
Performance Metric	Range	Target Range	Performance	of Target Range
Profit Before Tax Growth* (50%)	4-5%	4.5%	5.5%	122%
Net Operating Revenue Growth* (25%)	3-4%	3.5%	3.5%	100%
Unit Case Volume Growth (25%)	2-3%	2.5%	2.5%	100%
Company Performance Factor			111%	

* Profit before tax growth and net operating revenue growth are calculated after adjusting for the impact of currency, and certain nonrecurring items affecting comparability. These measures differ from profit before tax and net operating revenue reported under GAAP, primarily due to the impact of currency, asset impairments/restructuring, productivity and reinvestment program, net charges by equity investees, transaction gains/losses and other items. In addition, these measures are calculated after adjusting for the impact of structural items. Structural items generally refer to acquisitions or dispositions of bottling, distribution or canning operations and consolidation or bottling and distribution entities for accounting purposes. We believe using these adjusted measures of profit before tax growth and net operating revenue growth are appropriate because it provides a more consistent comparison against the prior year.



Individual Performance Amounts

An Individual Performance Amount may be awarded based on an assessment of an executive's individual performance throughout the year, including consideration of:

- 🌻 quantitative and qualitative factors (e.g., executive's contribution to overall Company results and attainment of business/operating unit goals);
- 🌻 contributions toward strategic initiatives, including in the areas of People, Planet, Productivity, Partners, Portfolio and Profit; and
- other priorities such as: volume and value share gains, total return to shareowners, impact of significant acquisitions and innovations, internal equity and fairness, acquisitions and divestitures, productivity and reinvestment, and sustainability.

The maximum percentage of the target that can be awarded for individual performance has been reduced from 75% of target to 50% of target, beginning in 2016. No Named Executive Officers received an Individual Performance Amount exceeding 50% in 2015.

Long-Term Incentive Compensation

Overview

The Company grants long-term incentive compensation to reward performance over the longer term. The vast majority of these awards are performance based. Beginning in 2015, annual long-term incentive awards are equity-based for Named Executive Officers and other senior executives, and cash-based for other eligible employees. In 2015, approximately 750 employees received equity awards.

- Annual long-term incentive awards are made in February of each year.
- Apart from the annual awards, a limited number of other awards may be granted throughout the year.

See "2015 Compensation Decisions for Named Executive Officers" beginning on page 52 for details of the 2015 long-term equity awards granted to Named Executive Officers.

Enhancements Effective in 2015

- 🌻 First full year under Equity Stewardship Guidelines; achieved burn rate commitment of 0.4% a full year early
- 🌻 Net operating revenue growth added as a metric to annual PSU awards, along with economic profit growth
- Increased line of sight in PSU awards by tying payouts to group and business unit performance

Equity Stewardship Guidelines

In 2014, we adopted Equity Stewardship Guidelines which specify how we will use long-term equity compensation. The Equity Stewardship Guidelines can be viewed on the Company's website at www.coca-colacompany.com/equity-stewardship-guidelines. Primary features of the Equity Stewardship Guidelines include:

- 🌻 A burn rate commitment of 0.8% in 2015 and an average of 0.4% thereafter, which will provide more certainty on shares used for equity awards.
- Significant reduction in our use of stock options.
- Significant reduction in the number of equity-eligible participants in the long-term incentive program by introduction of performance cash awards.
- Increased transparency by including an Equity Scorecard.
- Commitment to continue share repurchases with 100% of proceeds from the exercise of stock options, which reduces potential dilution.

Equity Scorecard

The Equity Scorecard below provides information for 2015:

- The annual equity awards represent the vast majority of equity awards granted during the year. There was a substantial decrease in the number of shares used in 2015, consistent with the burn rate commitment.
- Overhang primarily includes outstanding awards granted under plans ("Prior Plans") in place prior to adoption of The Coca-Cola Company 2014 Equity Plan, as amended (the "2014 Equity Plan"). Awards from Prior Plans that expire or are forfeited (such as the 2013-2015 PSU awards, which will not pay out) will not be issued or available for future issuance. Overhang will decline each year as equity awards are exercised or realized, and as awards from Prior Plans expire or are forfeited.
- In the Equity Scorecard, actual dilution is how much the equity issued to employees reduces the value of existing shares. Actual dilution is expected to continue to be less than 1% per year going forward, because 100% of the proceeds received from employee stock option exercises are used to repurchase shares and our burn rate is below 1%. The Company repurchases additional shares through its share repurchase program, which resulted in a decrease in Common Stock outstanding in 2015.

2016 Proxy Statement A The Coa Cola Company 56

	EQUITY SCORECARD					
	Description		2015			
Burn Rate Commitment	Maximum burn rate of 0.8% in 2015 and a maximum average burn rate of 0.4% for the remaining life of the 2014 Equity Plan.		0.8%			
Actual Burn Rate	The total number of shares underlying equity awards granted in the year, as a percentage of Common Stock outstanding.		0.38%			
Overhang	The total number of shares underlying equity awards already granted plus those available for future grants, as a percentage of Common Stock outstanding.	Prior Plans	2014 Equity Plan	Total		
	With Equity Stewardship Guidelines ¹	6.2%	4.6%	10.8%		
Actual Dilution	A measure of how much the equity issued to employees reduces the value of existing shares. ²		0.3%			

1 With the burn rate commitment, over the 2014 Equity Plan's ten-year term, the maximum number of shares estimated to be used is 200 million (based on Common Stock outstanding decreasing by 1% each year).

2 Calculated by dividing the number of net shares issued to employees during the year by the average number of shares of Common Stock outstanding. The number of net shares issued represents the difference between the total number of shares issued and the number of shares repurchased solely using proceeds from employee stock option exercises. Does not include additional share repurchases which further mitigate dilution.

Long-Term Incentive Annual Awards: Amounts and Performance Measures

- 🌻 The Compensation Committee grants annual long-term incentive awards to eligible employees in February of each year.
- The Compensation Committee sets ranges for long-term incentive compensation for each job grade at the senior executive levels. The ranges were informed by a survey of our comparator group's pay practices. The Compensation Committee does not target a specific percentile ranking against our comparator group. The actual value of long-term incentive compensation within such ranges is individually determined at the discretion of the Compensation Committee. Consideration is given to the individual's skills, experience and future potential, the prior year's award value, as well as the individual's and Company's performance in the prior year.
- Once the value of the long-term incentive award is determined, the Compensation Committee grants a portion of the award in stock options and a portion in PSUs. When determining the number of stock options awarded, a Black-Scholes value is first calculated and, beginning in 2015, a floor and ceiling is applied based on a 30-day average stock price. This stock option "guardrail" increases predictability, helps manage the burn rate commitment and is intended to mitigate against high and low Black-Scholes values. For stock option grants in 2015, the low end of our guardrail was used, which valued options at 20% of the 30-day average stock price. PSUs are valued based on a 30-day average stock price.
- Due to differences in how the grant date fair value of long-term incentive awards must be calculated for accounting purposes, the 2015 Summary Compensation Table may not reflect the same stock option and PSU values described above.

How PSU Targets are Determined and Validated

- Beginning in 2007, growth in economic profit has been the performance measure for the annual PSU awards because it is an important measure of the Company's long-term strength and has historically correlated with the stock price. Economic profit is net operating profit after tax less the cost of capital used in the business, after adjusting for the impact of structural changes that are significant to the Company as a whole, accounting changes and certain other nonrecurring items affecting comparability. The economic profit growth target is derived from our three-year business plan.
- Beginning in 2015, net operating revenue growth was added as a performance measure for our annual PSU awards (30% weighting) because it is a key component of our business strategy. The maximum, target and threshold levels result in payouts of 150% at the maximum, 100% at target, and 35% at the threshold.
- The Compensation Committee set the targets for the 2015-2017 PSU awards taking into account that 2015 was a year of transition as the Company repositions the business for future growth. We believe the targets in our long-term incentive award programs are rigorous and consistent with market practices.
- The Compensation Committee undertook a detailed review of both the economic profit and net operating revenue metrics to validate the rigor with which we set and calibrate performance targets and ranges. This review included conducting probability analyses, benchmarking performance and evaluating the practices of comparator companies.

Why Targets Are Currency Neutral

- We believe incentive targets should measure the underlying results of the business.
- Currency fluctuations are largely outside the control of those running the business day-to-day.
- We believe business leaders should be encouraged to make decisions that drive long-term sustainable growth rather than to address short-term currency fluctuations.
- Figure 1 fluctuations in currency impacted incentive pay, it could demotivate employees and cause them to lose focus on driving value.

2016 Proxy Statement A The Coa Cola Company 57

Performance Share Units: Status of Programs and Relative Total Shareowner Return Modifier

Status of Annual PSU Programs

Performance Period	Performance Measure	Threshold, Target and Maximum Performance Levels	Status
2012-2014(1)(3)	Compound annual growth in economic profit	Threshold = 7.7% Target = 10.7% Maximum = 12.7%	 No shares were earned from these awards because performance was below the threshold level. Results were certified in February 2015.
2013-2015(1)(3)	Compound annual growth in economic profit	Threshold = 4.4% Target = 6.4% Maximum = 8.4%	No shares were earned from these awards because performance was below the threshold level.
2014-2016(1)(3)	Compound annual growth in economic profit	Threshold = 6.9% Target = 8.9% Maximum = 10.9%	 Results were certified in February 2016. Through December 31, 2015, payout is projected above the target level. Company performance over the remaining year of the performance period will determine the number of shares earned, if any.
			Results will be certified in February 2017, including applying the relative total shareowner return modifier, and any shares earned will be subject to an additional holding period through February 2018.
2015-2017(2)(3)	70% compound annual growth in economic profit	Threshold = 4.5% Target = 7.1% Maximum = 9.1%	Through December 31, 2015, payout is projected near the target level. Company performance over the remaining two years of the performance period will determine the number of shares earned, if any.
	30% net operating revenue growth ⁽⁴⁾	Threshold = 1.3% Target = 4.0% Maximum = 6.1%	Results will be certified in February 2018, including applying the relative total shareowner return modifier, and any shares earned will be subject to an additional holding period through February 2019.

1 Participants receive 50% of the award at the threshold level, 100% of the award at the target level and 150% of the award at the maximum level. Results are rounded and the number of shares is extrapolated on a linear basis between performance levels.

2 Participants receive 35% of the award at the threshold level, 100% of the award at the target level and 150% of the award at the maximum level. Results are rounded and the number of shares is extrapolated on a linear basis between performance levels.

- 3 The calculation of economic profit growth for the 2012-2014 and 2013-2015 periods was adjusted, and the 2014-2016 and 2015-2017 periods will be adjusted, to exclude items impacting comparability and to exclude structural items that are significant to the Company as a whole, including the refranchising of territories in North America. For the 2014-2016 and 2015-2017 periods, economic profit growth is calculated on a currency neutral basis.
- 4 The net operating revenue growth target for the 2015 year of the 2015-2017 period is for the total Company. The 2015-2017 PSU program provides for net operating revenue growth to be based on three one-year comparable currency neutral net operating revenue growth targets tied to total Company or group/business unit results, as applicable. This measure differs from net operating revenue growth reported under GAAP, primarily due to the impact of currency and other items. In addition, the calculation of net operating revenue growth for the 2015 period was adjusted, and the 2016 and 2017 periods will be adjusted, to exclude items impacting comparability and to exclude structural items that are significant to the Company as a whole, including the refranchising of territories in North America.

Relative Total Shareowner Return Modifier

- The Compensation Committee added a relative total shareowner return modifier to PSU awards beginning with the 2014-2016 performance period to further link awards to shareowner value creation.
- The number of shares earned from PSU awards will be reduced or increased if total shareowner return over the three-year performance period relative to our compensation comparator group (see page 59) falls outside of a defined range. Specifically, after the performance results are certified the award will be modified up or down as follows:

If total shareowner return over the three-year performance period is:	Then:
At or above the 75 th percentile of the comparator group	The award will be increased 25%
At or above the 25 th and below the 75 th percentile of our comparator group	No change to the award
Below the 25 th percentile of our comparator group	The award will be decreased 25%

Other Long-Term Incentive Awards

The vast majority of equity awards are made as part of the annual long-term incentive grants in February of each year. During the year, a limited number of additional equity awards may be granted, either as time-based restricted stock units or performance share units.

- Time-based restricted stock units are typically used for critical retention situations, make-whole awards for newly hired employees who forfeited equity awards at a prior employer, special recognition, promotions or when other forms of awards are not available for legal or tax reasons.
- From time to time, we establish additional PSU programs related to specific performance goals to motivate and reward for specific initiatives.
- Beginning in 2015, certain employees who had previously been eligible for long-term equity awards began receiving long-term performance cash awards. Performance cash awards are subject to the same performance criteria over a three-year period as the PSUs for equity-eligible employees to ensure a consistent focus on the same metrics.



How We Make Compensation Decisions

Decision-Making Process and Role of Executive Officers

- The Compensation Committee reviews and discusses the Board's evaluation of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and makes preliminary determinations about his base salary, annual incentive and long-term equity compensation. The Compensation Committee then discusses the compensation recommendations with the full Board and the Compensation Committee approves final compensation decisions after this discussion.
- Executive officers do not determine the compensation of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer.
- For other Named Executive Officers, the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer considers performance and makes individual recommendations to the Compensation Committee on base salary, annual incentive and long-term equity compensation. The Compensation Committee reviews, discusses, modifies and approves, as appropriate, these compensation recommendations.
- The Compensation Committee uses several resources and tools, including competitive market information and "tally sheets," which quantify each of the compensation elements as well as accumulated outstanding long-term equity awards and deferred compensation.

Compensation Comparator Group

- We use a comparator group of companies when making certain compensation decisions. The comparator group is used as a data point but compensation paid at other companies is not the primary factor in the decision-making process.
- The table below shows how the comparator group was chosen and how it is used.

 Available compensation data. Available compensation data. To compare Company performance and validate whether executive compensation programs are aligned with Company performance. As an input in designing compensation plans, benefits and perquisites. Since some of the comparator group companies are not U.S. based, a subgroup of t companies may be used for some of these purposes when data is not publicly available for the foreign companies. The comparator group for 2015 was: Abbott Laboratories Mondelēz International, Inc. 	How the Comparator Group Was Chosen	How We Use the Comparator Group*
 To evaluate share utilization by reviewing overhang levels and annual run rate. Large consumer products business. Market-leading brands or category positions as defined by Interbrand. Sustained growth over one-, three- and five-year periods. Available compensation data. To benchmark the form and mix of equity awarded to employees. To benchmark share ownership guidelines. To assess the competitiveness of total direct compensation awarded to senior executives. To compare Company performance and validate whether executive compensation programs are aligned with Company performance. As an input in designing compensation plans, benefits and perquisites. <i>Since some of the comparise row of these purposes when data is not publicly availat for the foreign companies.</i> The comparator group for 2015 was: 		
 Market-leading brands or category positions as defined by Interbrand. Sustained growth over one-, three- and five-year periods. Available compensation data. To assess the competitiveness of total direct compensation awarded to senior executives. To compare Company performance and validate whether executive compensation programs are aligned with Company performance. As an input in designing compensation plans, benefits and perquisites. Since some of the comparator group companies are not U.S. based, a subgroup of t companies may be used for some of these purposes when data is not publicly availat for the foreign companies. Abbott Laboratories 		, , ,
 Sustained growth over one-, three- and five-year periods. Available compensation data. To assess the competitiveness of total direct compensation awarded to senior executives. To compare Company performance and validate whether executive compensation programs are aligned with Company performance. As an input in designing compensation plans, benefits and perquisites. <i>* Since some of the comparator group companies are not U.S. based, a subgroup of t companies may be used for some of these purposes when data is not publicly availat for the foreign companies.</i> The comparator group for 2015 was: Abbott Laboratories 	Large consumer products business.	To benchmark the form and mix of equity awarded to employees.
 Available compensation data. Available compensation data. To compare Company performance and validate whether executive compensation programs are aligned with Company performance. As an input in designing compensation plans, benefits and perquisites. Since some of the comparator group companies are not U.S. based, a subgroup of t companies may be used for some of these purposes when data is not publicly available for the foreign companies. The comparator group for 2015 was: Abbott Laboratories Mondelēz International, Inc. 	Market-leading brands or category positions as defined by Interbrand.	🜻 To benchmark share ownership guidelines.
 To compare Company performance and validate whether executive compensation programs are aligned with Company performance. As an input in designing compensation plans, benefits and perquisites. Since some of the comparator group companies are not U.S. based, a subgroup of t companies may be used for some of these purposes when data is not publicly available for the foreign companies. The comparator group for 2015 was: Abbott Laboratories Mondelēz International, Inc. 		To assess the competitiveness of total direct compensation awarded to senior executives.
Since some of the comparator group companies are not U.S. based, a subgroup of t companies may be used for some of these purposes when data is not publicly available for the foreign companies. The comparator group for 2015 was: Abbott Laboratories Mondelēz International, Inc.	• Available compensation data.	
companies may be used for some of these purposes when data is not publicly available for the foreign companies. The comparator group for 2015 was: Abbott Laboratories Mondelēz International, Inc.		As an input in designing compensation plans, benefits and perquisites.
Abbott Laboratories Mondelēz International, Inc.		* Since some of the comparator group companies are not U.S. based, a subgroup of the companies may be used for some of these purposes when data is not publicly available for the foreign companies.
	The comparator group for 2015 was:	
AT&T Inc. NIKE. Inc.	Apple Inc.	Nestlé S.A.

ripple me:	i testie 5.1 t.
AT&T Inc.	NIKE, Inc.
Colgate-Palmolive Company	PepsiCo, Inc.
General Mills, Inc.	Philip Morris International Inc.
International Business Machines Corporation	The Procter & Gamble Company
Johnson & Johnson	Unilever PLC
Kimberly-Clark Corporation	Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.
McDonald's Corporation	

There were no changes to the comparator group for 2015. In 2015, the Compensation Committee approved updates to the comparator group companies and criteria to be effective in 2016. Effective in 2016, Abbott Laboratories and Apple Inc. were removed and Danone and Pfizer Inc. were added to the compensation comparator group.





Role of the Compensation Consultant

- In 2015, the Compensation Committee engaged Meridian Compensation Partners, LLC ("Meridian") as its compensation consultant. The Compensation Committee did not engage any other advisor in 2015.
- Meridian provided research, data analyses, survey information and design expertise in developing compensation programs for executives and incentive programs for eligible employees. Meridian kept the Compensation Committee apprised of regulatory developments and market trends related to executive compensation practices. Meridian does not determine or recommend the exact amount or form of executive compensation for any of the Named Executive Officers. A representative of Meridian attended meetings of the Compensation Committee.
- In accordance with the Compensation Committee's Independent Compensation Consultant Policy, which was last updated in 2015, prior to the retention of a compensation consultant (or any other external advisor), and annually thereafter, the Compensation Committee assesses the independence of the compensation consultant.
- Under the Independent Compensation Consultant Policy, a consultant is considered independent if:
 - The individual consultant and any consulting firm or organization that employs the consultant is independent of the Company,
 - The individual consultant does not provide services or products of any kind to the Company and its affiliates or to their management, other than in its capacity as the
 Compensation Committee's agent and
 - The consulting firm may not provide any other services to the Company without the prior written consent of the committee chair.
- The Compensation Committee assessed Meridian's independence, considering compliance with the Independent Compensation Consultant Policy and the following factors specified in the New York Stock Exchange listing standards: (a) the provision of other services by the consulting firm to the Company, (b) the amount of fees paid as a percentage of the total revenue of the consulting firm, (c) the policies and procedures of the consulting firm that are designed to prevent conflicts of interest, (d) any business or personal relationship of the consultant with a member of the committee, (e) any stock of the Company owned by the consultant and (f) any business or personal relationship of the consultant or consulting firm with an executive officer of the Company. Meridian provided the Compensation Committee with confirmation of its independent status under the Independent Compensation Consultant Policy.
- The Compensation Committee believes that Meridian is independent and that there is no conflict of interest between Meridian and the Compensation Committee.

Risk Considerations

- The Compensation Committee reviews the risks and rewards associated with the Company's compensation programs. The programs are designed with features that mitigate risk without diminishing the incentive nature of the compensation. We believe our compensation programs encourage and reward prudent business judgment and appropriate risk taking over the short term and the long term.
- Management and the Compensation Committee do not believe any of the Company's compensation programs create risks that are reasonably likely to have a material adverse impact on the Company.
- In 2015, the Company conducted, and the Compensation Committee reviewed, a comprehensive global risk assessment. The risk assessment included conducting a global inventory of incentive plans and programs and considered factors such as the plan metrics, number of participants, maximum payments and risk mitigation factors.

Additional Compensation Information

Retirement and Benefit Plans

- Named Executive Officers participate in the same retirement and benefit plans as the broader population of non-union employees, as applicable. These plans provide for basic retirement needs and serve as a safety net to protect against the financial catastrophes that can result from illness, disability or death.
- Retirement plans generally include pension plans, retirement savings plans and deferred compensation plans. There are no special or enhanced pension formulas for Named Executive Officers. See the 2015 Pension Benefits table on page 71 for the value of accumulated pension benefits for the Named Executive Officers.
- Benefit plans generally include medical, dental and disability plans.

Perquisites and Other Personal Benefits

The table below summarizes and provides the business rationale for each of the perquisites and other personal benefits provided to the Named Executive Officers. For more information about these perquisites and other personal benefits, and their values, see the discussion beginning on <u>page 65</u>.

Category	Description and Business Rationale
Aircraft Usage	To allow travel time of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Operating Officer to be used productively for the Company, for security purposes due to the high profile and global nature of our business and our highly symbolic and well-recognized brands, as well as to ensure availability to respond to business priorities from any location around the world.
Car and Driver	Provided where necessary for security and/or productivity reasons.
Security	To protect our employees given the global visibility of our brands and the extensive locations where we operate.
International Service Program	# To promote global mobility and development opportunities for individuals working outside their home country.
Financial and Tax Planning	To address the complex tax and financial situations of a significant percentage of our senior executives with dual nationalities or work histories in a number of countries. Assists in compliance with local country laws.
Other	Executive physicals are made available to set the example for active healthy living. In the United Kingdom, certain employees receive a "green commuter allowance."

Share Ownership Guidelines

- Share ownership guidelines align the executives' long-term financial interests with those of shareowners.
- All Named Executive Officers meet or exceed their share ownership guidelines.
- The ownership guidelines, which cover approximately 70 executives, are as follows:

Role	Value of Common Stock to be Owned*
Chief Executive Officer	8 times base salary
Chief Operating Officer and Operating Business Presidents	5 times base salary
Executive Vice Presidents, Group Presidents and President of Coca-Cola Refreshments	4 times base salary
Other senior executives	2 times base salary
Business Unit Presidents below senior executive level	1 times base salary

* Shares are valued based on the average closing price of Common Stock for the prior one-year period.

Stock options do not count toward the ownership guideline and PSUs count only after the performance criteria have been met.

To ensure compliance with the guidelines, the Compensation Committee may direct that up to 50% of the annual cash incentive be withheld if an executive is not compliant. The Compensation Committee also may mandate the retention of 100% of net shares, after settlement of taxes and transaction fees, acquired pursuant to equity awards granted on or after January 1, 2009.

Share Retention Policy

- Executive officers must retain 50% of the shares (after paying taxes) obtained from option exercises or from the release of PSUs or restricted stock awards until the earlier of one year after exercise/release of shares or separation from the Company.
- Limited exceptions apply for donations of stock to charities, educational institutions or family foundations and sales or divisions of property in the case of divorce, disability or death. The Compensation Committee is authorized to grant waivers in exceptional circumstances.
- Applies to equity awards granted in and after February 2013 and is in addition to the share ownership guidelines described above.

Change in Control

- The Company has change in control provisions in its annual Performance Incentive Plan, its equity plans and some of its retirement plans in which the Named Executive Officers participate. As described beginning on page 74, equity plans include "double-trigger" change in control provisions.
- Change in control provisions apply equally to all plan participants. We have no special change in control agreements or arrangements with any of the Named Executive Officers and we do not provide a tax gross-up for any change in control situation.
- The change in control provisions are intended to address the concern that, in the event the Company is considering a change in control transaction, the employees involved in considering the transaction might otherwise be motivated to act in their own interests rather than the interests of the shareowners.
- For a more detailed discussion of change in control provisions, see the Payments on Termination or Change in Control section beginning on page 73.

2016 Proxy Statement The Concella Company 61

Tax and Accounting Implications of Compensation

- Tax and accounting implications are considered, but they are not the only factors considered. Other important considerations outweigh tax or accounting considerations.
- Section 162(m) of the Tax Code limits deductibility of certain compensation to \$1 million per year for the Chief Executive Officer and the three other executive officers (other than the Chief Financial Officer) who are highest paid and employed at year-end. If certain conditions are met, performance-based compensation may be excluded from this limitation.
- The Company's annual and long-term incentive plans have been structured with the intent of enabling the Compensation Committee to grant compensation that constitutes "qualified performance-based compensation" under Section 162(m) of the Tax Code, if the Compensation Committee determines to do so. In 2015, all annual incentive payments to the Named Executive Officers were deducted.
- Generally under GAAP, compensation is expensed as earned. Equity compensation is expensed in accordance with ASC Topic 718, which is generally over the vesting period.

REPORT OF THE COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

The Compensation Committee has reviewed and discussed the Compensation Discussion and Analysis required by Item 402(b) of Regulation S-K with management. Based on such review and discussions, the Compensation Committee recommended to the Board of Directors that the Compensation Discussion and Analysis be included in this proxy statement and incorporated by reference into the Form 10-K.

> Maria Elena Lagomasino, Chair Ronald W. Allen Helene D. Gayle Alexis M. Herman

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE INTERLOCKS AND INSIDER PARTICIPATION

The Compensation Committee is comprised entirely of the four independent Directors listed above. No member of the Compensation Committee is a current, or during 2015 was a former, officer or employee of the Company or any of its subsidiaries. During 2015, no member of the Compensation Committee had a relationship that must be described under the SEC rules relating to disclosure of related person transactions. In 2015, none of our executive officers served on the board of directors or compensation committee of any entity that had one or more of its executive officers serving on the Board or the Compensation Committee of the Company.



COMPENSATION TABLES

The following tables, narrative and footnotes discuss the compensation of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer and the three other most highly compensated executive officers during 2015, who are referred to as the Named Executive Officers.

2015 Summary Compensation Table

						Change in			
						Pension Value			
					Non-Equit	and Nonqualified v Deferred			Total Without
Name				Option	Incentive Pla		All Other		Change
and Principal		Salary	Stock Awards	Awards	Compensatio		Compensation	Total	in Pension
Position	Year	(\$)	(\$)	(\$)	(5		(\$)	(\$)	Value
(a)	(b)	(c)	(e)	(f)	(1			(i)	(\$)*
Muhtar Kent	2015	\$ 1,600,000	\$ 4,904,848	\$ 2,830,597	\$ 4,600,00	0 \$ 0	\$ 655,126	\$14,590,571	\$ 14,590,571
Chairman of	2014	1,600,000	6,489,441	9,314,144		0 7,100,940	719,897	25,224,422	18,123,482
the Board and Chief Executive Officer	2013	1,600,000	6,399,988	7,113,946	2,200,00	0 2,204,814	861,912	20,380,660	18,175,846
Kathy N. Waller**	2015	728,406	1,897,287	1,094,927	1,200,08	3 751,588	59,755	5,732,046	4,980,458
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer	2014	641,890	622,624	893,634	653,00	0 1,024,287	43,808	3,879,243	2,854,956
James Quincey*** President and Chief Operating Officer	2015	700,972	3,727,920	636,243	1,523,03	2 59,071	199,713	6,846,951	6,787,880
J. Alexander M. Douglas, Jr.** Executive Vice President and President, Coca-Cola North America	2015 2014	698,091 682,711	4,377,783 2,972,286	1,019,016 2,113,148	1,237,93 694,00		· · · · · ·	7,469,704 8,026,751	7,396,506 6,526,665
Irial Finan**	2015	884,844	2,229,487	1,286,634	1,611,94	7 1,639,329	1,542,463	9,194,704	7,555,375
Executive Vice President and President, Bottling Investments and Supply Chain	2014	869,022	2,129,356	3,056,205	985,00	0 663,001	534,317	8,236,901	7,573,900

In order to show the effect that the year-over-year change in pension value had on total compensation, as determined under applicable SEC rules, we have included an additional column to show total compensation minus the change in pension value. The amounts reported in the Total Without Change in Pension Value column may differ substantially from the amounts reported in the Total column required under SEC rules and are not a substitute for total compensation. Total Without Change in Pension Value represents total compensation, as determined under applicable SEC rules, minus the change in pension value reported in the Change in Pension Value and Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Earnings column (but including the nonqualified deferred compensation earnings reported in that column, if any). The change in pension value is subject to many external variables, such as interest rates, that are not related to Company performance. Therefore, we do not believe a year-over-year change in pension value is helpful in evaluating compensation for comparative purposes and instead, believe shareowners may find the accumulated pension benefits in the 2015 Pension Benefits table on page 71 a more useful calculation of the pension benefits provided to the Named Executive Officers.

** Compensation for Ms. Waller and Messrs. Douglas and Finan is provided only for 2015 and 2014 because they were not Named Executive Officers for 2013.

***Mr. Quincey was appointed President and Chief Operating Officer effective August 13, 2015. Prior to becoming President and Chief Operating Officer, compensation for Mr. Quincey was delivered in British pounds. In calculating the dollar equivalent for items that are not denominated in U.S. dollars, the Company converts each payment into dollars based on an average exchange rate. Compensation for Mr. Quincey is provided only for 2015 because he was not a Named Executive Officer for 2014 and 2013.

2016 Proxy Statement The CarCola Company 63

Salary (Column (c))

The amount in the Salary column represents the base salary earned by each of the Named Executive Officers in the applicable year.

Stock Awards (Column (e))

The amount in the Stock Awards column is the grant date fair value of stock awards determined pursuant to ASC Topic 718. Except as described below for Messrs. Quincey and Douglas, all of the stock awards reported in the Stock Awards column are PSUs, which pay in stock if pre-determined performance metrics are met over a three-year period.

If a PSU's minimum performance measure is not met, no award is earned. If at least the minimum performance measure is attained, awards range from 35% to 150% of the target number of shares. In addition, beginning with the 2014-2016 PSUs, a relative total shareowner return ("TSR") modifier was added to the annual PSU program. The relative TSR modifier may reduce or increase the amount of shares earned by 25% if TSR over the three-year performance period relative to our compensation comparator group falls outside of a defined range. See <u>page 58</u> for more information about the relative TSR modifier.

The amounts in the table above reflect the value of the 2015 annual PSU program at the target (or 100%) level. The table below provides the potential value of the 2015 annual PSU program at the threshold, target and maximum levels. The metrics, targets and status of the outstanding PSU programs are described beginning on page 58.

		2015-2017 Performan Granted 02/1			
		Va	lue at		
	Value at	Target (1	00%)		
	Threshold	(Repor	ted in		Value
	Level	Colun	nn (e)	at I	Maximum
	(35%) ¹	Ab	ove) ¹	Leve	el (150%) ¹
t	\$ 1,716,693	\$ 4,90	04,848 \$		7,357,272
Waller	664,056	1,89	97,287		2,845,950
incey	385,879	1,10	02,474		1,653,730
ouglas	618,023	1,70	55,770		2,648,654
inan	780,318	2,22	29,487		3,344,249

1 The Compensation Committee added a relative TSR modifier to PSU awards beginning with the 2014-2016 performance period. The amount of shares earned may be reduced or increased by 25% if TSR over the three-year performance period relative to our compensation comparator group (see page 59) falls outside of a defined range.

For Messrs. Quincey and Douglas, the amounts in the 2015 Summary Compensation Table also reflect restricted stock unit awards granted on August 12, 2015 and October 14, 2015, respectively. See pages 53 and 54 for more information about these awards.

The assumptions used by the Company in calculating these amounts are incorporated herein by reference to Note 12 to the Company's consolidated financial statements in the Form 10-K. The equity awards included in column (e) above for 2015 were granted under the 2014 Equity Plan and for prior years were granted under The Coca-Cola Company 1989 Restricted Stock Award Plan (the "1989 Restricted Stock Award Plan").

To see the value actually received upon vesting of stock by the Named Executive Officers in 2015, refer to the 2015 Option Exercises and Stock Vested table on page 70. Additional information on all outstanding stock awards is reflected in the 2015 Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End table beginning on page 68.

Option Awards (Column (f))

The amounts reported in the Option Awards column represent the grant date fair value of stock option awards granted to each of the Named Executive Officers, calculated in accordance with ASC Topic 718.

The assumptions used by the Company in calculating these amounts are incorporated herein by reference to Note 12 to the Company's consolidated financial statements in the Form 10-K. The options included in column (f) above for 2015 were granted under the 2014 Equity Plan and for prior years were granted under The Coca-Cola Company 2008 Stock Option Plan (the "2008 Stock Option Plan").

To see the value actually received upon exercise of options by the Named Executive Officers in 2015, refer to the 2015 Option Exercises and Stock Vested table on page 70. Additional information on all outstanding option awards is reflected in the 2015 Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End table beginning on page 68.

Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation (Column (g))

The amounts reported in the Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation column reflect the amounts earned by each Named Executive Officer under the Company's annual Performance Incentive Plan. The Annual Incentive Compensation section of the Compensation Discussion and Analysis, which begins on page 47, describes how the 2015 Performance Incentive Plan awards to the Named Executive Officers were determined.

Change in Pension Value and Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Earnings(Column (h))

The amounts reported in the Change in Pension Value and Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Earnings column for 2015, 2014 and 2013 are comprised entirely of changes between December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2015, between December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2014 and between December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2013, respectively, in the actuarial present value of the accumulated pension benefits of each of the Named Executive Officers under the applicable pension plan.

Pension values may fluctuate significantly from year to year depending on a number of factors, including age, years of service, average annual earnings and the assumptions used to determine the present value, such as the discount rate. The assumptions used by the Company in calculating the change in pension value are described on page 71. For Mr. Kent, \$0 is reported for 2015 because there was a decrease of \$520,561 in the actuarial present value of his pension benefit. This decrease was primarily due to Mr. Kent having already attained the earliest age at which he is eligible for unreduced pension benefits as of the beginning of 2015 and a higher discount rate assumption for 2015.

The Company cautions that the values reported in the Change in Pension Value and Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Earnings column are theoretical as those amounts are calculated pursuant to SEC requirements and are based on assumptions used in preparing the Company's audited financial statements for the applicable fiscal years. The Company's retirement plans utilize a different method of calculating actuarial present value for the purpose of determining a lump sum payment, if any. The change in pension value from year to year as reported in the table is subject to market volatility and may not represent the value that a Named Executive Officer will actually accrue or receive under the Company's retirement plans during any given year.

None of the Named Executive Officers received above-market or preferential earnings (as these terms are defined by the SEC) on their nonqualified deferred compensation accounts.

The material provisions of the Company's retirement plans and deferred compensation plans in which the Named Executive Officers participate are described beginning on page 77.

All Other Compensation (Column (i))

The amounts reported in the All Other Compensation column reflect, for each Named Executive Officer, the sum of (i) the incremental cost to the Company of all perquisites and other personal benefits, (ii) the amount of any tax reimbursements, (iii) the amounts contributed by the Company to applicable Company 401(k) and savings plans and (iv) the dollar value of life insurance premiums paid by the Company. Amounts contributed to Company 401(k) and savings plans are calculated on the same basis for all participants in the relevant plan, including the Named Executive Officers. The material provisions of the Company 401(k) and savings plans in which the Named Executive Officers participate are described beginning on page 78.

The following table outlines those perguisites and other personal benefits and additional all other compensation required by SEC rules to be separately quantified. A dash indicates that the Named Executive Officer received the perquisite or personal benefit but the amount was not required to be disclosed under SEC rules. The narrative following the table describes all categories of perquisites and other personal benefits provided by the Company in 2015.

			P	erquisites and	Other Personal Be	nefits	Additional All Other Compensation						
					International Service	Financial			Company Contributions				
		Aircraft	Car and		Program	and Tax		Tax	to Company 401(k)	Life Insurance			
Name	Year	Usage	Driver	Security	Benefits	Planning	Other	Reimbursement	and Savings Plans	Premiums			
Mr. Kent	2015	\$ 192,337	\$ 198,217	\$ 130,591	N/A	\$ —	\$ —	\$ 59,250	\$ 56,000	\$ 3,936			
	2014	178,593	185,248	128,333	N/A	_	_	76,423	133,000	1,944			
	2013	239,924	176,013	135,788	N/A	_	_	27,951	266,000	1,692			
Ms. Waller	2015	0	0	0	N/A	_	_	0	48,349	2,111			
	2014	0	0	0	N/A	_		0	32,366	586			
Mr. Quincey	2015	0	_	—	\$ 108,418	0	_	0	61,586	5,201			
Mr. Douglas	2015	0	0	0	N/A	_		1,139	48,723	2,025			
	2014	0	0	0	N/A	_		5,633	44,545	986			
Mr. Finan	2015	0	0	0	1,519,282	—	_	0	15,542	2,624			
	2014	0	0	0	527,281	_	—	0	N/A	1,242			

Aircraft Usage

The Company owns and operates business aircraft to allow employees to safely and efficiently travel for business purposes around the world. Given the Company's significant global presence, we believe it is a business imperative for senior leaders to be on the ground at our global operations. The Company aircraft allow employees to be far more productive than if commercial flights were utilized, as the aircraft provide a confidential and highly productive environment in which to conduct business without the schedule constraints imposed by commercial airline service.

The Company aircraft are made available to the Named Executive Officers for their personal use in the following situations:

- The Company aircraft is the Board's strongly preferred method for all travel by Mr. Kent, for both business and personal travel. This is for security purposes due to the high profile and global nature of our business and our highly symbolic and well-recognized brands, as well as to ensure that he can be immediately available to respond to business priorities from any location around the world. This arrangement also allows travel time to be used productively for the Company. Mr. Kent and his immediate family traveling with him use the Company aircraft for a reasonable number of personal trips. Personal use of the Company aircraft results in imputed taxable income. Mr. Kent is not provided a tax reimbursement for personal use of aircraft. For the same reasons, limited personal use of the Company aircraft is permitted for Mr. Quincey upon becoming President and Chief Operating Officer.
- No other Named Executive Officer uses the Company aircraft for personal purposes except in extraordinary circumstances. The Company aircraft was not used solely for personal purposes by Named Executive Officers in 2015, other than Mr. Kent.
- Infrequently, spouses and guests of Named Executive Officers ride along on the Company aircraft when the aircraft is already going to a specific destination for a business purpose. This use has minimal cost to the Company and, where applicable, a nominal amount is included in the All Other Compensation table above. Income is imputed to the Named Executive Officer for income tax purposes, but no tax reimbursement is provided since such persons are not traveling for a business purpose.



In determining the incremental cost to the Company of personal use of the Company aircraft, the Company calculates, for each aircraft, the direct variable operating costs on an hourly basis, including all costs that may vary by the hours flown. Items included in calculating this cost are as follows:

- aircraft fuel and oil;
- travel, lodging and other expenses for crew;
- prorated amount of repairs and maintenance;
- prorated amount of rental fee on airplane hangar;
- catering;
- logistics (landing fees, permits, etc.);
- telecommunication expenses and other supplies; and
- the amount, if any, of disallowed tax deductions associated with such use.

When the aircraft is already flying to a destination for business purposes, only the direct variable costs associated with the additional passenger (for example, catering) are included in determining the aggregate incremental cost to the Company. While it happens very rarely, if an aircraft flies empty before picking up or after dropping off a passenger flying for personal reasons, this "deadhead" segment would be included in the incremental cost.

Car and Driver

Mr. Kent is provided with a car and driver in the U.S. both for security purposes and to maximize his efficiency during business hours. When not being utilized by Mr. Kent, the car and driver are used for other Company business. However, the Company has included the entire cost of the car and driver, including all salary, benefits and related employment costs. A car and driver are made available to Mr. Kent in Turkey for security purposes. Mr. Quincey was provided a car allowance in the United Kingdom prior to his appointment as President and Chief Operating Officer. No other Named Executive Officer is provided with a car or driver.

Security

The Company provides a security program for Mr. Kent. This includes monitoring equipment at his homes and Company-paid security personnel. Upon becoming President and Chief Operating Officer, security upgrades were made to Mr. Quincey's residence. No other Named Executive Officer is provided with Company-paid security, except where necessary when traveling overseas.

International Service Program Benefits

The Company provides benefits to globally mobile associates under various international service programs, the material provisions of which are described on page 79. These programs are designed to relocate and support employees who are sent on an assignment outside of their home country. The purpose of the programs is to make sure that when the Company requests that an employee move outside his or her home country, economic considerations do not play a role. This helps the Company quickly meet its business needs around the world and develop its employees.

In connection with Mr. Quincey's appointment as President and Chief Operating Officer and to support his transition to Atlanta from the United Kingdom, Mr. Quincey will receive benefits under an international service program for a period of up to two years until September 2017.

Mr. Finan, who is based in Atlanta, participated in an international service program until July 2015. The amounts reported include payments for housing expenses, home leave, tax equalization, currency protection, other program allowances and certain localization benefits triggered when he ceased to participate in the program.

The costs to the Company were as follows:

		Currency					Housing	Hos	t Country		Tax	Othe	er Program	Lo	calization
Name	Year	Protection	Relocation	Home	Leave	A	Allowance		Allowance	Eq	ualization		Allowances		Benefits
Mr. Quincey	2015	\$ 0	\$ 68,355	\$	6,300	\$	2,365	\$	1,856	\$	29,422	\$	120	\$	0
Mr. Finan	2015	(61,736)	0	2	3,400		240,254		0		984,726		2,740		329,898
	2014	85,327	0	2	4,342		158,508		0		256,124		2,980		0

Financial and Tax Planning

The Company provides a taxable reimbursement to the Named Executive Officers for financial planning services, which may include tax preparation and estate planning services. No tax reimbursements are provided to the Named Executive Officers for this benefit.

Other Perquisites

The Company makes available executive physicals to executives, including the Named Executive Officers. Mr. Quincey received a small "green commuter allowance" while working in the United Kingdom in 2015.

Additional All Other Compensation

Tax Reimbursement

The amounts reported in the table on page 65 represent tax reimbursements for certain Named Executive Officers. All amounts for 2015 are related to business use of the Company aircraft. No Named Executive Officer is provided a tax reimbursement for personal use of aircraft, but Named Executive Officers are provided a tax reimbursement for taxes incurred when a spouse travels for business purposes. These taxes are incurred because of the Internal Revenue Service's extremely limited rules concerning business travel by spouses. It is sometimes necessary for spouses to accompany Named Executive Officers to business functions. In contrast to personal use,

the Company does not believe an employee should pay personally when travel is required or important for business purposes.

To calculate taxable income, the Standard Industry Fare Level rates set by the Internal Revenue Service are used. Where a tax reimbursement is authorized, it is calculated using the highest marginal federal tax rate, applicable state rate and Medicare rates. The rate used to calculate taxable income has no relationship to the incremental cost to the Company associated with the use of the aircraft.

Company Contributions to 401(k) and Savings Plans

The Company makes matching contributions to Named Executive Officer's accounts under the applicable Company 401(k) or savings plan on the same terms and using the same formulas as other participating employees. In 2015, Ms. Waller and Messrs. Kent, Douglas and Finan participated in The Coca-Cola Company 401(k) Plan (the "401(k) Plan") and The Coca-Cola Company Supplemental 401(k) Plan (the "Supplemental 401(k) Plan"). In 2015. Mr. Quincey participated in the Coca-Cola UK Stakeholder Pension Plan (the "UK Savings Plan").

The amounts reported in the table on page 65 represent the following contributions in 2015:

- Mr. Kent \$9,275 to the 401(k) Plan and \$46,725 to the Supplemental 401(k) Plan.
- Ms. Waller \$9,275 to the 401(k) Plan and \$39,074 to the Supplemental 401(k) Plan.
- Mr. Quincey \$61,586 to the UK Savings Plan.
- Mr. Douglas \$9,275 to the 401(k) Plan and \$39,448 to the Supplemental 401(k) Plan.
- Mr. Finan \$9,275 to the 401(k) Plan and \$6,267 to the Supplemental 401(k) Plan.

Life Insurance Premiums

The Company provides life insurance to U.S. based employees, including the Named Executive Officers. In 2015, this coverage was equal to the lesser of 1.5 times pay or \$2 million. Mr. Quincey was provided life insurance in the United Kingdom prior to his appointment as President and Chief Operating Officer. The amounts reported in the table on page 65 represent the premiums paid for this insurance by the Company.

2015 Grants of Plan Based Awards

		Estimated Future Payouts Under Non-Equity Incentive Plan Awards			Estimated Future Payouts Under Equity Incentive Plan Awards			All Other Stock Awards:	All Other Option Awards:	Exercise				Grant Date
								Number of Shares of Stock	Number of Securities Underlying	or Base Price of Option		Closing rice on	Q	Fair Value of Stock and Option
		Threshold	Target	Maximum	Threshold	Target	Maximum	or Units	Options	Awards		Grant		Awards
Name (a)	Grant Date (b)	(\$) (c)	(\$) (d)	(\$) (e)	(#) (f)	(#) (g)	(#) (h)	(#) (i)	(#) (j)	(\$/Sh) (k)		Date (\$/Sh)		(\$) (1)
Muhtar	02/19/2015		\$ 3,200,000	\$ 9,600,000	()	(8/	()	(-)		()	_	(4. 2022)	_	(-)
Kent	02/19/2015			, ,	45,124	128,926	193,389						\$	4,904,848
	02/19/2015				- 7				644,783	\$ 41.885	\$	42.11		2,830,597
Kathy N. Waller	02/19/2015 02/19/2015 02/19/2015	0	916,094	2,748,282	17,455	49,871	74,807		249,414	41.885		42.11		1,897,287 1,094,927
James	02/19/2015	0	1,162,620	3,487,860										
Quincey	02/19/2015				10,143	28,979	43,469							1,102,474
	02/19/2015								144,930	41.885		42.11		636,243
	08/12/2015							72,838						2,625,446
J. Alexander M. Douglas, Jr.	02/19/2015 02/19/2015 02/19/2015 10/14/2015	0	877,968	2,633,904	16,245	46,414	69,621	66,667	232,122	41.885		42.11		1,765,770 1,019,016 2,612,013
Irial Finan	02/19/2015	0	1,332,188	3,996,564										
	02/19/2015				20,511	58,603	87,905		202.002	41.007		40.11		2,229,487
	02/19/2015								293,083	41.885		42.11		1,286,634

Estimated Future Payouts Under Non-Equity Incentive Plan Awards (Annual Incentive)(Columns (c), (d) and (e))

The amounts relate to the possible awards under the annual Performance Incentive Plan as described beginning on page 54. Actual payments under these awards were determined in February 2016, will be paid in March 2016 and are included in the Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation column (column (q)) of the 2015 Summary Compensation Table. The amounts included for Mr. Quincey reflect a prorated target annual incentive percentage based on the days worked before and after becoming President and Chief Operating Officer in August 2015.



Estimated Future Payouts Under Equity Incentive Plan Awards (PSUs)(Columns (f), (g) and (h))

The awards represent PSUs granted in February 2015. The performance period for the awards is from January 1, 2015 to December 31, 2017. The awards are subject to an additional holding period through February 2019 and a relative TSR modifier. The grant date fair value is included in the Stock Awards column (column (e)) of the 2015 Summary Compensation Table. For additional details of the PSU awards granted in 2015, see the discussion beginning on page 56.

All Other Stock Awards: Number of Shares of Stock or Units(Column (i))

In August 2015, Mr. Quincey received a restricted stock unit award associated with his appointment as President and Chief Operating Officer. The award will vest 50% on August 12, 2018 and 50% on August 12, 2019, provided Mr. Quincey remains employed with the Company.

In October 2015, Mr. Douglas received a restricted stock unit award for his leadership in accelerating bottler refranchising efforts and business growth in North America and to reward and retain him for this critical work. The award will vest 100% on December 31, 2017, provided Mr. Douglas remains employed with the Company.

The grant date fair value of these awards is included in the Stock Awards column (column (e)) of the 2015 Summary Compensation Table.

All Other Option Awards and Exercise Price of Option Awards (Stock Options)(Columns (j) and (k))

The awards represent stock options granted in February 2015. These options have a term of ten years from the grant date and vest 25% on the first, second, third and fourth anniversaries of the grant date. The exercise price of stock options is the average of the high and low price of the Common Stock on the grant date.

2015 Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End

		Option	Awards		Stock Awards							
Name	Numberof Securities Underlying Unexercised Options (#) Exercisable (b)	Number of Securities Underlying Unexercised Options (#) Unexercisable (c)	Option Exercise Price (\$) (e)	Option Expiration Date (f)	Number of Shares or Units of Stock That Have Not Vested (#) (g)	Market Value of Shares or Units of Stock That Have Not Vested (\$) (h)*	Equity Incentive Plan Awards: Number of Unearned Shares, Units or Other Rights That Have Not Vested (#) (i)	Equity Incentive Plan Awards: Market or Payout Value of Unearned Shares, Units or Other Rights That Have Not Vested (\$)				
(a) Muhtar Kent	689,6561		\$ 23.92000	02/14/2017	014 \$	0	429,86715					
	731,7062		29.07250	02/20/2018			.,	-, -,				
	1,265,8223		25.26500	07/16/2018								
	578,7044		29.05475	07/16/2018								
	2,334,0005		21.60000	02/18/2019								
	1,211,4006		27.76750	02/17/2020								
	1,603,2007		31.99750	02/16/2021								
	1,356,5228	452,1748	34.35250	02/15/2022								
	956,175 ⁹	956,176 ⁹	37.61000	02/20/2023								
	595,53310	1,786,60110	37.20500	02/19/2024								
		644,78311	41.88500	02/18/2025								
Kathy N. Waller	$16,920^{12} \\ 12,632^{13} \\ 46,800^{1} \\ 23,240^{2} \\ 68,230^{5} \\ 88,400^{6} \\ 104,200^{7} \\ 88,941^{8} \\ 59,940^{9} \\ 57,138^{10} \\ \end{array}$	29,647 ⁸ 59,940 ⁹ 171,413 ¹⁰ 249,414 ¹¹	24.10500 22.32750 23.92000 29.07250 21.60000 27.76750 31.99750 34.35250 37.61000 37.20500 41.88500	05/29/2016 12/17/2017 02/14/2017 02/20/2018 02/18/2019 02/17/2020 02/16/2021 02/15/2022 02/20/2023 02/19/2024 02/18/2025	0 ¹⁶	0	78,745 ¹⁷	3,382,885				
		., .				2016 Proxy State	ement 💧 <i>The Coc</i> e	Cola Company E				
		Option	1 Awards		Stock Awards							
---------------------------------	---	---	------------------------------	-----------------------------------	---	---	---	---	--			
Name (a)	Number of Securities Underlying Unexercised Options (#) Exercisable (b)	Number of Securities Underlying Unexercised Options (#) Unexercisable (c)	Optio Exercise Pric ()	e Expiration b) Date b) (f)	Number of Shares or Units of Stock That Have Not Vested (#) (g)	Market Value of Shares or Units of Stock That Have Not Vested (8) (h)*	Equity Incentive Plan Awards: Number of Unearned Shares, Units or Other Rights That Have Not Vested (#) (i)	Equity Incentive Plan Awards: Market or Payout Value of Unearned Shares, Units or Other Rights That Have Not Vested (\$) (j)*				
James Quincey		38,2608	\$ 34.3525		72,83818 \$	3,129,120	75,48419 \$	3,242,793				
	128,4869	128,4869	37.6100									
	92,02910	276,08510	37.2050									
		144,93011	41.8850									
J. Alexander M. Douglas, Jr.	27,966 ¹ 321,950 ²		23.9200 29.0725		94,253 ²⁰	4,049,109	130,364 ²¹	5,600,437				
	45,154 ⁵		21.6000	0 02/18/2019								
	271,600 ⁶		27.7675									
	449,800 ⁷		31.9975									
	315,6548	105,2168	34.3525									
	216,9339	216,932 ⁹	37.6100									
	135,112 ¹⁰	405,33510	37.2050									
Irial Finan	455,1721	232,122 ¹¹	41.8850 23.9200		022	0	157,35023	6,759,756				
	354,1462		29.0725	0 02/20/2018								
	672,2685		21.6000	0 02/18/2019								
	341,6006		27.7675	0 02/17/2020								
	374,2007		31.9975	0 02/16/2021								
	281,2188	93,7388	34.3525	0 02/15/2022								
	209,1649	209,1639	37.6100	0 02/20/2023								
	195,41010	586,22810	37.2050	0 02/19/2024								
		293,08311	41.8850	0 02/18/2025								

Market value in columns (h) and (j) was determined by multiplying the number of shares of stock or units, as applicable, by \$42.96, the closing price of Common Stock on December 31, 2015

1 These options were granted on February 15, 2007. The options vested 25% on the first, second, third and fourth anniversaries of the grant date.

2 These options were granted on February 21, 2008. The options vested 25% on the first, second, third and fourth anniversaries of the grant date.

3 These options were granted on July 17, 2008. The options vested 25% on the first, second, third and fourth anniversaries of the grant date.

4 These options were granted on July 17, 2008. The options vested 100% on the fourth anniversary of the grant date.

5 These options were granted on February 19, 2009. The options vested 25% on the first, second, third and fourth anniversaries of the grant date.

6 These options were granted on February 18, 2010. The options vested 25% on the first, second, third and fourth anniversaries of the grant date.

7 These options were granted on February 17, 2011. The options vested 25% on the first, second, third and fourth anniversaries of the grant date.

8 These options were granted on February 16, 2012. The options vest 25% on the first, second, third and fourth anniversaries of the grant date.

9 These options were granted on February 21, 2013. The options vest 25% on the first, second, third and fourth anniversaries of the grant date.

10 These options were granted on February 20, 2014. The options vest 25% on the first, second, third and fourth anniversaries of the grant date.

11 These options were granted on February 19, 2015. The options yest 25% on the first, second, third and fourth anniversaries of the grant date.

12 These options were granted on May 30, 2001. The options vested 25% on the first, second, third and fourth anniversaries of the grant date.

13 These options were granted on December 18, 2002. The options vested 25% on the first, second, third and fourth anniversaries of the grant date.

14 No amounts are included with respect to the 2012-2014 or the 2013-2015 PSU programs because the threshold performance measures were not met.

15 Reflects 300,941 PSUs for the 2014-2016 PSU program at the maximum award level and 128,926 PSUs for the 2015-2017 PSU program at the target award level.

16 No amounts are included with respect to the 2012-2014 or the 2013-2015 PSU programs because the threshold performance measures were not met.

17 Reflects 28,874 PSUs for the 2014-2016 PSU program at the maximum award level and 49,871 PSUs for the 2015-2017 PSU program at the target award level.

18 Reflects 72,838 restricted stock units that will vest 50% on August 12, 2018 and 50% on August 12, 2019. No amounts are included with respect to the 2012-2014 or the 2013-2015 PSU programs because the threshold performance measures were not met.

19 Reflects 46,505 PSUs for the 2014-2016 PSU program at the maximum award level and 28,979 PSUs for the 2015-2017 PSU program at the target award level.

20 Reflects 12,539 restricted stock units issued upon satisfaction of the 2014 performance measure and 15,047 restricted stock units issued upon satisfaction of the 2015 performance measure under a 2014-2016 PSU award, and 66,667 restricted stock units that will vest on December 31, 2017. No amounts are included with respect to the 2012-2014 or the 2013-2015 PSU programs because the threshold performance measures were not met.

21 Reflects 68,276 PSUs for the 2014-2016 PSU program at the maximum award level, 46,414 PSUs for the 2015-2017 PSU program at the target award level and 15,674 PSUs for a 2014-2016 performance-based award at the target award level.

22 No amounts are included with respect to the 2012-2014 or the 2013-2015 PSU programs because the threshold performance measures were not met.

23 Reflects 98,747 PSUs for the 2014-2016 PSU program at the maximum award level and 58,603 PSUs for the 2015-2017 PSU program at the target award level.



2015 Option Exercises and Stock Vested

	Option Awards		Stock	Awards
	Number of Shares	Value Realized	Number of Shares	Value Realized
	Acquired on Exercise	on Exercise	Acquired on Vesting	on Vesting
Name	(#)	(\$)	(#)	(\$)
(a)	(b)	(c)	(d)	(e)
Muhtar Kent	460,000	\$10,197,150	0	\$ 0
Kathy N. Waller	68,880	1,264,474	252	10,524
James Quincey	286,584	2,668,385	252	10,524
J. Alexander M. Douglas, Jr.	39,380	420,111	0	0
Irial Finan	280,000	6,050,944	0	0

Option Awards (Columns (b) and (c))

The following table provides details of the stock options exercised in 2015.

				Value
				Realized on
Name	Grant Date	Options Exercised	Exercise Date	Exercise
Mr. Kent	05/02/2005	160,000	03/02/2015	\$3,434,400
	12/14/2005	300,000	10/22/2015	6,762,750
Ms. Waller	10/18/2000	12,000	03/12/2015	137,752
	12/14/2005	56,880	03/12/2015	1,126,722
Mr. Quincey	02/17/2011	171,800	02/24/2015	1,761,139
	02/16/2012	114,784	02/26/2015	907,246
Mr. Douglas	10/18/2000	39,380	09/28/2015	420,111
Mr. Finan	12/14/2005	280,000	11/02/2015	6,050,944

Stock Awards (Columns (d) and (e))

The following table provides details of the stock awards that vested and value realized in 2015.

			Number of		Price on	R	Value ealized on	
Name	Grant Date	Release Date	Shares	Relea	ase Date ¹		Release	Description
Ms. Waller	02/16/2012	02/17/2015	252	\$	41.76	\$	10,524	Shares underlying a one-time award of restricted stock units
Mr. Quincey	02/16/2012	02/17/2015	252		41.76		10,524	Shares underlying a one-time award of restricted stock units

1 Represents the average of the high and low prices of Common Stock on the applicable release date.



2015 Pension Benefits

Name (a)	Plan Name (b)	Number of Years Credited Service (#) (c)	Present Value of Accumulated Benefit (\$) (d)	Payments During Last Fiscal Year (\$) (e)
Muhtar Kent	TCCC Pension Plan	27.9	\$ 1,324,919	\$ 0
	TCCC Supplemental Pension Plan	1	38,815,986	0
Kathy N. Waller	TCCC Pension Plan	28.3	1,055,352	0
	TCCC Supplemental Pension Plan	1	3,127,317	0
James Quincey	Mobile Plan	9.8	1,364,748	255
	TCCC Pension Plan	2.9^2	76,067	0
	TCCC Supplemental Pension Plan	1	222,577	0
J. Alexander M. Douglas, Jr.	TCCC Pension Plan	28.0	904,949	0
	TCCC Supplemental Pension Plan	1	5,751,738	0
Irial Finan	Mobile Plan	10.9 ³	6,830,419	17,414
	TCCC Pension Plan	0.5	21,200	0
	TCCC Supplemental Pension Plan	1	14,325	0

1 For each person, the same years of service apply to both the TCCC Pension Plan and the TCCC Supplemental Pension Plan, which work in tandem.

2 Mr. Quincey is not currently earning additional years of credited service. These years of service relate to a prior period of employment.

3 In July 2015, Mr. Finan stopped participating in an international service program. As a result, Mr. Finan began participating in the TCCC Pension Plan and TCCC Supplemental Pension Plan, and stopped earning benefits under the Mobile Plan.

The Company provides retirement benefits from various plans to its employees, including the Named Executive Officers. Due to the Company's global operations, it maintains different plans to address different market conditions, various legal and tax requirements and different groups of employees.

In 2015, all Named Executive Officers participated in or had a benefit under The Coca-Cola Company Pension Plan (the "TCCC Pension Plan") and The Coca-Cola Company Supplemental Pension Plan (the "TCCC Supplemental Pension Plan"). In 2015, Messrs. Quincey and Finan participated in the Mobile Employees Retirement Plan (the "Mobile Plan"). Additional details of these plans are described beginning on page 77. The table above reflects the present value of benefits accrued by each of the Named Executive Officers from the applicable plans. For Messrs. Quincey and Finan, the table above also reflects required tax payments made in 2015.

Compensation used for determining pension benefits under the TCCC Pension Plan, the TCCC Supplemental Pension Plan and the Mobile Plan generally includes only salary and short-term cash incentives. The amounts reflected for each plan represent the present value of the maximum benefit payable under the applicable plan. In some cases, the payments may be reduced for early retirement or by benefits paid by other Company-sponsored retirement plans, statutory payments or Social Security.

The Company generally does not grant additional years of benefit service, and no Named Executive Officer has been credited with additional years of benefit service.

The discount rate assumption used by the Company in calculating the present value of accumulated benefits was 4.34% for the TCCC Pension Plan and 4.28% for the TCCC Supplemental Pension Plan. Additional assumptions used by the Company in calculating the present value of accumulated benefits are incorporated herein by reference to Note 13 to the Company's consolidated financial statements in the Form 10-K. The calculations assume that the Named Executive Officer continues to live at least until the earliest age at which an unreduced benefit is payable.

The Company's retirement plans utilize a different method of calculating actuarial present value for the purpose of determining a lump sum payment, if any. The traditional pension benefit under the TCCC Supplemental Pension Plan is paid in the form of an annuity if the employee has reached at least age 55 with ten years of service at the time of his or her separation from the Company. Therefore, Mr. Kent is required to take the traditional pension benefit portion of his TCCC Supplemental Pension Plan benefit in the form of an annuity.



2015 Nongualified Deferred Compensation

The following table provides information on the Named Executive Officers' participation in The Coca-Cola Company Deferred Compensation Plan (the "Deferred Compensation Plan") and the Supplemental 401(k) Plan, as applicable. These plans either allow eligible employees to defer part of their salary and annual incentive on a voluntary basis or make employees whole when the Company matching contribution is limited under the tax-qualified plan. The Company matching contribution under the Supplemental 401(k) Plan was provided at the same rate as the match in the 401(k) Plan. The Company does not match any additional voluntary deferrals.

Additional details of the Deferred Compensation Plan and the Supplemental 401(k) Plan are described on pages 78 and 79.

Name		Executive Contributions in Last FY (\$)	Registrant Contributions in Last FY (\$)	Aggregate Earnings in Last FY (\$)	Aggregate Withdrawals/ Distributions (\$)	Balanc	Aggregate e at Last FYE (\$)
(a)	Plan Name	(b)	(c)	(d)	(e)		(1)
Muhtar Kent	Deferred Compensation Plan	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A		N/A
	Supplemental 401(k) Plan	N/A	\$ 46,725	\$ 122,308	\$ 0	\$	2,510,477
Kathy N. Waller	Deferred Compensation Plan	\$ 0	0	(9,203)	0		359,234
	Supplemental 401(k) Plan	N/A	39,074	12,556	0		234,731
James Quincey	Deferred Compensation Plan	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A		N/A
J. Alexander M.	Deferred Compensation Plan	173,500	0	(15,949)	0		2,238,126
Douglas, Jr.	Supplemental 401(k) Plan	N/A	39,448	48,462	0		974,779
Irial Finan	Deferred Compensation Plan	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A		N/A
	Supplemental 401(k) Plan	N/A	6,267	710	0		6,977

Executive Contributions in Last Fiscal Year (Column (b))

Mr. Douglas contributed to the Deferred Compensation Plan in 2015.

Registrant Contributions in Last Fiscal Year (Column (c))

All Company matching contributions shown are included in the "All Other Compensation" column of the 2015 Summary Compensation Table.

Aggregate Earnings in Last Fiscal Year(Column (d))

The earnings reflected in column (d) represent deemed investment earnings or losses from voluntary deferrals and Company contributions, as applicable. The Deferred Compensation Plan and the Supplemental 401(k) Plan do not guarantee a return on deferred amounts. For these plans, no amounts included in column (d) are reported in the 2015 Summary Compensation Table because the plans do not provide for above-market or preferential earnings.

Aggregate Balance at Last Fiscal Year-End(Column (f))

The amounts reflected in column (f) for Ms. Waller and Messrs. Kent and Douglas, with the exception of amounts reflected in columns (b), (c) and (d), if any, have been reported in prior Company proxy statements. No portion of the amount reflected in column (f) has been reported in prior Company proxy statements for Mr. Quincey because he was not a Named Executive Officer prior to 2015, and for Mr. Finan because 2015 was the first year he participated in the Supplemental 401(k) Plan.



PAYMENTS ON TERMINATION OR CHANGE IN CONTROL

General

Most of the Company's plans and programs contain specific provisions detailing how payments are treated upon termination or change in control. The specific termination and change in control provisions under these plans, which are described below, apply to all participants in each plan. The termination scenarios described in this section include voluntary separation, involuntary separation, disability and death. For more information on the plans described below, see the Summary of Plans section beginning on page 77.

Change in Control

The change in control provisions in the various Company plans were adopted to mitigate the concern that, in the event the Company is considering a change in control transaction, the employees involved in considering the transaction might otherwise be motivated to act in their own interests rather than the interests of the shareowners. Thus, the change in control provisions are designed so that employees are neither harmed nor given a windfall in the event of a change in control. The Company's plans generally provide that a change in control may occur upon (i) greater than a 20% change in ownership of the Company, (ii) a change of the majority of the Board within a two year period, and (iii) certain merger and consolidation transactions. As described below, Company equity plans include "double-trigger" change in control provisions.

The Company does not have individual change in control agreements and no tax gross-up is provided for any taxes incurred as a result of a change in control payment. The Board can determine prior to the potential change in control that no change in control will be deemed to have occurred.

Severance Plan

All of the Named Executive Officers are covered by a Company severance pay plan (the "TCCC Severance Plan").

Termination, Death, Disability

Generally, benefits are payable under the TCCC Severance Plan when an employee is terminated involuntarily due to specific circumstances such as an internal reorganization or position elimination. The maximum cash severance benefit under this plan is two years of base pay, payable as a lump sum.

Change in Control

There are no separate change in control provisions included in the TCCC Severance Plan.

Annual Incentive Plan

All of the Named Executive Officers participated in the annual Performance Incentive Plan in 2015.

Termination, Death, Disability

Generally, participants employed on December 31 are eligible to receive a cash incentive for the year, regardless of whether employment continues through the payment date. If an employee retires, dies or moves to an affiliate, he or she generally receives a prorated incentive based on actual Company performance and the portion of the year actually worked.

Change in Control

Upon a change in control, participants receive the target amount of the annual incentive after the end of the performance year. This amount is prorated if the participant leaves during the year.



Deferred Compensation Plans

All of the Named Executive Officers, except Mr. Quincey, were eligible to participate in the Deferred Compensation Plan in 2015. However, not all chose to participate.

Termination, Death, Disability

Under the Deferred Compensation Plan, employees who terminate employment after age 50 with five years of service receive payments based on elections made at the time they elected to defer compensation. Other employees receive a lump sum at termination. Individuals who are designated as "specified employees" under Section 409A of the Tax Code may not receive payments for at least six months following termination of employment to the extent the amounts were deferred after January 1, 2005. There are no enhanced benefits payable under the Deferred Compensation Plan upon a participant's death or disability

Change in Control

Upon a change in control, any Company discretionary contributions to the Deferred Compensation Plan vest. None of the Named Executive Officers has received a Company discretionary contribution.

Equity Plans

All of the Named Executive Officers participated in the Company's equity plans in 2015.

Termination

The treatment of equity upon termination of employment depends on the reason for the termination and the employee's age and length of service at termination. The chart below details the termination provisions of the various equity award types.

Award Type Stock Options	Separation Prior to Meeting Age/Service Requirement ¹ Employees have six months to exercise vested options, Unvested options are	Separation After Meeting Age/Service Requirement ¹ All options held at least 12 months vest. Employees have the full remaining
Stock Options	forfeited.	term to exercise the options.
Restricted Stock/ Restricted Stock Units	Shares are forfeited unless held until the time specified in the grant and performance measures, if any, are met.	Shares are forfeited unless held until the time specified in the grant and performance measures, if any, are met. Some grants vest upon meeting age and service requirements.
PSUs	All PSUs are forfeited if separation occurs prior to satisfaction of performance measures and holding requirements.	For grants held at least 12 months, the employee receives the same number of earned shares as active employees after the results are certified.

1 The age and service requirement is generally age 60 with at least ten years of service. In 2012, the Compensation Committee approved a special equity program for employees who are at least age 50 with at least ten years of service and are involuntarily terminated. This program provides (a) that outstanding stock options held at least 12 months will not be forfeited and continue to vest according to the original vesting schedule and (b) outstanding PSUs held at least 12 months will not be forfeited and a prorated amount will be released after the results are certified. Executive officers are not eligible for this program without specific approval by the Compensation Committee. No Named Executive Officer has been made eligible for the program. Equity plans and award agreements were amended in February 2013 to apply these provisions to all grants beginning in 2013 for all eligible employees.

Death

If an employee dies, all options vest if the options have been accepted. For options granted prior to 2007, the employee's estate has 12 months from the date of death to exercise the options. For options granted in and after 2007, the employee's estate has five years from the date of death to exercise the options. Restricted stock and restricted stock units vest and are released to the employee's estate. For PSUs, if death occurs during the performance period, the employee's estate receives a cash payment equal to the value of the target number of shares. For PSUs where performance has been certified, the employee's estate receives a cash payment based on the certified results.

Disability

If an employee becomes disabled, all options become nonforfeitable, and the employee has the full original term to exercise the options. Restricted stock and restricted stock units vest and are released to the employee. For PSUs in the performance period, the employee receives shares equal to the number of shares that the employee would have earned based on actual performance after the end of the performance period. For PSUs where performance has been certified, earned shares are released within 90 days.

Change in Control

Beginning in 2015, the treatment of equity upon a change in control is governed by the 2014 Equity Plan. Awards granted prior to 2015 were governed by applicable plans and agreements. The chart below details the change in control provisions of the various equity award types if awards are assumed by the successor company. If awards are not assumed by the successor company, accelerated vesting generally occurs upon a change in control.



Award Type	Grants Prior to 2015	Grants Beginning in 2015
Stock Options	Options vest if an employee is terminated within two years following the change in control.	Options vest if an employee is terminated without cause within one year following the change in control.
Restricted Stock/ Restricted Stock Units	Shares vest if an employee is terminated within two years following the change in control.	Shares vest if an employee is terminated without cause within one year following the change in control.
PSUs	PSUs vest at the target level if an employee is terminated within two years following the change in control.	PSUs vest if an employee is terminated without cause within two years following the change in control (i) at the target level if the change in control occurs during the first half of the performance period and (ii) based on actual performance if the change in control occurs during the second half of the performance period. In each case the final payout is prorated based on time worked in the performance period.

Retirement and 401(k) Plans

Ms. Waller and Messrs. Kent, Douglas and Finan were participants in the TCCC Pension Plan, the TCCC Supplemental Pension Plan, the 401(k) Plan and the Supplemental 401(k) Plan in 2015. Mr. Finan also participated in the Mobile Plan in 2015. Mr. Quincey participated in the UK Savings Plan and the Mobile Plan in 2015 and has a benefit under the TCCC Pension Plan and TCCC Supplemental Pension Plan related to a prior period of employment.

Termination. Death. Disability

No payments may be made under the TCCC Pension Plan or the TCCC Supplemental Pension Plan until an employee has separated from service and met eligibility requirements. Generally, no payments may be made under the 401(k) Plan, the Supplemental 401(k) Plan or the Mobile Plan until separation from service, except distributions may be taken from the 401(k) Plan after age 59½ and distributions related to mandatory tax payments may be made under the Mobile Plan, whether or not the employee has terminated employment. Payments may be made under the UK Savings Plan after age 55.

Individuals who are designated as "specified employees" under Section 409A of the Tax Code, which include the U.S. based Named Executive Officers, may not receive payments from the TCCC Supplemental Pension Plan, the Supplemental 401(k) Plan or the Mobile Plan for at least six months following termination of employment.

There are no enhanced benefits payable under the TCCC Pension Plan, the TCCC Supplemental Pension Plan, the 401(k) Plan, the Supplemental 401(k) Plan, the UK Savings Plan or the Mobile Plan, upon a participant's death or disability.

Change in Control

The TCCC Pension Plan and the TCCC Supplemental Pension Plan contain change in control provisions that affect all participants equally, including the participating Named Executive Officers. These provisions provide an enhanced benefit to vested participants for benefits accrued under the defined benefit formula if certain conditions are met, including that the employee must actually leave the Company within two years of a change in control. A change in control has no effect on the cash balance portion of the TCCC Pension Plan and there are no additional credited years of service. Upon a change in control, under the TCCC Pension Plan and the TCCC Supplemental Pension Plan, the earliest retirement age is reduced resulting in an enhanced benefit for participants who have not reached the earliest retirement age.

The 401(k) Plan, the Supplemental 401(k) Plan, the Mobile Plan and the UK Savings Plan do not have special provisions for change in control.

Quantification of Payments upon Termination or Change in Control

The following table and footnotes describe the potential payments to the Named Executive Officers upon termination of employment or a change in control of the Company as of December 31, 2015.

The table does not include:

- compensation or benefits previously earned by the Named Executive Officers or equity awards that are fully vested;
- the value of pension benefits that are disclosed in the 2015 Pension Benefits table beginning on page 71, except for any pension enhancement triggered by the event, if applicable;
- the amounts payable under deferred compensation plans that are disclosed in the 2015 Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Plan table on page 72; or
- the value of any benefits (such as retiree health coverage, life insurance and disability coverage) provided on the same basis to substantially all other employees in the country in which the Named Executive Officer works.



					<i>c</i> 1 <i>i</i>
	Voluntary Separation	Involuntary Separation	Death	Disability	Change in Control
	(a)	(b)	(c)	(d)	(e)
Mr. Kent	()			(2)	(*)
Severance Payments	\$ 0	\$ 3,200,000	\$ 0	\$ 0	\$ 0
Annual Incentive ¹	0	0	0	0	3,200,000
Stock Options ²	19,289,518	19,289,518	19,982,660	19,982,660	19,982,660
PSUs and Restricted Stock/Units ³	0	0	22,573,375	0	18,880,920
Pension Enhancement	0	0	0	0	0
TOTAL	19,289,518	22,489,518	42,556,035	19,982,660	42,063,580
Ms. Waller	0	1 465 550	0	0	0
Severance Payments	0	1,465,750	0	0	0
Annual Incentive ¹	0	0	0	0	916,094
Stock Options ²	0	1,307,161	1,830,467	1,830,467	1,830,467
PSUs and Restricted Stock/Units ³	0	0	4,154,447	0	2,726,156
Pension Enhancement	0	0	0	0	0
TOTAL Mr. Quincey	0	2,772,911	5,984,914	1,830,467	5,472,717
Severance Payments	0	1,800,000	0	0	0
Annual Incentive ¹	0	1,800,000	0	0	1,162,620
Stock Options ²	0	2,276,269	2,761,392	2,761,392	2,761,392
PSUs and Restricted Stock/Units ³	0	2,270,209	7,231,328	3,129,120	6,401,384
Pension Enhancement ⁴	0	0	0	0	91,845
TOTAL	0	4,076,269	9,992,720	5,890,512	10,417,241
Mr. Douglas	0	4,070,209	9,992,720	5,890,512	10,417,241
Severance Payments	0	1,404,748	0	0	0
Annual Incentive ¹	0	0	0	0	877,968
Stock Options ²	0	3,493,289	4,648,467	4,648,467	4,648,467
PSUs and Restricted Stock/Units ³	0	0	10,608,070	3,402,690	9,278,759
Pension Enhancement ⁴	0	0	0	0	1,170,758
TOTAL	0	4,898,037	15,256,537	8,051,157	15,975,952
Mr. Finan	0	1 776 250	0	0	0
Severance Payments	0	1,776,250	0	0	0
Annual Incentive ¹	0	0	0	0	1,332,188
Stock Options ²	0	4,492,764	5,614,678	5,614,678	5,614,678
PSUs and Restricted Stock/Units ³	0	0	7,186,650	0	5,508,245
Pension Enhancement	0	0	0	0	0
TOTAL	0	6,269,014	12,801,328	5,614,678	12,455,111

Except for Change in Control, no amounts are included for the Performance Incentive Plan because the Named Executive Officers would be entitled to the same payment regardless of 1 whether the event occurred. Upon a change in control, the target annual incentive amount is guaranteed.

Represents the intrinsic value of the acceleration of vesting of any stock options that vest upon the event. Intrinsic value is the difference between the exercise price of the stock option and 2 the closing price of Common Stock, which was \$42.96 on December 31, 2015.

No amounts are included for the 2013-2015, 2014-2016 and 2015-2017 PSU programs for Voluntary Separation, Involuntary Separation and Disability because the PSUs remain subject to 3 performance requirements even after the event. See page 58 for the status of these PSU programs.

For Messrs. Quincey and Douglas, represents the value of a more favorable early retirement subsidy in the event of a change in control and subsequent termination. No other Named 4 Executive Officer would receive a pension enhancement upon a change in control.

Voluntary Separation (Column (a))

Amounts are included under "Stock Options" for Mr. Kent because he has satisfied the age and service requirement for acceleration of vesting of certain equity awards held for at least 12 months. Ms. Waller and Messrs. Quincey, Douglas and Finan have not satisfied the age and service requirement for acceleration of any equity awards and therefore, no additional payments would be triggered upon voluntary separation.

Involuntary Termination (Column (b))

Amounts are included under "Stock Options" for Mr. Kent because he has satisfied the age and service requirement for acceleration of vesting of certain equity awards held for at least 12 months. Amounts are included under "Stock Options" for Ms. Waller and Messrs. Quincey, Douglas and Finan because involuntary termination triggers continued vesting of equity awards granted beginning in 2013 after the age and service requirement has been met.



Death (Column (c))

Amounts are included under "Stock Options" and "PSUs and Restricted Stock/Units" because death triggers acceleration of vesting of certain equity awards. The amounts for "PSUs and Restricted Stock/Units" reflect (i) the value of the target number of shares granted under the 2013-2015, 2014-2016 and 2015-2017 PSU programs, (ii) for Ms. Waller, the value of the target number of shares granted under a separate PSU award, (iii) for Mr. Quincey, the value of time-based restricted stock units and (iv) for Mr. Douglas, the value of shares granted under a separate PSU award and the value of time-based restricted stock units.

Disability (Column (d))

Amounts are included under "Stock Options" because disability triggers acceleration of vesting or continued vesting of certain equity awards. The amounts for "PSUs and Restricted Stock/Units" reflect (i) for Mr. Quincey, the value of time-based restricted stock units and (ii) for Mr. Douglas, the value of shares granted under a separate PSU award where performance has already been certified and the value of time-based restricted stock units.

Change in Control (Column (e))

Amounts are included under "Stock Options" and "PSUs and Restricted Stock/Units" for all Named Executive Officers because a change in control triggers acceleration of vesting of certain equity awards. Since equity awards have double-trigger change in control provisions, the table above assumes that both a change in control and a subsequent termination of employment has occurred. The amounts for "PSUs and Restricted Stock/Units" reflect (i) the value of the target number of shares granted under the 2013-2015, 2014-2016 and 2015-2017 PSU programs, but with respect to the 2015-2017 PSUs, prorated for one year of the performance period, (ii) for Ms. Waller, the value of the target number of shares granted under a separate PSU award, (iii) for Mr. Quincey, the value of time-based restricted stock units and (iv) for Mr. Douglas, the value of shares granted under a separate PSU award and the value of time-based restricted stock units.

SUMMARY OF PLANS

The following section provides information on Company-sponsored plans in which the Named Executive Officers participate that are noted in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis or the Compensation Tables.

Retirement Plans – Pension

TCCC Pension Plan. The TCCC Pension Plan is a broad-based tax-qualified defined benefit plan for substantially all U.S. non-union employees of the Company and its participating subsidiaries. A participant's benefit formula in the TCCC Pension Plan is dependent on when the participant was hired and whether they were employed by Coca-Cola Enterprises Inc. ("CCE") before the Company's acquisition of CCE's North American operations in 2010. The information below summarizes the provisions applicable to employees, including the participating Named Executive Officers, who were hired by the Company or its subsidiaries prior to 2010. There are no special or enhanced pension plans for the Named Executive Officers.

Vesting. For employees hired prior to January 1, 2010, the benefit vests after completing three years of service or attaining age 60 with one year of service.

Benefit Formula. Prior to 2010, all pension benefits were based on a percentage of the employee's final average compensation (the five highest consecutive years out of the last 11) up to the limit for each year as set by the Tax Code, multiplied by the employee's years of credited service. Effective January 1, 2010, participants began accruing a pension benefit under a new cash balance formula (known as the Part B benefit). Participants employed as of December 31, 2009 retained the pension benefit they accrued under the prior benefit calculation formula through December 31, 2009 (known as the Part A benefit) and were eligible for one or more special transition benefits. As a result, beginning in 2010, a participant's benefit was potentially based on two formulas, Part A (prior benefit calculation formula) plus Part B (new cash balance formula). Under the cash balance formula, the Company makes an annual pay credit allocation to each active participant's account on December 31, ranging from 3% to 8% of compensation, based on the participant's age. In addition, on December 31 of each year, the Company makes an annual interest credit allocation based on the value of the participant's account as of January 1 of the same year. Employees hired or rehired on or after January 1, 2012 accrue a pension benefit based on a different cash balance formula than described above.

The term "compensation" for determining the pension benefit generally includes salary, overtime, commissions and cash incentive awards, but excludes any amounts related to stock options, PSUs, restricted stock or restricted stock units. It also excludes deferred compensation and any extraordinary payments related to hiring or termination of employment.

Payment of Benefits. When benefits become payable upon separation from service, participants may choose between an annuity or a lump sum option. The TCCC Pension Plan provides for payment of a reduced benefit prior to normal retirement age and/or the current cash balance amount, as applicable.



Limitations on Benefits. In 2015, a participant could receive no more than \$210,000 annually from the TCCC Pension Plan and no compensation in excess of \$265,000 per year could be taken into account for calculating benefits under the TCCC Pension Plan.

TCCC Supplemental Pension Plan. Supplemental pension plans make employees whole when the Tax Code limits the benefit that otherwise would accrue under the applicable pension plan. The TCCC Supplemental Pension Plan also operates to keep employees whole when they defer part of their salary or annual incentive under the Deferred Compensation Plan. Otherwise, electing to defer would reduce an employee's retirement benefits.

Vesting. Vesting and benefits under the TCCC Supplemental Pension Plan are calculated generally in the same manner as if the participant's otherwise eligible compensation or full annual benefit were able to be paid from the TCCC Pension Plan.

Payment of Benefits. Benefits become payable upon separation from service. The form of payment is dictated by the terms of the plan and the participant's age and years of service at the time of separation. The cash balance portion of the TCCC Supplemental Pension Plan is payable in a lump sum. The traditional pension benefit portion is paid as an annuity if the participant separates on or after the earliest retirement date (generally, age 55 with ten years of service). Otherwise, the traditional pension benefit portion is paid as a lump sum.

Mobile Plan. The Mobile Plan provides a retirement benefit to globally mobile associates. The Mobile Plan applies on the same terms to the general population of international service associates worldwide. Under the Mobile Plan, a globally mobile associate's account is credited with a monthly percentage of pay ("pay credit") and a defined rate of return ("interest credit"). The pay credit is generally 10% of pay, less any benefits provided by local retirement plans. Both pay credits and interest credits are immediately vested. A participant will continue to receive monthly interest credits for as long as participation in the plan continues, even if the associate is no longer on a global assignment. International service associates who participated in The Coca-Cola Export Corporation Overseas Retirement Plan (the "Overseas Plan") or The Coca-Cola Export Corporation International Thrift Plan (the "International Thrift Plan") were transitioned to the Mobile Plan as of December 31, 2011. Benefits accrued under the Overseas Plan and the International Thrift Plan were converted to an opening balance in the Mobile Plan as part of the transition.

Retirement Plans – 401(k) and Savings Plans

401(k) Plan. The 401(k) Plan is a broad-based tax-qualified defined contribution plan for most U.S. non-union employees of the Company. The Company matches participant contributions up to a maximum of 3.5% of the participant's compensation or the amount allowable under the limits imposed under the Tax Code, whichever is lower. The Company's matching contribution is initially invested in Common Stock, but participants may move the contribution to any other available investment option. Employees become 100% vested in Company matching contributions after two years. For 2015, compensation over \$265,000 may not be taken into account under the 401(k) Plan.

Supplemental 401(k) Plan. The Supplemental 401(k) Plan makes employees whole when the Tax Code limits the Company matching contributions that otherwise would be credited to them under the 401(k) Plan. The Supplemental 401(k) Plan also operates to keep employees whole when they defer part of their salary or annual incentive under the Deferred Compensation Plan. The Company credits the employee with the Company matching contributions in hypothetical share units of Common Stock. The value of the accumulated share units, including dividend equivalents, is paid in cash after separation from service. Participants are immediately vested in their benefit. Employees are not permitted to make contributions to the Supplemental 401(k) Plan.

UK Savings Plan. The UK Savings Plan is a broad-based registered defined contribution plan in which the majority of employees in the United Kingdom participate. Plan participants must contribute a minimum of 2% of pensionable salary on which the Company contributes 2.5 times the employee's contribution up to a maximum Company contribution of 15% of the participant's pensionable salary. There are no limits to the amount of contributions that employees can make to their pension account, however, tax effectiveness of contributions is limited by both a lifetime allowance as well as an annual allowance. These amounts have changed frequently over recent years and continue to be subject to change. For the 2014/2015 tax year, the annual allowance was £40,000 and the lifetime allowance was £1.25 million. The plan has a number of investment options made available to the participants as well as a default investment fund. Under the plan, normal retirement age is 65 and benefits can be drawn from after an employee is 55 years old.

Incentive Plans

Annual Incentive Plan. The Company maintains the Performance Incentive Plan for employees above a specified grade level. The Performance Incentive Plan provides an annual cash payment based on predetermined performance measures. The Compensation Committee may designate one or more performance measures from the list contained in the plan. Target annual incentives are established for each participant. Payments are generally made in March in the year following the applicable performance year. No participant may receive an annual payment greater than \$10 million. The Performance Incentive Plan is designed to satisfy the requirements of Section 162(m) of the Tax Code. See pages 54 and 81 for additional information about the Performance Incentive Plan.

Long-Term Incentive Plans. The Company maintains long-term incentive plans for employees above a specified grade level. The following types of awards may be granted under the plans, as designated by the Compensation Committee: (i) stock options, (ii) PSUs, (iii) restricted stock and restricted stock units, (iv) other performance awards, including performance cash awards and



qualified performance-based awards under Section 162(m) of the Tax Code, payable in cash or Common Stock, (v) stock appreciation rights ("SARs") and (vi) other stock-based awards. The Company currently has outstanding awards of stock options, PSUs, restricted stock and restricted stock units and performance cash awards, which are described below. See <u>page 56</u> for additional information about long-term incentive compensation.

Stock Options. Stock options give the holder the right to purchase shares of Common Stock at a specified price during specified time periods. The exercise price of an option may not be less than the fair market value of the Common Stock on the date of grant. The fair market value is the average of the high and low prices of Common Stock on the grant date. In certain foreign jurisdictions, the law requires additional restrictions on the calculation of the option price. The grants provide that stock options generally may not be exercised during the first 12 months after the grant date. Generally, options vest 25% on the first, second, third and fourth anniversaries of the grant date and have a term of ten years. The Company's current compensation programs include stock options as part of the annual long-term equity compensation awards made to eligible employees.

Performance Share Units. PSUs provide an opportunity for employees to receive Common Stock if specified performance measures are met for a predefined performance period. PSUs generally are subject to an additional holding period. The Company's current compensation programs include PSUs as part of the annual long-term equity compensation awards made to eligible employees.

Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units. Restricted stock awards may be performance-based or time-based. Shares of stock are granted and transferred into the employee's name. Shares remain subject to forfeiture until the shares are released under the terms of the awards. Restricted stock unit awards may be performance-based or time-based and are settled in stock when all required criteria are met. Employees may or may not receive dividend equivalents during the term. Restricted stock units are not part of the annual long-term equity compensation awards made to eligible employees but may be awarded for limited purposes.

Performance Cash Awards. Performance cash awards provide an opportunity for employees to receive a cash award if specified performance measures are met for a predefined performance period. Performance cash awards generally are subject to an additional holding period. In connection with the Equity Stewardship Guidelines, beginning in 2015, performance cash awards have been incorporated into the annual long-term incentive program for eligible employees. Employees who receive performance cash awards do not receive equity awards as part of the annual long-term incentive program. No Named Executive Officers received performance cash awards.

Other Awards. While the 2014 Equity Plan provides the Compensation Committee discretion to grant different types of equity awards, including SARs and other stock-based awards such as unrestricted shares, no such awards have been or plan to be granted.

Other Plans

Deferred Compensation Plan. The Deferred Compensation Plan is a nonqualified and unfunded deferred compensation program offered to approximately 1,000 U.S. based Company employees in 2015. International service associates do not participate in the Deferred Compensation Plan. Eligible participants may defer up to 80% of base salary and up to 95% of their annual incentive. The Company has the benefit of full unrestricted use of all amounts deferred under the Deferred Compensation Plan until such amounts are required to be distributed to the plan participants. Gains and losses are credited based on the participant's election of a variety of deemed investment choices. The Company does not match any employee deferral or guarantee a return. Participants' accounts may or may not appreciate and may depreciate depending on the performance of their deemed investment choices. None of the deemed investment choices provide returns at above-market or preferential rates. All deferrals are paid out in cash upon distribution. Participants may schedule a distribution during employment or may opt to receive their balance after separation from service. Participants who are considered "specified employees" under Section 409A of the Tax Code (generally, the top 50 highest paid executives) may not receive a post-termination distribution for at least six months following separation. On occasion, the Company may provide a one-time credit to make up for benefits lost under various circumstances, such as benefits lost at a prior employer. The Company has not provided any such credits for any of the Named Executive Officers.

International Service Programs. International service program benefits generally include relocation expenses, a housing allowance (including certain housing expenses), a cost of living adjustment (a cash adjustment designed to provide equivalent purchasing power), certain cash allowances recognizing differences in living conditions in the host location, a home leave allowance and currency protection. The programs also provide tax preparation services and tax equalization, where applicable. There are approximately 650 participants in these programs.

TCCC Severance Plan. The TCCC Severance Plan provides cash severance benefits to eligible employees who are involuntarily terminated. Eligible employees include regular, non-union, non-manufacturing U.S. employees and international service associates. Generally, benefits are payable when an employee is terminated involuntarily due to specific circumstances such as an internal reorganization or position elimination. Benefits are not payable if the employee is offered a comparable position with the Company or its affiliates, is terminated for cause or has entered into a separate agreement. The benefit payable is determined based on job grade level, salary and/or length of service. The minimum benefit is eight weeks of base pay and the maximum benefit is two years of base pay.

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

All numbers in the below table are as of December 31, 2015.

	Number of Securities to be Issued Upon Exercise of Outstanding Options, Warrants and Rights	Weighted-Average Exercise Price of Outstanding Options, Warrants and Rights	Number of Securities Remaining Available for Future Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans (Excluding Securities Reflected in Column (a))
Plan Category	(a)	(b)	(c)
Equity Compensation Plans		2	
Approved by Security Holders	$280,347,127^{1}$	32.45^2	474,604,234 ³
Equity Compensation Plans Not			
Approved by Security Holders	0	N/A	0
TOTAL	280,347,127		474,604,234

1 Includes 265,470,068 shares issuable pursuant to outstanding options under the 2014 Equity Plan, The Coca-Cola Company 1999 Stock Option Plan, The Coca-Cola Company 2002 Stock Option Plan and 2008 Stock Option Plan. The weighted-average exercise price of such options is \$32.51. Also includes 13,889,875 full-value awards of shares outstanding under the 2014 Equity Plan, 1989 Restricted Stock Award Plan and The Coca-Cola Company 1983 Restricted Stock Award Plan, including shares that may be issued pursuant to outstanding PSUs, based on certified financial results, where applicable, and otherwise assuming the target award is met. In connection with the acquisition of CCE's former North America business ("CCE Transaction"), certain outstanding awards relating to CCE common stock granted under shareowner-approved CCE equity incentive plans were replaced with awards relating to the Company's Common Stock. As a result, the table above includes 987,184 shares issuable pursuant to outstanding options under the CCE Transaction: Coca-Cola Enterprises Inc. 2004 Stock Award Plan and Coca-Cola Enterprises Inc. 2007 Incentive Award Plan. The weighted-average exercise price of such options is \$16.26.

2 The weighted-average term of the outstanding options is 5.55 years.

3 Includes 471,634,979 shares that may be issued pursuant to future awards under the 2014 Equity Plan, including shares that may be issued pursuant to outstanding PSUs, based on certified financial results, where applicable, and otherwise assuming the target award is met. The 2014 Equity Plan uses a fungible share pool under which each share issued pursuant to an option reduces the number of shares available by one share, and each share issued pursuant to awards other than options reduces the number of shares available by one share, and each share issued pursuant to awards other than options reduces the number of shares available by five shares. See "Long-Term Incentive Compensation" beginning on page 56 for more information, including the Equity Stewardship Guidelines, which include a burn rate commitment. With this burn rate commitment, over the 2014 Equity Plan's ten-year term, the maximum number of shares that may be used is estimated at 200,000,000 (based on Common Stock outstanding decreasing by 1% each year). Also includes, 2,732,413 options which may be issued pursuant to future awards under The Coca-Cola Company 1999 Stock Option Plan and 2008 Stock Option Plan and 236,842 shares of Common Stock that may be issued pursuant to the 1989 Restricted Stock Award Plan, including shares that may be issued pursuant to outstanding PSUs, based on certified financial results, where applicable, and otherwise assuming the target award is met. The maximum term of the options is ten years.

Share units credited under the Supplemental 401(k) Plan and the Directors' Plan are not included in the table above since payouts under those plans are in cash.

The Company or applicable subsidiary provides a matching contribution in Common Stock under various plans throughout the world. No shares are issued by the Company under any of these plans and therefore these plans are not included in the table above. Shares are purchased on the open market by a third-party trustee. These plans are exempt from the shareowner approval requirements of the NYSE. These plans are as follows:

401(k) and Savings Plans (U.S.). There are several 401(k) and savings plans in the U.S. that include a Company matching contribution component, including the Company's primary plan, the 401(k) Plan. Beginning January 1, 2012, under the 401(k) Plan, the Company matches employee contributions up to a maximum of 3.5% of an employee's compensation, subject to limits imposed by the Tax Code. Employees vest in the matching contributions over two years. Generally, employees may not withdraw the matching contributions until termination of employment. The other 401(k) and savings plans that include a Common Stock matching contribution component match employee contributions up to a maximum of between 3% to 6% of an employee's compensation, subject to limits imposed by the Tax Code, include vesting provisions of between two and three years and have similar withdrawal restrictions as the 401(k) Plan.

The Coca-Cola Export Corporation Employee Share Savings Scheme (UK). The company matches employee contributions to a maximum of £1,500 per year. The employee is vested in the matching contributions once a month when matching shares of Common Stock are purchased. However, the matching shares of Common Stock may not be withdrawn before a five-year holding period without adverse tax consequences.

Employees' Savings and Share Ownership Plan of Coca-Cola Ltd. (Canada). After completing 12 months of employment and a specified minimum hours of service, the company matches 50% of an employee's contributions of 2% to 3.5% of eligible earnings, based on an employee's date of employment. The employee is immediately vested in the matching contributions. However, the matching contributions may not be withdrawn until termination of employment.

Employee Savings and Investment Plan of Coca-Cola Refreshments Canada Company (Canada). After one year of employment and a specified minimum hours worked, the company matches 50% of a full-time employee's contributions of 2% to 6% (union) or 2% to 7% (non-union) of eligible earnings, up to a maximum of 3% or 3.5%, as applicable. The employee is immediately vested in the matching contributions. However, the matching contributions may not be withdrawn until termination of employment.

Employee Stockholding Program (Japan). The employee must be employed for at least three years in order to participate and the company matches contributions up to 1.8% of an employee's annual base salary. The employee is immediately vested in the matching contributions. However, the matching contributions may not be withdrawn until the employee terminates from the company or if the employee requests to terminate from the plan. Specific regulations apply for cases when employees request to terminate from the plan.

Share Savings Plan (Denmark). The company matches contributions up to 3% of an employee's salary. The employee is immediately vested in the matching contributions. However, the matching contributions may not be withdrawn for five years without tax liability.

The Company also sponsors employee share purchase plans in several jurisdictions outside the U.S. The Company does not grant or issue Common Stock pursuant to these plans, but does facilitate the acquisition of Common Stock by employees in a cost-efficient manner. These plans are not equity compensation plans.



ITEM 3 APPROVAL OF THE MATERIAL TERMS OF THE PERFORMANCE INCENTIVE PLAN OF THE COCA-COLA COMPANY TO PERMIT THE TAX DEDUCTIBILITY OF CERTAIN AWARDS

What am I voting on?

Shareowners are being asked to approve the material terms of the Performance Incentive Plan to permit the tax deductibility of certain awards under Section 162(m) of the Tax Code. Section 162(m) allows us to deduct certain compensation if shareowners have approved the material terms of the plan no less frequently than every five years. Shareowners last approved the material terms of the Performance Incentive Plan in 2011.

Voting recommendation:

FOR the proposal to approve the material terms of the Performance Incentive Plan to permit the tax deductibility of certain awards.

We are asking for your approval of the material terms of the Performance Incentive Plan to permit the Company to continue to grant awards that are intended to qualify as performance-based compensation for purposes of Section 162(m) of the Tax Code. The Performance Incentive Plan provides for annual incentive awards to participating employees, including the Company's executive officers. The purpose of the Performance Incentive Plan is to promote the interests of the Company by providing additional incentive for employees who contribute to the improvement of operating results of the Company and to reward outstanding performance on the part of those individuals whose decisions and actions most significantly affect the growth and profitability and efficient operation of the Company.

In 2011, shareowners last approved the material terms of the Performance Incentive Plan for purposes of Section 162(m). Effective February 17, 2016, an amended and restated Performance Incentive Plan was adopted by the Compensation Committee to (i) update the list of performance criteria available for future grants of performance-based awards by removing from the list performance criteria that is no longer intended to be used, (ii) decrease the maximum award limit for any performance period from \$12 million to \$10 million and (iii) amend the plan, including certain definitions, to use consistent language across compensation plans and to update and clarify when an eligible employee may receive a pro rata annual incentive award. The amendments to the Performance Incentive Plan did not impact the requirements for employees to be eligible to receive awards under the plan.

In addition to this proposal, we encourage you to read the Annual Incentive Compensation section of the Compensation Discussion and Analysis starting on page 54 for additional information about the Performance Incentive Plan, including to learn about changes to the annual incentive program for executive officers effective in 2015 and 2016.

Impact of Section 162(m)

Section 162(m) of the Tax Code limits the deductibility of compensation of "covered employees" to \$1 million per year unless the compensation qualifies as "performance-based." "Covered employees" includes our Chief Executive Officer and the three other most highly compensated executive officers, other than the Chief Financial Officer, at the end of each calendar year. Cash incentive compensation can be deductible if the following four conditions are met:

- the compensation is payable on the attainment of one or more pre-established, objective performance criteria;
- the performance criteria are established by a committee that is comprised solely of two or more outside directors;
- the material terms of the compensation and performance criteria are disclosed to and approved by shareowners before payment; and
- 🌻 the committee that established the performance criteria certifies that the performance criteria have been satisfied before payment.



We are requesting shareowner approval in order to meet the third requirement listed above. Treasury Regulations under Section 162(m) specify that the material terms are (i) who is eligible to participate in the plan, (ii) the business criteria on which the performance goals will be based and (iii) the maximum award payable to any participant.

Summary of the Material Terms Required to be Approved

Below is a summary of the material terms of the Performance Incentive Plan required to be approved by our shareowners under Section 162(m). This summary does not purport to be a complete description of all of the provisions of the Performance Incentive Plan and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the specific provisions of the Performance Incentive Plan. A copy of the Performance Incentive Plan is available on our website at www.cocacolacompany.com/investors/annual-meeting-of-shareowners and the SEC website at www.sec.gov, where it is an appendix to the electronic version of this proxy statement. We will provide shareowners with a copy of the Performance Incentive Plan without charge if you call Shareowner Services at (404) 676-2777. You can also receive a copy by sending a request by regular mail to The Coca-Cola Company, Shareowner Services, P.O. Box 1734, Atlanta, Georgia 30301, by e-mail to shareownerservices@coca-cola.com or by fax to (404) 676-8409.

Eligibility

The Compensation Committee (for senior executives) and the Management Committee (for other employees) designate which employees or categories of employees are eligible for participation in the Performance Incentive Plan. All executive officers are eligible for the Performance Incentive Plan. In addition, salaried employees of a specified minimum job grade are designated to participate in the Performance Incentive Plan. Generally, this includes middle-level and higher professional employees. In 2015, approximately 14,500 employees were eligible to participate in the Performance Incentive Plan.

Business Criteria upon which Performance Goals may be Based

Determination of Performance Criteria and Performance Goals. No later than 90 days after the beginning of the year, the Compensation Committee will determine the target award for each participant or category of participant. This is typically specified as a percentage of base salary. In addition, the Compensation Committee will determine the formula under which awards will be determined, choose one or more performance criteria to be applied, and set the performance goals for each of the criteria. When the Compensation Committee sets the performance goals, the Compensation Committee may take into account any extraordinary or one-time or other nonrecurring items or any events, transactions or other circumstances that the Compensation Committee deems relevant in light of the nature of the performance goals set or the assumptions made by the Compensation Committee regarding such goals.

The performance goals will be objectively measurable and will be based upon the achievement of a specified percentage or level in one or more, or combination of performance criteria, subject to any objectively verifiable adjustment(s) permitted and pre-determined by the Compensation Committee in accordance with Section 162(m)

Performance Criteria. The Compensation Committee may choose one or more of the following performance criteria for covered employees.

- increase in shareowner value
- earnings per share
- stock price
- net income
- return on assets
- return on shareowners' equity
- increase in cash flow
- operating profit or operating margins
- revenue growth of the Company
- operating expenses
- economic profit

return on invested capital

- earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization
- unit case volume
- operating income
- value share of nonalcoholic ready-to-drink segment
- volume share of nonalcoholic ready-to-drink segment
- net revenue
- gross profit
- profit before tax
- number of transactions (number of physical packages sold)
- productivity

return on capital

Any of the performance criteria can be applied on an absolute basis or on a relative basis (such as relative to a peer group or industry index) and may be calculated for a single year or calculated on a compound basis over multiple years.

Determination and Payment of Awards. After the end of the year, the Compensation Committee will review the performance against the pre-established performance goals. The Compensation Committee will certify the extent, if any, to which the performance measures have been met. The Compensation Committee (for senior executives) and the Management Committee (for other employees) may also review the individual's performance and may decrease or increase the award in their discretion. However, if any amount of the award is based upon criteria other than objective performance criteria, the excess will not be performance-based compensation under Section 162(m).



Limitation of Awards

No participant may receive an award greater than \$10 million for any year.

Estimate of Benefits

The amount of annual incentive compensation to be paid under the Performance Incentive Plan depends on Company performance, individual performance and the discretion of the Compensation Committee. Accordingly, the amount of annual incentive compensation to be paid under the Performance Incentive Plan for 2016 is not currently determinable. For executive officers (including the Named Executive Officers), the target incentive awards under the Performance Incentive Plan for 2016 range from 75% to 200% of base salary, or approximately \$400,000 to \$3.2 million. The target incentive awards under the Performance Incentive Plan for 2016 for other employees are based on a percentage of their base salary. No amounts under the Performance Incentive Plan are payable to Directors of the Company who are not also Company employees. For 2016, approximately 13,900 employees are eligible to participate in the Performance Incentive Plan. The following chart sets forth the target incentive awards under the Performance Incentive Plan for 2016 for the Named Executive Officers.

	Target Incentive	Target Incentive
Name	Percentage	Amount
Mr. Kent	200%	\$ 3,200,000
Ms. Waller	125%	943,576
Mr. Quincey	175%	1,630,125
Mr. Douglas	125%	904,306
Mr. Finan	150%	1,372,154

The annual incentive awards paid to the Named Executive Officers for 2015 under the Performance Incentive Plan are set forth in the 2015 Summary Compensation Table on page 63 and are described in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis section beginning on page 47. The annual incentive awards for all executive officers (including the Named Executive Officers) for 2015 were approximately \$19.3 million. The average annual incentive award for all eligible employees (excluding executive officers) for 2015 was approximately \$30,000.

Other Information

The Performance Incentive Plan is administered by the Compensation Committee, which is also authorized to appoint a Management Committee to assist in the administration of the Performance Incentive Plan. The Compensation Committee selects senior executive participants, sets the performance criteria and targets, and makes all decisions with respect to executives governed by the Compensation Committee. The Management Committee makes decisions with respect to other employees and may handle other administrative items.

This proposal will be approved upon the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast by holders of shares of Common Stock voting in person or by proxy at the meeting. If shareowners approve the material terms of the Performance Incentive Plan for participants who are expected to be covered employees, these terms may remain in effect without further shareowner approval until the Annual Meeting of Shareowners in 2021. However, the Board or the Compensation Committee may amend the Performance Incentive Plan, including the material terms of the performance goals for participants other than covered employees, without shareowner approval. If the material terms of the Performance Incentive Plan for covered employees are not approved by the shareowners, the Performance Incentive Plan will remain in full force and effect, but we may be unable to deduct for federal income tax purposes awards to covered employees. Further, the Compensation Committee retains authority to develop and implement alternate means of fairly compensating executive officers, including the covered employees, whether or not the material terms of the Performance Incentive Plan performance goals are approved.

The Board of Directors recommends a vote FOR the proposal to approve the material terms of the Performance Incentive Plan of The Coca-Cola Company to permit the tax deductibility of certain awards.



AUDIT MATTERS

REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee operates under a written charter adopted by the Board that outlines its responsibilities and the practices it follows. You can view the charter on the Company's website, *www.coca-colacompany.com*, by clicking on "Investors," then "Corporate Governance," then "Board Committees & Charters." The Audit Committee reviews and assesses the adequacy of its charter at least annually and, when appropriate, recommends changes to the Board to reflect the evolving role of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee is composed of non-employee Directors who meet the independence and financial literacy requirements of the NYSE and additional, heightened independence criteria applicable to members of the Audit Committee under SEC and NYSE rules. The Board has designated Evan G. Greenberg as the "Audit Committee financial expert."

Primary Responsibilities and 2015 Actions

The Audit Committee represents and assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibility relating to the integrity of the Company's financial statements and the financial reporting process, the systems of internal accounting and financial controls, the internal audit function and the annual independent audit of the Company's financial statements. The Audit Committee oversees the Company's compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the independent auditors' qualifications and independence, the performance of the Company's internal audit function and the independent auditors, the Company's ethical compliance of the Company's neuronal difference of the Company's enterprise risk management ("ERM") program and has direct oversight over certain risks within the ERM framework. In addition, the Audit Committee participates in educational sessions developed by management, at the request of the Audit Committee, on areas of the Company's operations.

In 2015, the Audit Committee held 11 meetings. Meeting agendas are established by the Audit Committee's Chair and the Chief of Internal Audit. During 2015, among other things, the Audit Committee:

- Met with the senior members of the Company's financial management team at each regularly scheduled meeting.
- Held separate private sessions, during its regularly scheduled meetings, with each of the Company's General Counsel, the independent auditors, and the Chief of Internal Audit, at which candid discussions regarding financial management, legal, accounting, auditing and internal control issues took place.
- Continued its long-standing practice of having independent legal counsel, who regularly attends committee meetings.
- Met with the chief ethics and compliance officer to discuss the effectiveness of the Company's compliance program and regularly received status reports of compliance issues.
- Received periodic updates on management's process to assess the adequacy of the Company's system of internal control over financial reporting, the framework used to make the assessment, and management's conclusions on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting.
- Discussed with the independent auditors the Company's internal control assessment process, management's assessment with respect thereto and the independent auditors' evaluation of the Company's system of internal control over financial reporting.
- Reviewed and discussed with management and the independent auditors the Company's earnings releases and quarterly and annual reports on Form 10-Q and Form 10-K prior to filing with the SEC.
- Reviewed the Company's internal audit plan and the performance of the Company's internal audit function.
- Reviewed with senior members of the Company's financial management team, the independent auditors and the Chief of Internal Audit, the overall audit scope and plans, the results of internal and external audits, evaluations by management and the independent auditors of the Company's internal controls over financial reporting and the quality of the Company's financial reporting.
- Reviewed with management, including the Chief of Internal Audit and General Counsel, and the independent auditors, significant risks and exposures identified by management, the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's legal, regulatory and ethical compliance programs, including the Company's Codes of Business Conduct, and the Company's quality, safety, environmental assurance and information technology security programs.
- Received regular updates from management and discussed the Company's productivity and reinvestment program.



Back to Contents

Participated, with representatives of management and of the independent auditors, in educational sessions about topics requested by the Committee, including (i) governance of the Company's information technology environment, including oversight of IT platforms and cybersecurity, (ii) supply chain and supplier operations, (iii) quality and safety programs and related risk oversight, (iv) ethics and compliance governance and investigative processes, (v) governance of the Company's local statutory financial statement processes and (vi) the Company's finance department structure.

Oversight of Independent Auditors

The Audit Committee engaged Ernst & Young LLP as our independent auditors for the year ended December 31, 2015. In its meetings with representatives of the independent auditors, the Audit Committee asks them to address, and discusses their responses to, several questions that the Audit Committee believes are particularly relevant to its oversight.

These questions include:

- Are there any significant accounting judgments or estimates made by management in preparing the financial statements that would have been made differently had the independent auditors prepared and been responsible for the financial statements?
- Based on the independent auditors' experience, and their knowledge of the Company, do the Company's financial statements fairly present to investors, with clarity and completeness, the Company's financial position and performance for the reporting period in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and SEC disclosure requirements?
- Based on the independent auditors' experience, and their knowledge of the Company, has the Company implemented internal controls and internal audit procedures that are appropriate for the Company?

The Audit Committee believes that using these questions to help focus its discussions with the independent auditors promotes a more meaningful dialogue that provides a basis for its oversight judgments.

The Audit Committee also discussed with the independent auditors those matters required to be discussed by the auditors with the Audit Committee under the rules adopted by the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (the "PCAOB"). The Audit Committee received the written disclosures and the letter from the independent auditors required by applicable requirements of the PCAOB regarding the independent auditors' communication with the Audit Committee concerning independence, and has discussed with the independent auditors their independence. The Audit Committee considered with the independent auditors whether the provision of non-audit services provided by them to the Company during 2015 was compatible with their independence.

2015 Audited Financial Statements

In its oversight role, the Audit Committee relies on the work and assurances of the Company's management, which has the responsibility for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting and for preparing the financial statements and other reports, and of the independent auditors, who are engaged to audit and report on the consolidated financial statements of the Company and subsidiaries and the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting.

The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed with management and the independent auditors the audited financial statements in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015, including a discussion of the quality, not just the acceptability, of the accounting principles, the reasonableness of significant accounting judgments and estimates, and the clarity of disclosures in the financial statements. In addressing the quality of management's accounting judgments, members of the Audit Committee asked for management's representations and reviewed certifications prepared by the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer that the unaudited quarterly and audited consolidated financial statements of the Company fairly present, in all material respects, the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the Company, and have expressed to both management and the auditors their general preference for conservative policies when a range of accounting options is available.

In reliance on these reviews and discussions, and the reports of the independent auditors, the Audit Committee has recommended to the Board of Directors, and the Board has approved, that the audited financial statements be included in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015, for filing with the SEC.

Evan G. Greenberg, Chair Ronald W. Allen Marc Bolland David B. Weinberg



ITEM 4 RATIFICATION OF THE APPOINTMENT OF ERNST & YOUNG LLP AS INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

What am I voting on?

Shareowners are being asked to ratify the appointment of Ernst & Young LLP, a registered public accounting firm, to serve as the Company's Independent Auditors for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2016. Although the Audit Committee has the sole authority to appoint the independent auditors, as a matter of good corporate governance, the Board submits its selection of the independent auditors to our shareowners for ratification. If the shareowners should not ratify the appointment of Ernst & Young LLP, the Audit Committee will reconsider the appointment.

Voting recommendation:

FOR the ratification of the appointment of Ernst & Young LLP as independent auditors.

The Audit Committee has the sole authority and responsibility to hire, evaluate and, where appropriate, replace the Company's Independent Auditors and, in its capacity as a committee of the Board, is directly responsible for the appointment, compensation and general oversight of the work of the independent auditors. The Audit Committee has appointed Ernst & Young LLP ("EY") to serve as independent auditors for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2016. EY (including its predecessors) has served as the Company's Independent Auditors since 1921.

Annual Evaluation and Selection of Independent Auditors

The Audit Committee annually evaluates the performance of the Company's Independent Auditors, including the senior audit engagement team, and determines whether to reengage the current independent auditors or consider other audit firms. Factors considered by the Audit Committee in deciding whether to retain include:

- EY's global capabilities;
- EY's technical expertise and knowledge of the Company's global operations and industry;
- the quality and candor of EY's communications with the Audit Committee and management;
- EY's independence;
- the quality and efficiency of the services provided by EY, including input from management on EY's performance and how effectively EY demonstrated its independent judgment, objectivity and professional skepticism;
- sternal data on audit quality and performance, including recent PCAOB reports on EY and its peer firms; and
- the appropriateness of EY's fees, EY's tenure as our independent auditor, including the benefits of a longer tenure, and the controls and processes in place that help ensure EY's continued independence.

	Benefits of Longer Tenure		Independence Controls
•	Enhanced audit quality – EY's significant institutional knowledge and deep expertise of the Company's global business, accounting policies and practices and internal control over financial reporting enhance audit quality.	•	Audit Committee oversight – Oversight includes regular private sessions with EY, discussion with EY about the scope of audit and business imperatives, a comprehensive annual evaluation when determining whether to reengage EY, and direct involvement by the Audit Committee and its chair in the selection of the new lead assurance engagement partner and new global coordinating partner in connection with the mandated rotation of these positions.
٠	Competitive fees – Because of EY's familiarity with the Company, audit and other fees are competitive with peer companies.	*	Limits on non-audit services – The Audit Committee pre- approves audit and permissible non-audit services provided by EY in accordance with its pre-approval policy.
٠	Avoid costs associated with new auditor – Bringing on new independent auditors would be costly and require a significant time commitment which could lead to management distractions.	•	EY's internal independence process – EY conducts periodic internal reviews of its audit and other work, assesses the adequacy of partners and other personnel working on the Company's account and rotates the lead assurance engagement partner, the global coordinating partner, and other partners on the engagement consistent with independence requirements. A new lead assurance engagement partner was designated in 2011 and a new global coordinating partner was designated in 2014.
		٠	Strong regulatory framework – EY, as an independent registered public accounting firm, is subject to PCAOB inspections, "Big 4" peer reviews and PCAOB and SEC oversight.

Based on this evaluation, the Audit Committee and the Board believe that retaining EY to serve as independent auditors for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2016 is in the best interests of the Company and its shareowners.

Audit Fees and All Other Fees

The Audit Committee is responsible for approving the audit and permissible non-audit services provided by the independent auditors and the associated fees.

The following table shows the fees for audit and other services provided by EY for fiscal years 2015 and 2014.

	2015 Fees (In thousands)	2014 Fees (In thousands)	Description
Audit Fees	\$ 29,337	\$ 28,990	Includes fees associated with the annual audit and the audit of internal control over financial reports, registration statements in 2015 and 2014, the reviews of the Company's Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, and statutory audits required internationally.
Audit-Related Fees	7,797	5,312	Fees for services that are reasonably related to the performance of the audit or review of financial statements and are not included in "Audit Fees." These services principally include due diligence in connection with acquisitions, consultation on accounting and internal control matters, employee benefit plan audits, information systems audits and other attest services.
Tax Fees	5,725	5,252	Fees for tax services, including tax compliance, tax advice and tax planning.
All Other Fees	550	0	Fees for services that are not included in the above categories and primarily include data analytics and capability framework services.



Audit Committee Pre-Approval of Audit and Permissible Non-Audit Services of Independent Auditors

The Audit Committee pre-approves all audit and permissible non-audit services provided by the independent auditors. These services may include audit services, audit-related services, tax services and other services. The Audit Committee has adopted a policy for the pre-approval of services provided by the independent auditors.

Under the policy, pre-approval is generally provided for work associated with the following:

- registration statements under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (for example, comfort letters or consents);
- statutory or other financial audit work for non-U.S. subsidiaries that is not required for the 1934 Act audits;
- due diligence work for potential acquisitions or dispositions;
- attest services not required by statute or regulation;
- adoption of new accounting pronouncements or auditing and disclosure requirements for financial or non-financial data and accounting or regulatory consultations;
- internal control reviews and assistance with internal control reporting requirements;
- review of information systems security and controls;
- tax compliance, tax planning and related tax services, excluding any tax service prohibited by regulatory or other oversight authorities, expatriate and other individual tax services; and
- assistance and consultation on questions raised by regulatory agencies.

For each proposed service, the independent auditors are required to provide detailed supporting documentation at the time of approval to permit the Audit Committee to make a determination whether the provision of such service would impair the independent auditors' independence.

The Audit Committee has approved in advance certain permitted services whose scope is routine across business units, including statutory or other financial audit work for non-U.S. subsidiaries that is not required for the 1934 Act audits.

Other Information

The Company has been advised by EY that neither the firm, nor any covered person of the firm, has any financial interest, direct or indirect, in any capacity in the Company or its subsidiaries.

One or more representatives of EY will be present at this year's Annual Meeting of Shareowners. The representatives will have an opportunity to make a statement if they desire to do so and will be available to respond to appropriate questions.

Ratification of the appointment of the independent auditors requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast by the holders of the shares of Common Stock voting in person or by proxy at the Annual Meeting of Shareowners.

The Board of Directors recommends a vote FOR the ratification of the appointment of Ernst & Young LLP as independent auditors.



Back to Contents

SHAREOWNER PROPOSALS

What am I voting on?

The following three proposals were submitted by shareowners. If the shareowner proponent, or a representative who is qualified under state law, is present and submits such proposal for a vote, then the proposal will be voted on at the Annual Meeting of Shareowners. Approval of each of the following proposals requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast by the holders of the shares of Common Stock voting in person or by proxy at the Annual Meeting of Shareowners. In accordance with federal securities regulations, we include the shareowner proposal plus any supporting statements exactly as submitted by the proponents. To make sure readers can easily distinguish between material provided by the proponent and material provided by the Company, we have put a box around material provided by the proponent.

Voting recommendation:

AGAINST each of the shareowner proposals.

ITEM 5 - SHAREOWNER PROPOSAL REGARDING HOLY LAND PRINCIPLES

Holy Land Principles, Inc., 608 3rd Street Southwest, Washington, DC 20024, owner of 250 shares of Common Stock, submitted the following proposal:

WHEREAS, The Coca Cola Company has operations in Palestine-Israel;

WHEREAS, achieving a lasting peace in the Holy Land — with security for Israel and justice for Palestinians — encourages us to promote a means for establishing justice and equality;

WHEREAS, fair employment should be the hallmark of any American company at home or abroad and is a requisite for any just society;

WHEREAS, Holy Land Principles Inc., a non-profit organization, has proposed a set of equal opportunity employment principles to serve as guidelines for corporations in Palestine-Israel.

These are:

- 1. Adhere to equal and fair employment practices in hiring, compensation, training, professional education, advancement and governance without discrimination based on national, racial, ethnic or religious identity.
- 2. Identify underrepresented employee groups and initiate active recruitment efforts to increase the number of underrepresented employees.
- 3. Develop training programs that will prepare substantial numbers of current minority employees for skilled jobs, including the expansion of existing programs and the creation of new programs to train, upgrade, and improve the skills of minority employees.
- 4. Maintain a work environment that is respectful of all national, racial, ethnic and religious groups.
- 5. Ensure that layoff, recall and termination procedures do not favor a particular national, racial, ethnic or religious group.
- 6. Not make military service a precondition or qualification for employment for any position, other than those positions that specifically require such experience, for the fulfillment of an employee's particular responsibilities.
- 7. Not accept subsidies, tax incentives or other benefits that lead to the direct advantage of one national, racial, ethnic or religious group over another.
- 8. Appoint staff to monitor, oversee, set timetables, and publicly report on their progress in implementing the Holy Land Principles.

RESOLVED: Shareholders request the Board of Directors to:

Make all possible lawful efforts to implement and/or increase activity on each of the eight Holy Land Principles.

SUPPORTING STATEMENT

The proponent believes that The Coca Cola Company benefits by hiring from the widest available talent pool. An employee's ability to do the job should be the primary consideration in hiring and promotion decisions.

Implementation of the Holy Land Principles — which are both pro-Jewish and pro-Palestinian - will demonstrate concern for human rights and equality of opportunity in its international operations.

Please vote your proxy FOR these concerns.

Statement Against Shareowner Proposal Regarding Holy Land Principles

It is important that shareowners understand that The Coca-Cola Company has a serious commitment to human rights, as outlined in our Human Rights Policy, and to providing equal opportunity employment, as is the stated purpose of this proposal.

The Company's practices around equal opportunity employment in all of its operations around the world already substantially comply with the practices outlined in the proposal. Our Human Rights Policy, Supplier Guiding Principles, as well as our commitment to diversity help to ensure that our policies and practices align to the content and spirit of these principles. Our Human Rights Policy and Supplier Guiding Principles are available on the Company website at www.cocacolacompany.com/human-and-workplace-rights.

Endorsing these principles for one geographic area could risk undermining the universality of our own Human Rights Policy. We believe our policies work best when they can be applied throughout our entire enterprise. Regionalizing our practices around matters such as equal employment does not seem to us to be an appropriate or prudent path. These principles may also require additonal reporting and metrics beyond our current practice, which would be time consuming and of little added value to our business or to our employees.

Because of our existing policies and practices, we believe the principles outlined in the proposal are unnecessary and burdensome. The Board does do not believe adoption of these principles is in the best interests of the Company, its employees or its shareowners.

The Board of Directors recommends a vote AGAINST the shareowner proposal regarding Holy Land Principles.

ITEM 6 - SHAREOWNER PROPOSAL REGARDING RESTRICTED STOCK

Elton Shepherd, 720 Buff Drive N.E., Atlanta, Georgia 30342, owner of 50,646 shares of Common Stock, submitted the following proposal:

Restricted Stock Is Free:

Established in 1983, Coca-Cola's Restricted Stock Program awards a select group of Senior Executives "restricted" shares of common stock.

Restricted shares generally do not "vest" for three years.

The cost of restricted stock is ZERO ... thus, restricted stock is free!

Some awards, adjusted for subsequent stock splits, were extraordinary:

Former CEO Goizueta 11,232,000 free restricted shares.

Former President Keough 2,640,000 free restricted shares.

Coca-Cola Icon Robert Woodruff 0 free restricted shares.

Source: Coca-Cola Proxy Statements.

While the leadership skills of Goizueta and Keough are acknowledged, thousands of front line employees worldwide, none of whom received free restricted stock, also contributed to the success of Coca-Cola.

Coca-Cola Has Repeatedly Released Unvested Free Restricted Shares:

In 2000, former CEO lvester received 2,000,000 unvested free shares worth \$98 million dollars when he resigned.

Source: New York Times article dated March 4, 2000.

Although lvester resigned at age 52, his free restricted shares did not vest until age 55. Nevertheless, Coca-Cola added three (3) years to lvester's service record and released his *unvested free* shares.

Source: U.S. Securities & Exchange Commission filing.

In 2010, though his restricted share award had not vested, 13,379 *unvested free* shares were released to former VP Mattia, who "retired" after just three (3) years of service.

Source: U.S. Securities & Exchange Commission filling.

Unvested free shares, which should have been forfeited, have also been released to many other departing Senior Executives since 1983.

Performance Share Units:

Performance Share Units, another form of free restricted stock, have been awarded to Senior Executives in recent years.

While PSU's have been forfeited when performance metrics were not achieved, new PSU awards to the same Senior Executives have been granted following forfeiture.

John J. Gilbert:

This shareowner proposal is dedicated to the memory of John J. Gilbert, a champion of corporate governance.

Gilbert created the Shareowner Proposal System, calling it the "Magna Carta" of shareowner rights.

Use Of Discretion By The Compensation Committee:

In its 2015 Proxy, Coca-Cola stated that my 2015 proposal "sought to remove discretion and inappropriately tie the hands of our Compensation Committee."

My 2016 Proposal:

Does Not preclude Coca-Cola from using discretion, under the terms of its Restricted Stock Program, to make effective compensation decisions.

Does Not seek to amend or terminate the Restricted Stock Program.

Does Not require a shareowner vote of approval to release unvested restricted stock.

2016 Proposal:

Resolved that shareowners urge Coca-Cola's Board to discontinue the release of **unvested** restricted stock awards and **unvested** PSU awards to Senior Executives.

2016 Proxy Statement The Coa Cola Company 91

Statement Against Shareowner Proposal Regarding Restricted Stock

Your Board of Directors recommends a vote AGAINST this proposal. If implemented, the proposal would result in the Compensation Committee being restricted from releasing unvested restricted stock awards and unvested performance share units to senior executives in any circumstance.

An important component of making effective decisions on compensation is the ability of the Compensation Committee to use discretion when appropriate. Our shareowners as well as proxy advisors support the appropriate use of discretion by compensation committees when making decisions about executive compensation.

In spite of the proponent's claim to the contrary, if implemented, the proposal would unnecessarily tie the hands of our Compensation Committee and limit the discretion they now use judiciously to make the best decisions for our business and our shareowners.

The development of effective executive compensation policies and practices is complex and the Board believes our Compensation Committee, which is active, engaged and composed entirely of independent Directors, has the expertise and familiarity with the market necessary to make prudent decisions about compensation arrangements.

In addition, the Compensation Committee has already adopted a policy that would limit the release of unvested restricted shares. The policy provides for seeking shareowner approval of any severance arrangements for senior executives that result in payments in excess of 2.99 times total salary and bonus. The policy contains a specific provision addressing the early vesting of equity compensation. The proponent himself even notes in his proposal that Named Executive Officers have forfeited, or will forfeit, awards when performance targets have not been achieved.

This proposal is very similar to numerous proposals the proponent has filed starting in 2003. When submitted for a vote in 2015, the proponent's proposal was rejected by approximately 96% of the Company's shareowners voting.

The Board of Directors recommends a vote AGAINST the shareowner proposal regarding restricted stock.

ITEM 7 - SHAREOWNER PROPOSAL REGARDING ALIGNMENT BETWEEN CORPORATE VALUES AND POLITICAL AND POLICY ACTIVITY

The National Center for Public Policy Research, 501 Capitol Court, N.E., Suite 200, Washington, D.C. 20002, owner of 90 shares of Common Stock, submitted the following proposal:

Whereas:

The Proponent believes Coca-Cola should establish policies that minimize risk to the Company's reputation and brand.

Political contributions and policy activities of the Company include inconsistencies between Company actions and its stated corporate values.

For example. Coca-Cola supports "tax policies that allow companies like ours to operate on a level playing field in global competition with non-U.S. based companies, which currently enjoy a number of tax advantages over American-headquartered businesses." The Company further notes: "We contribute substantially to the global economy through jobs, investment, taxes and community investment. As such, we actively oppose discriminatory taxes or policies that single out certain products."

In other words, Coca-Cola supports policies that promote fair competition through reduced discriminatory regulation.

However, some of Coca-Cola's political donations and policy activities run counter to these stated corporate values.

For example, the Company donated to President Barack Obama's 2013 inaugural campaign despite the fact that his Administration's policies have resulted in the U.S. corporate tax rate becoming the highest in the developed world. Additionally, in 2014, the Company contributed to the California Democratic Party. In 2015, members of that party tried to advance legislation to raise taxes on sugary drinks.



Furthermore, despite the fact that the American Legislative Exchange Council (ALEC) works to foster a low-regulation business-friendly environment, the Company publicly ended its affiliation with ALEC at a time when anti-free-market activists were perpetuating falsehoods about ALEC and its activities.

These are just a few examples that highlight incongruent Company activity.

Lack of accountability puts the Company and shareholder value at risk should it become publicly known that Coca-Cola violated its own values.

Resolved:

The Proponent requests that the Board of Directors report to shareholders annually at reasonable expense, excluding any proprietary information, a congruency analysis between corporate values as defined by Coca Cola's stated policies (such as those listed in the "Public Policy: U.S. Focus" section of the Company website) and Company (and its affiliated PACs) electioneering contributions and policy activities. The report should contain a list of any such contributions or actions occurring during the prior year that raise an issue of misalignment with corporate values, and stating the justification for such exceptions.

Supporting Statement:

The Proponent recommends that management develop coherent criteria for determining congruency, such as identifying some legislative initiatives that are considered most germane to core Company values, and that the report include an analysis of risks to our Company's brand, reputation, or shareholder value, as well as acts of stewardship by the Company to inform funds recipients' of Company values, and the recipients' divergence from those values, at the time contributions are made.

Statement Against Shareowner Proposal Regarding Alignment Between Corporate Values and Political and Policy Activity

Your Board of Directors recommends a vote AGAINST this proposal because we believe our existing policies already account for what is being requested.

The Board of Directors believes that participation in the political process provides an important means for The Coca-Cola Company to protect the interests of the Company, our employees, our shareowners and the communities we serve. By sharing our views, constructive arguments and informed perspectives with policy makers, we can have a positive impact on the policy decisions that directly impact our business and our associates.

And while the Board acknowledges that the Company's involvement in political advocacy is an appropriate focus for shareowners, we recognize that not every shareowner agrees with every decision the Company makes on this issue. Shareowners have elected the Board to set and oversee robust policies on political advocacy that protect the interests of the Company and that are aligned with shareowners' interests. The Board believes that proposals such as this one would limit the Board's ability to exercise business judgment in a manner that it believes is in the best interests of the business and its shareowners.

Like the proponent, the Board agrees that our political activities should be closely aligned with our Company's values and vision for success, and has instituted a political engagement policy with that in mind. The intent behind our engagement with policy makers is to create an environment in which we can have constructive conversations about the issues that matter to us. We support political candidates who take reasonable positions on policies that promote economic growth as well as affect our long-term business objectives; this support does not mean that we agree with their positions on all issues.

The Company advocates for public policy that helps protect our business against many of the risk factors identified in our Form 10-K and creates an environment where we can further grow our business and create social value. Every contribution made by the Company or one of the political action committees sponsored by the Company is fully disclosed by the contributing entity, the recipient, or both in publicly available filings as required by applicable federal and state laws.

The Board regularly reevaluates the Company's policies and practices governing political expenditures to ensure that they meet the needs of our business and deliver value to our shareowners. As a part of this process we talk with many shareowners and stakeholder groups and we believe their views are largely incorporated into our current policies. For instance, our policy clearly reports U.S. political contributions, lobbying activity and trade association memberships, as well as payment ranges for the associations. The policy is overseen by the Board of Directors and clearly defines the process used for determining lobbying and contribution priorities.

Our current U.S. Government Advocacy and Political Contributions Policy is available on the Company website at *www.coca-colacompany.com/investors/public-policy-engagement*. The Board asks shareowners to visit the site and determine for themselves whether the Company's policies are aligned with their interests.

The Board of Directors recommends a vote AGAINST the shareowner proposal regarding alignment between corporate values and political and policy activity.

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS

PROXY MATERIALS AND VOTING INFORMATION

What is included in the proxy materials? What is a proxy statement and what is a proxy? 1.

The proxy materials for our 2016 Annual Meeting of Shareowners include the Notice of Annual Meeting, this proxy statement and our Form 10-K. If you received a paper copy of these materials, the proxy materials also include a proxy card or voting instruction form.

A proxy statement is a document that SEC regulations require us to give you when we ask you to sign a proxy designating individuals to vote on your behalf. A proxy is your legal designation of another person to vote the stock you own. That other person is called a proxy.

If you designate someone as your proxy in a written document, that document also is called a proxy or a proxy card. We have designated three of our officers as proxies for the 2016 Annual Meeting. These three officers are James Quincey, Kathy N. Waller and Bernhard Goepelt.

The form of proxy and this proxy statement have been approved by the Board of Directors and are being provided to shareowners by its authority.

What is the difference between holding shares as a shareowner of record and as a beneficial owner? 2.

If your shares are registered directly in your name with the Company's registrar and transfer agent, Computershare Trust Company, N.A. ("Computershare"), you are considered a shareowner of record with respect to those shares. If your shares are held in a bank or brokerage account, you are considered the "beneficial owner" of those shares.

What shares are included on the proxy card? 3.

If you are a shareowner of record, you will receive only one notice or proxy card for all the shares of Common Stock you hold in certificate form, in book-entry form and in any Company benefit plan.

If you are a Company employee and hold shares of Common Stock in one of our 401(k) or other savings plans, it is important that you direct the plan's administrator how to vote your shares. If you hold shares of Common Stock in The Coca-Cola Company 401(k) Plan, any other U.S. 401(k) or savings plan administered by Mercer Trust Company, the Caribbean Refrescos, Inc. Thrift Plan, or a Canadian savings plan and do not vote your shares or specify your voting instructions on your proxy card, the administrator of the applicable plan will vote your shares in the same proportion as the shares for which they have received voting instructions. To allow sufficient time for voting by the administrators, your voting instructions must be received by April 22, 2016.

If you are a beneficial owner, you will receive voting instruction information from the bank, broker or other nominee through which you own your shares of Common Stock



What are my voting choices for each of the proposals to be voted on at the 2016 Annual Meeting of 4. Shareowners and what are the voting standards?

Descus		
Proposal Item 1: Election of Directors	Voting Choices and Board Recommendation vote in favor of all nominees;	Voting Standard Majority of votes cast
	vote in favor of specific nominees;	Majority of Votos cast
	 vote analysis of specific hominees; vote against all nominees; 	
	 vote against an noninees; vote against specific nominees; 	
	 vote against specific nonnees; abstain from voting with respect to all nominees; or 	
	 abstain from voting with respect to an noninnees, of abstain from voting with respect to specific nominees. 	
	The Board recommends a vote FOR each of the Director nominees.	
Item 2: Advisory Vote to Approve Executive	 vote in favor of the advisory proposal; 	Majority of votes cast
Compensation	 vote in lavor of the advisory proposal; vote against the advisory proposal; or 	Majority of votes cast
	 abstain from voting on the advisory proposal. 	
	The Board recommends a vote FOR the advisory vote to approve	
	executive compensation.	
Item 3: Approval of the Material Terms of the	🌻 vote in favor of the proposal;	Majority of votes cast
Performance Incentive Plan of The Coca-Cola Company	🌻 vote against the proposal; or	
to Permit the Tax Deductibility of Certain Awards	🌞 abstain from voting on the proposal.	
	The Board recommends a vote FOR the approval of the material terms o the Performance Incentive Plan.	f
Item 4: Ratification of the Appointment of Ernst & Young	🌻 vote in favor of the ratification;	Majority of votes cast
LLP as Independent Auditors	vote against the ratification; or	
	abstain from voting on the ratification.	
	The Board recommends a vote FOR the ratification.	
Item 5 – 7: Shareowner Proposals	A separate vote will be held on each of the three shareowner proposals, if properly presented at the meeting. In voting on each proposal, shareowners may:	Majority of votes cast
	🌞 vote in favor of the shareowner proposal;	
	🌻 vote against the shareowner proposal; or	
	abstain from voting on the shareowner proposal.	
	The Board recommends a vote AGAINST each of the shareowner proposals.	

As an advisory vote, the proposal to approve executive compensation is not binding upon the Company. However, the Compensation Committee, which is responsible for designing and administering the Company's executive compensation programs, values the opinions expressed by shareowners and will consider the outcome of the vote when making future compensation decisions. See page 51 for a discussion of the results of the 2015 advisory vote.

What different methods can I use to vote? 5.

See page 6 for additional information about how to vote.

By Telephone or Internet. All shareowners of record can vote through the Internet, using the procedures and instructions described on the notice or proxy card, or by touchtone telephone within the U.S., U.S. territories and Canada, using the toll-free telephone number on the notice or proxy card. Beneficial owners may vote through the Internet or by telephone if their bank, broker or other nominee makes those methods available, in which case the bank, broker or other nominee will include the instructions with the proxy materials. The Internet and telephone voting procedures are designed to authenticate shareowners' identities, to allow shareowners to vote their shares and to confirm that their instructions have been recorded properly.

By Written Proxy. All shareowners of record can vote by written proxy card. If you are a shareowner of record and receive a notice regarding the availability of proxy materials, you may request a written proxy card by following the instructions included in the notice. If you are a beneficial owner, you may request a written proxy card or a voting instruction form from your bank, broker or other nominee.

In Person. All shareowners of record may vote in person at the meeting. Beneficial owners may also vote in person at the meeting if they have a legal proxy, as described in the response to question 8.



6. What if I am a shareowner of record and do not specify a choice for a matter when returning a proxy?

Shareowners should specify their choice for each matter on the proxy card. If no specific instructions are given, proxies which are signed and returned will be voted:

- FOR the election of all Director nominees as set forth in this proxy statement;
- FOR the advisory vote to approve executive compensation;
- FOR the proposal to approve the material terms of the Performance Incentive Plan of The Coca-Cola Company to permit the tax deductibility of certain awards;
- FOR the proposal to ratify the appointment of Ernst & Young LLP as Independent Auditors; and
- AGAINST each of the three shareowner proposals.

7. What if I am a beneficial owner and do not give voting instructions to my broker?

As a beneficial owner, in order to ensure your shares are voted in the way you would like, you must provide voting instructions to your bank, broker or other nominee by the deadline provided in the materials you receive from your bank, broker or other nominee. If you do not provide voting instructions to your bank, broker or other nominee, whether your shares can be voted by such person depends on the type of item being considered for vote.

Non-Discretionary Items. The election of Directors, the advisory vote to approve executive compensation, the proposal to approve the material terms of the Performance Incentive Plan of The Coca-Cola Company to permit the tax deductibility of certain awards and the three shareowner proposals are nondiscretionary items and may not be voted on by brokers, banks or other nominees who have not received specific voting instructions from beneficial owners.

Discretionary Items. The ratification of the appointment of Ernst & Young LLP as independent auditors is a discretionary item. Generally, banks, brokers and other nominees that do not receive voting instructions from beneficial owners may vote on this proposal in their discretion.

8. How can I vote at the 2016 Annual Meeting if I am a beneficial owner?

If you are a beneficial owner and want to vote your shares at the 2016 Annual Meeting, you will need to ask your bank, broker or other nominee to furnish you with a legal proxy. You will need to follow the procedures described in the response to <u>question 21</u> and then bring the legal proxy with you to the meeting and hand it in with a signed ballot that will be provided to you at the meeting. You will not be able to vote your shares at the meeting without a legal proxy. If you do not have a legal proxy, you can still attend the meeting by following the procedures described in the response to <u>question 21</u>.

However, you will not be able to vote your shares at the meeting. Accordingly, we encourage you to vote your shares in advance, even if you intend to attend the meeting.

Please note that if you request a legal proxy, any previously executed proxy will be revoked, and your vote will not be counted unless you appear at the meeting and vote in person or legally appoint another proxy to vote on your behalf.

9. How are abstentions and broker non-votes counted?

Abstentions and broker non-votes are included in determining whether a quorum is present, but will not be included in vote totals and will not affect the outcome of the vote.

10. What can I do if I change my mind after I vote my shares?

Shareowners can revoke a proxy prior to the completion of voting at the meeting by:

- giving written notice to the Office of the Secretary of the Company;
- delivering a later-dated proxy; or
- voting in person at the meeting (if you are a beneficial owner, see the response to <u>question 8</u>).

11. Can I access the proxy materials on the Internet? How can I sign up for the electronic proxy delivery service?

The Notice of Annual Meeting, proxy statement and the Form 10-K are available at www.edocumentview.com/coca-cola. In addition, shareowners are able to access these documents on the 2016 Annual Meeting page of the Company's website at www.coca-colacompany.com/investors/annual-meeting-of-shareowners. Instead of receiving future copies of our Notice of Annual Meeting, proxy statement and the Form 10-K by mail, shareowners of record and most beneficial owners can elect to receive an e-mail that will provide electronic links to these documents. Opting to receive your proxy materials online will save us the cost of producing and mailing documents, and also will give you an electronic link to the proxy voting site.



Electronic Shareowner Document Delivery

- Electronic delivery offered since 2005.
- The Company has a tree planted on behalf of each shareowner that signs up.
- Approximately 372,000 trees planted on behalf of Company shareowners.



Shareowners of Record. If you vote on the Internet, simply follow the prompts for enrolling in the electronic shareowner document delivery service. You also may enroll in this service at any time in the future by going directly to *www.computershare.com/coca-cola* and following the instructions. As a thank you to each shareowner enrolling in electronic delivery, the Company will have a tree planted on the shareowner's behalf at no cost to the shareowner.

Beneficial Owners. If you hold your shares in a bank or brokerage account, you also may have the opportunity to receive copies of these documents electronically. Please check the information in the proxy materials provided to you by your bank, broker or other nominee regarding the availability of this service.

12. Are votes confidential? Who counts the votes?

We will continue our long-standing practice of holding the votes of all shareowners in confidence from Directors, officers and employees except:

- as necessary to meet applicable legal requirements and to assert or defend claims for or against the Company;
- in the case of a contested proxy solicitation;
- 🌻 if a shareowner makes a written comment on the proxy card or otherwise communicates his or her vote to management; or
- to allow the independent inspectors of election to certify the results of the vote.

We also will continue, as we have for many years, to retain an independent tabulator to receive and tabulate the proxies and independent inspectors of election to certify the results.

13. When will the Company announce the voting results?

We will announce the preliminary voting results at the 2016 Annual Meeting. The Company will report the final results on our website and in a Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC.

14. Does the Company have a policy about Directors' attendance at the Annual Meeting of Shareowners?

The Company does not have a policy about Directors' attendance at the Annual Meeting of Shareowners, but Directors are encouraged to attend. All Directors at the time and Director nominees, except for one, attended the 2015 Annual Meeting of Shareowners.

15. How are proxies solicited and what is the cost?

We bear all expenses incurred in connection with the solicitation of proxies. We have engaged Georgeson Inc. to assist with the solicitation of proxies for an estimated fee of \$25,000 plus expenses. We will reimburse brokers, fiduciaries and custodians for their costs in forwarding proxy materials to beneficial owners of Common Stock.

Our Directors, officers and employees also may solicit proxies by mail, telephone and personal contact. They will not receive any additional compensation for these activities.

16. What is householding?

As permitted by the 1934 Act, only one copy of this proxy statement is being delivered to shareowners residing at the same address, unless the shareowners have notified the Company of their desire to receive multiple copies of the proxy statement. This is known as householding.

The Company will promptly deliver, upon oral or written request, a separate copy of the proxy statement to any shareowner residing at an address to which only one copy was mailed. Requests for additional copies for the current year or future years should be directed to the Office of the Secretary as described in the response to <u>question 28</u>.

Shareowners of record residing at the same address and currently receiving multiple copies of the proxy statement may contact our registrar and transfer agent, Computershare, to request that only a single copy of the proxy statement be mailed in the future.

Contact Computershare by phone at (888) 265-3747 or by mail at 250 Royall Street, Canton, MA 02021.

Beneficial owners, as described in the response to <u>question 8</u>, should contact their bank, broker or other nominee.

2016 Proxy Statement



17. What information from this proxy statement is incorporated by reference into certain Company SEC filings?

The Company has made previous filings under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and the 1934 Act that incorporate future filings, including this proxy statement, in whole or in part. However, the Report of the Compensation Committee and the Report of the Audit Committee shall not be incorporated by reference into any such filings.

18. Will you make a list of shareowners entitled to vote at the 2016 Annual Meeting available?

We will make available a list of shareowners of record as of the record date for inspection by shareowners for any purpose germane to the meeting during normal business hours from April 13 through April 27, 2016 at One Coca-Cola Plaza, Atlanta, Georgia 30313. This list also will be available to shareowners for any such purpose at the meeting.

MEETING INFORMATION

19. What is new for 2016?

The 2016 Annual Meeting of Shareowners is at a new location, World of Coca-Cola in Atlanta, Georgia, and starts at 8:45 a.m., local time on April 27, 2016.

In addition, we are pleased to announce a new event, Coca-Cola Shareowner Day, which will be held following the 2016 Annual Meeting at World of Coca-Cola from 11:00 a.m. – 3:00 p.m., local time. You may participate in Coca-Cola Shareowner Day even if you do not attend the 2016 Annual Meeting. Coca-Cola Shareowner Day will provide free admission to World of Coca-Cola to shareowners and one guest per shareowner. The day will include an opportunity to see the exciting World of Coca-Cola plus informative exhibitions and displays about our Company and our business. Space is limited and you must book tickets in advance to attend Coca-Cola Shareowner Day. See "Important Registration Information for Coca-Cola Shareowner Day" on page 101 for instructions on how to attend Coca-Cola Shareowner Day.

20. Do I have to attend the 2016 Annual Meeting to come to Coca-Cola Shareowner Day? How do I attend Coca-Cola Shareowner Day?

You do not have to attend the 2016 Annual Meeting to attend Coca-Cola Shareowner Day. Coca-Cola Shareowner Day will be held at World of Coca-Cola in Atlanta, Georgia on April 27, 2016 from 11:00 a.m. – 3:00 p.m., local time. Each shareowner may bring one guest to Coca-Cola Shareowner Day. Space is limited and you must book tickets in advance to attend Coca-Cola Shareowner Day.

See "Important Registration Information for Coca-Cola Shareowner Day" on page 101 for instructions on how to attend.

21. How do I attend the 2016 Annual Meeting in person?

The 2016 Annual Meeting will be held at World of Coca-Cola in Atlanta, Georgia on April 27, 2016 at 8:45 a.m., local time. All attendees will need to bring a valid photo ID to gain admission to the annual meeting. Please note that cameras, sound or video recording equipment, cellular telephones, smartphones or other similar equipment, electronic devices, large bags, briefcases or packages will not be allowed in the meeting room. You will be required to enter through a security checkpoint before being granted access to the venue.

Attendance at the meeting is limited to shareowners as of the record date, February 29, 2016, or their authorized named representatives (see <u>question 23</u> for instructions on how to appoint an authorized named representative).

If you are a shareowner of record and receive your proxy materials by mail, your admission ticket is attached to your proxy card. If you are a shareowner of record and receive your materials electronically, and vote via the Internet, there will be instructions to follow when voting to print out your admission ticket.

If you are a beneficial owner, bring the notice or voting instruction form you received from your bank, broker or other nominee to be



admitted to the meeting. You also may bring your bank or brokerage account statement reflecting your ownership of Common Stock as of February 29, 2016 with you to the meeting. Please note that you will not be able to vote your shares at the meeting without a legal proxy (see guestion 8 for details on voting with a legal proxy).

Ensuring the 2016 Annual Meeting of Shareowners is safe and productive is our top priority. As such, failure to follow these admission procedures may result in being denied admission or being directed to view the meeting in an overflow room. Because seating in the meeting room is limited, and in order to be able to address security concerns, we reserve the right to direct attendees to listen to the meeting in an overflow room. In addition, failure to follow the meeting procedures may result in ejection from the meeting, being directed to listen to the meeting in an overflow room and/or being denied admission to this and future meetings.

If you have guestions regarding these admission procedures, please call Shareowner Services at (404) 676-2777.

22. If I cannot attend the 2016 Annual Meeting in person, how can I listen on the Internet?

To listen to the live webcast of the meeting, you can visit the 2016 Annual Meeting page of our website, www.coca-colacompany.com/ investors/annualmeeting-of-shareowners. An archived copy of the webcast will be available until June 2016.

23. If I cannot attend in person, how can I appoint a legal representative to attend on my behalf?

If you are a shareowner as of the record date and intend to appoint an authorized named representative to attend the meeting on your behalf, you must send a written request for an admission ticket by regular mail to The Coca-Cola Company, Shareowner Services, P.O. Box 1734, Atlanta, Georgia 30301, by e-mail to shareownerservices@coca-cola.com or by fax to (404) 676-8409. Requests for authorized named representatives to attend the meeting must be received no later than Friday, April 22, 2016.

Please include the following information when submitting your request:

- 1. your name, complete mailing address and e-mail address;
- proof that you own shares of the Company as of February 29, 2016 (such as a copy of the portion of your voting instruction form showing your name and address, a bank or 2 brokerage account statement or a letter from the bank, broker or other nominee holding your shares); and
- 3. a signed authorization appointing such individual to be your authorized named representative at the meeting, which includes the name, address, telephone number and e-mail address of the authorized named representative.

Upon receipt of proper documentation, you and your named representative will receive confirmation that your named representative has been authorized. To gain admission to the meeting, the photo ID presented must match the documentation provided in item three above. We reserve the right to limit the number of representatives who may attend the meeting.

24. What information is included on the 2016 Annual Meeting page of the Company's website?

The 2016 Annual Meeting page of our website allows our shareowners to (i) easily access the Company's proxy materials, (ii) vote through the Internet, (iii) submit questions in advance of the 2016 Annual Meeting, (iv) access the live webcast of the meeting and (v) learn more about our Company. To submit a question in advance of the 2016 Annual Meeting, you must have your control number available, which can be found on your notice, proxy card or voting instruction form. Shareowners may access the 2016 Annual Meeting page of our website at www.coca-colacompany.com/investors/annual-meeting-ofshareowners.

25. Could any additional proposals be raised at the 2016 Annual Meeting of Shareowners?

Management does not know of any items, other than those referred to in the accompanying Notice of Annual Meeting of Shareowners, which may properly come before the meeting or other matters incident to the conduct of the meeting. As to any other item or proposal that may properly come before the meeting, including voting on a proposal omitted from this proxy statement pursuant to the rules of the SEC, it is intended that proxies will be voted in accordance with the discretion of the proxy holders. See the response to guestion 29 for how to submit a proposal for action at the 2017 Annual Meeting of Shareowners.



COMPANY DOCUMENTS, COMMUNICATIONS, SHAREOWNER **PROPOSALS AND DIRECTOR NOMINEES**

26. How can I view or request copies of the Company's corporate documents and SEC filings, including the Annual Report on Form 10-K?

The Company's website contains the Company's Certificate of Incorporation, By-Laws, Corporate Governance Guidelines, Board Committee Charters, Codes of Business Conduct and the Company's SEC filings. To view these documents, go to www.coca-colacompany.com, click on "Investors" and click on "Corporate Governance." To view the Company's SEC filings, including Forms 3, 4 and 5 filed by the Company's Directors and executive officers, go to www.cocacolacompany.com, click on "Investors" and click on "SEC Filings."

We will promptly deliver free of charge, upon request, a copy of the Corporate Governance Guidelines, Board Committee Charters or Codes of Business Conduct to any shareowner requesting a copy. Requests should be directed to the Office of the Secretary as described in the response to guestion 28.

The 2015 Annual Report on Form 10-K includes our financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2015. We have furnished the Form 10-K to all shareowners. The Form 10-K does not form any part of the material for the solicitation of proxies. We will promptly deliver free of charge, upon request, a copy of the Form 10-K to any shareowner requesting a copy. Requests should be directed to the Company's Consumer and Industry Affairs Department, The Coca-Cola Company, P.O. Box 1734, Atlanta, Georgia 30301.

27. How can I communicate with the Company's Directors?

Communications can be addressed to Directors in care of the Office of the Secretary, The Coca-Cola Company, P.O. Box 1734, Atlanta, Georgia 30301 or by e-mail to asktheboard@coca-cola.com. At the direction of the Board, all mail received may be opened and screened for security purposes. All mail, other than trivial, obscene, unduly hostile, threatening, illegal or similarly unsuitable items, will be forwarded or delievered, as appropriate. Mail addressed to a particular Director will be forwarded or delivered to that Director. Mail addressed to "Outside Directors" or "Non-Employee Directors" will be forwarded or delivered to the Lead Independent Director. Mail addressed to the "Board of Directors" will be forwarded or delivered to the Chairman of the Board and the Lead Independent Director.

28.What is the contact information for the Office of the Secretary?

Materials may be sent to the Office of the Secretary (i) by mail to the Office of the Secretary, The Coca-Cola Company, P.O. Box 1734, Atlanta, Georgia 30301, (ii) by e-mail to shareownerservices@coca-cola.com or (iii) by fax to (404) 676-8409.

29. What is the deadline to propose actions for consideration at the 2017 Annual Meeting of Shareowners?

Shareowners may present proper proposals for inclusion in our proxy statement and for consideration at the 2017 Annual Meeting of Shareowners by submitting their proposals in writing to the Company in a timely manner. Proposals should be addressed to the Office of the Secretary as specified in question 28. For a shareowner proposal other than a director nomination to be considered for inclusion in our proxy statement for our 2017 Annual Meeting of Shareowners, we must receive the written proposal on or before November 10, 2016. In addition, shareowner proposals must otherwise comply with the requirements of Rule 14a-8 promulgated under the 1934 Act.

Under certain circumstances, shareowners may also submit nominations for directors for inclusion in our proxy materials by complying with the requirements in our By-Laws. For more information regarding proxy access, please see guestion 30.

Our By-Laws also establish an advance notice procedure for shareowners who wish to present a proposal, including the nomination of directors, before an annual meeting of shareowners, but do not intend for the proposal to be included in our proxy materials. Pursuant to our By-Laws, in order for business to be properly brought before an annual meeting by a shareowner, the shareowner must have complied with the notice procedures specified in our By-Laws and such business must be a proper matter for shareowner action under Delaware General Corporation Law. To be timely for our 2017 Annual Meeting of Shareowners, we must receive the written notice on or before December 28, 2016. Such notice should be addressed to the Office of the Secretary as specified in guestion 28.

In addition, the shareowner proponent, or a representative who is gualified under state law, must appear in person at the 2017 Annual Meeting of Shareowners to present such proposal or nomination.



30. How do I nominate a director using the Company's proxy materials?

After engaging with a number of our shareowners to understand their views on the desirability of proxy access and the appropriate proxy access structure for the Company, in September 2015, our Board adopted a "Proxy Access for Director Nominations" bylaw. The proxy access bylaw permits a shareowner, or a group of up to 20 shareowners, owning 3% or more of the Company's outstanding Common Stock continuously for at least three years to nominate and include in the Company's proxy materials director nominees constituting up to two individuals or 20% of the Board (whichever is greater), provided that the shareowner(s) and the nominee(s) satisfy the requirements specified in Article I, Section 12 of our By-Laws.

Pursuant to our By-Laws, to be timely for inclusion in the proxy materials for our 2017 Annual Meeting of Shareowners, we must receive a shareowner's notice to nominate a director using the Company's proxy materials between October 11, 2016 and November 10, 2016. Such notice should be addressed to the Office of the Secretary as specified in question 28. The notice must contain the information required by our By-Laws, and the shareowner(s) and nominee(s) must comply with the information and other requirements in our By-Laws relating to the inclusion of shareowner nominees in our proxy materials.

IMPORTANT REGISTRATION INFORMATION FOR COCA-COLA SHAREOWNER DAY

IMPORTANT NOTE: You must book tickets in advance to attend Coca-Cola Shareowner Day. Please follow the instructions below to register.

We are pleased to invite shareowners to join us at World of Coca-Cola on April 27, 2016, from 11:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m., local time, for Coca-Cola Shareowner Day. Coca-Cola Shareowner Day will provide free admission to World of Coca-Cola to shareowners and one guest per shareowner. If you own shares jointly, each joint owner may bring a guest. You may participate in Coca-Cola Shareowner Day even if you do not attend the 2016 Annual Meeting.

At Coca-Cola Shareowner Day, shareowners will have a chance to experience the fascinating story of the world's best-known beverage brand in a dynamic, multimedia attraction, spend time with the Coca-Cola Polar Bear, visit the vault holding the legendary formula for Coca-Cola, treat their taste buds to a trip around the world with more than 100 different beverages, get a behind-the-scenes look at the Coca-Cola bottling process and learn more about our new global marketing campaign, "Taste the Feeling".

Shareowners must book tickets in advance, bring a valid photo ID and proof of ownership to gain admission to Coca-Cola Shareowner Day. Proof of ownership may include your proxy card, voting instruction form, meeting notice or brokerage statement. Register online at www.shareownerday.coca-cola.com and follow the instructions provided. Registration will open at noon (EDT) on March 21, 2016 and end at 11:59 p.m. (EDT) on April 20, 2016, or until we reach capacity.

If you do not have access to the Internet, you may register by phone at (877) 456-2653. To register, you will need the security code provided with your proxy materials.

Please note, you will be required to enter through a security checkpoint before being granted access to World of Coca-Cola.

Things to do or remember prior to attending:

- If you plan to attend Coca-Cola Shareowner Day you must register in advance.
- You do not have to attend the 2016 Annual Meeting to attend Coca-Cola Shareowner Day.
- Due to limited availability, only shareowners and their guests who book tickets in advance may attend Coca-Cola Shareowner Day. Authorized legal representatives will not be able to attend Coca-Cola Shareowner Day.
- If you own shares jointly, each joint owner is considered a shareowner and may attend and bring a guest. For example, Joe and Jane Smith have a joint brokerage account in which they own Company shares. Both Joe and Jane may bring one guest each to Coca-Cola Shareowner Day.

If you have guestions regarding admission to Coca-Cola Shareowner Day, please call (877) 456-2653.





RECONCILIATION OF GAAP AND NON-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES

The Company reports its financial results in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States ("GAAP" or referred to herein as "reported"). However, management believes that certain non-GAAP financial measures provide users with additional meaningful financial information that should be considered when assessing our ongoing performance. Management also uses these non-GAAP financial measures in making financial, operating and planning decisions and in evaluating the Company's performance. Non-GAAP financial measures should be viewed in addition to, and not as an alternative for, the Company's reported results prepared in accordance with GAAP. Our non-GAAP financial information does not represent a comprehensive basis of accounting.

For additional details regarding the reconciliation of GAAP and non-GAAP financial measures below, see the Company's Current Reports on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on February 9, 2016, February 10, 2015, and February 18, 2014. This information is also available in the "Investors" section of the Company's website, www.coca-colacompany.com.

	Year Ei	nded December	31, 2015
(UNAUDITED) (In millions except per share data)	Net operating revenues	Income before income taxes	
Reported (GAAP)	\$ 44,294	\$ 9,605	\$ 1.67
Items Impacting Comparability:			
Asset Impairments/Restructuring	-	292	0.07
Productivity & Reinvestment	-	691	0.10
Productivity Initiatives	-	-	-
Equity Investees	-	87	0.02
CCE Transaction	-	-	-
Transaction Gains/Losses	-	97	0.05
Other Items	(37)	598	0.10
After Considering Items (Non-GAAP)	\$ 44,257	\$ 11,370	\$ 2.00

	Year E	nded December	31, 2014
(UNAUDITED)	Net operating	Income before	Diluted net income
(In millions except per share data)	revenues	income taxes	per share ⁽²⁾
Reported (GAAP)	\$ 45,998	\$ 9,325	\$ 1.60
Items Impacting Comparability:			
Asset Impairments/Restructuring	-	208	0.05
Productivity & Reinvestment	-	601	0.09
Productivity Initiatives	-	-	-
Equity Investees	-	18	-
CCE Transaction	-	-	-
Transaction Gains/Losses	-	853	0.13
Other Items	14	758	0.18
After Considering Items (Non-GAAP)	\$ 46,012	\$ 11,763	\$ 2.04

(UNAUDITED) (In millions)	Decembe	Ended or 31, 2015 chases and suances of stock
Reported (GAAP):		
Issuances of Stock	\$	1,245
Purchases of Stock for Treasury		(3,564)
Net Change in Stock Issuance Receivables ⁽³⁾		1
Net Change in Treasury Stock Payables ⁽⁴⁾		18
Net Treasury Share Repurchases (Non-GAAP)	\$	(2,300)

Year Ended Dec	ember 31, 2013
Net operating revenues	Income before income taxes
\$ 46,854	\$ 11,477
-	383
-	494
-	(2)
-	159
-	(2)
78	(573)
3	293
\$ 46,935	\$ 12,229

Y	ear Ended I	December 31, 2012
	Net	Income
oj	perating	before
r	evenues	income taxes
\$	48,017	\$ 11,809
	-	179
	-	270
	-	(10)
	-	(8)
	-	(6)
	6	(79)
	9	62
\$	48,032	\$ 12,217

Note: Certain columns may not add due to rounding.

(1) 4,405 million average shares outstanding - diluted

(2) 4,450 million average shares outstanding - diluted

(3) Represents the net change in receivables related to employee stock options exercised but not settled prior to the end of the year.

(4) Represents the net change in payables for treasury shares repurchased but not settled prior to the end of the year.



GROWTH RATES (2015 VERSUS 2014):

GROW III RATES (2013 VERSOS 2014).	Net operating
_(UNAUDITED)	revenues
% Change – Reported (GAAP)	(4)
% Currency Impact	(7)
% Change – Currency Neutral Reported	3
% Acquisition & Divestiture Adjustments	0
% Change – Organic Revenues (Non-GAAP)	4

GROWTH RATES (2015 VERSUS 2014):

(UNAUDITED)	Income before income taxes	Diluted net income per share
% Change – Reported (GAAP)	3	5
% Currency Impact	(6)	(6)
% Change – Currency Neutral Reported	9	10
% Structural Impact	(1)	N/A
% Change – Currency Neutral Reported and Adjusted for Structural Items	9	N/A
% Change – After Considering Items (Non-GAAP)	(3)	(2)
% Currency Impact After Considering Items (Non-GAAP)	(8)	(8)
% Change – Currency Neutral After Considering Items (Non-GAAP)	5	6
% Structural Impact After Considering Items (Non-GAAP)	(1)	N/A
% Change – Currency Neutral After Considering Items and Adjusted for Structural Items (Non-GAAP)	6	N/A

GROWTH RATES (2014 VERSUS 2013):

_(UNAUDITED)	Net operating revenues	Income before income taxes
% Change – Reported (GAAP)	(2)	(19)
% Currency Impact	(2)	(9)
% Change – Currency Neutral Reported	1	(9)
% Structural Impact	(2)	(2)
% Change – Currency Neutral Reported and Adjusted for Structural Items	3	(8)
% Change – After Considering Items (Non-GAAP)	(2)	(4)
% Currency Impact After Considering Items (Non-GAAP)	(2)	(7)
% Change – Currency Neutral After Considering Items (Non-GAAP)	1	3
% Structural Impact After Considering Items (Non-GAAP)	(2)	(2)
% Change - Currency Neutral After Considering Items and Adjusted for Structural Items (Non-GAAP)	3	5

GROWTH RATES (2013 VERSUS 2012):

(UNAUDITED)	Net operating revenues	Income before income taxes
% Change – Reported (GAAP)	(2)	(3)
% Currency Impact	(2)	(5)
% Change – Currency Neutral Reported	0	2
% Structural Impact	(3)	(1)
% Change – Currency Neutral Reported and Adjusted for Structural Items	3	4
% Change – After Considering Items (Non-GAAP)	(2)	0
% Currency Impact After Considering Items (Non-GAAP)	(2)	(4)
% Change – Currency Neutral After Considering Items (Non-GAAP)	0	4
% Structural Impact After Considering Items (Non-GAAP)	(3)	(1)
% Change - Currency Neutral After Considering Items and Adjusted for Structural Items (Non-GAAP)	3	6

Note: Certain columns may not add due to rounding. Certain growth rates may not recalculate using the rounded dollar amounts provided.



Thank you for being a shareowner and for the trust you have in The Coca-Cola Company



When:

Wednesday, April 27, 2016 11:00 a.m. – 3:00 p.m., local time (following the 2016 Annual Meeting)

Where: World of Coca-Cola 121 Baker Street NW Atlanta, Georgia 30313

Coca-Cola Shareowner Day Highlights:

- Enjoy free admission to World of Coca-Cola (advance registration required, space is limited)
- Explore the history of The Coca-Cola Company and learn more about our business
- Spend time with the Coca-Cola Polar Bear
- Visit the vault holding the legendary formula for Coca-Cola
- Treat your taste buds to a trip around the world with an opportunity to try over 100 different beverages
- Learn more about our new global marketing campaign, "Taste the Feeling"

Important Information:

Space is limited and you must book tickets in advance to attend Coca-Cola Shareowner Day. You may participate in Coca-Cola Shareowner Day even if you do not attend the 2016 Annual Meeting. See IMPORTANT REGISTRATION INFORMATION FOR COCA-COLA SHAREOWNER DAY on page 101. Visit www.shareownerday.coca-cola.com to book tickets.









Our 2016 **Proxy Materials** Our 2015 Annual Report on Form 10-K

Our 2014/2015 Sustainability Report

Our Company website

PERFORMANCE INCENTIVE PLAN OF THE COCA-COLA COMPANY As Amended and Restated as of February 17, 2016

I. Plan Objective

The purpose of the Performance Incentive Plan of The Coca-Cola Company is to promote the interests of The Coca-Cola Company (the "Company") by providing additional incentive for employees who contribute to the improvement of operating results of the Company and to reward outstanding performance on the part of those individuals whose decisions and actions most significantly affect the growth and profitability and efficient operation of the Company.

The Company intends for the Awards payable to certain Executives under this Plan to be performance-based compensation under Code Section 162(m).

II. Definitions

The terms used herein will have the following meanings:

"Affiliate" means any entity 1) in which the Company owns, directly or indirectly, 20% or more of the voting stock or capital at the relevant time, 2) that has an ongoing contractual relationship with the Company or a Subsidiary that provides such entity the rights to manufacture, sell and/or distribute beverages for which the trademark is owned by the Company or a Subsidiary, or 3) that is approved by the Compensation Committee as an Affiliate based on its relationship with the Company or its Subsidiaries.

"Award" means an amount calculated and awarded under the Plan to a Participant.

"Board" means the Board of Directors of the Company.

"Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

"Company" means The Coca-Cola Company.

"Compensation Committee" means the Compensation Committee of the Board (or a subset thereof) consisting of not less than two members of the Board, each of whom is an "outside director" under Code Section 162(m).

"Employee" means any person regularly employed on a full-time or part-time basis by the Company or a Subsidiary.

"Executive" means any Employee whose compensation is within the purview of the Compensation Committee pursuant to the Compensation Committee's practices and policies.

"Management Committee" means the committee appointed by the Compensation Committee to administer the Plan.

"Participant" means an Employee who satisfies the eligibility requirements set forth in Section IV of the Plan.

"Performance Period" means the time period for which a Participant's performance is measured for purposes of receiving an Award.

"Plan" means this Performance Incentive Plan of The Coca-Cola Company.

"Plan Year" means the 12-month period beginning January 1 and ending December 31.

"Subsidiary" means any corporation, limited liability company, partnership or other entity, of which 50% or more of the outstanding voting stock or voting power is beneficially owned directly or indirectly by the Company.

III. Administration

The Plan will be administered by the Compensation Committee and/or the Management Committee. No person, other than members of these committees, shall have any discretion concerning decisions regarding the Plan. The Compensation Committee and/or the Management Committee, in its sole discretion, will determine which of the Participants to whom, and the time or times at which, Awards will be granted under the Plan, and the other conditions of the grant of the Awards. The provisions and conditions of the grants of Awards need not be the same with respect to each grantee or with respect to each Award.

The Compensation Committee will, subject to the provisions of the Plan, establish such rules and regulations as it deems necessary or advisable for the proper administration of the Plan, and will make determinations and will take such other action in connection with or in relation to accomplishing the objectives of the Plan as it deems necessary or advisable. Each determination or other action made or taken by the Compensation Committee or the Management Committee pursuant to the Plan, including interpretation of the Plan and the specific conditions and provisions of the Awards granted hereunder will be final and conclusive for all purposes and upon all persons including, but without limitation, the Company, any Subsidiary, the Compensation Committee, the Management Committee, the Board, officers, the affected Employees, and any Participant or former Participant under the Plan, as well as their respective successors in interest.

IV. Eligibility and Participation

a. <u>Eligibility</u>. Eligibility for participation in the Plan is determined in the sole discretion of the Compensation Committee or the Management Committee. An Employee is eligible to participate in the Plan if 1) the Employee is compensated in an amount at least equal to the minimum salary or salary grade guideline established annually by the Management Committee, and 2) the Employee is recommended for participation in the Plan by his or her immediate superior and is approved for such participation by the operating head of the Employee's unit.

The fact that an Employee is eligible to participate in the Plan in one Plan Year does not assure that the Employee will be eligible to participate in any subsequent year. The fact that an Employee is eligible to participate in the Plan for any Plan Year does not mean that the Employee will receive an Award in any Plan Year. The Compensation Committee or the Management Committee will determine an Employee's eligibility for participation in the Plan from time to time prior to or during each Plan Year.

b. <u>Participation</u>. In the case of Executives, generally, the Compensation Committee annually will select the Participants no later than 90 days after the beginning of a Performance Period (or, if shorter, before 25% of the Performance Period has elapsed) in accordance with Code Section 162(m). Following such selection by the Compensation Committee, the Participants will be advised they are participants in the Plan for a Performance Period.

V. Performance Criteria and Performance Goals

a. <u>Performance Criteria</u>. Performance will be measured based upon one or more objective criteria for each Performance Period. Criteria will be measured over the Performance Period. No later than 90 days of the beginning of a Performance Period (or, if shorter, before 25% of the Performance Period has elapsed), the Compensation Committee shall specify in writing which of the following criteria will apply during such Performance Period, as well as any applicable matrices, schedules, or formulae applicable to weighting of such criteria in determining performance. Only Performance Criteria that have been approved by shareowners shall be used for Awards to Executives. However, the Compensation Committee may specify additional criteria from time to time to be used for Awards to Employees who are not Executives.

- · increase in shareowner value;
- · earnings per share;
- stock price;
- net income;
- · return on assets;
- · return on shareowners' equity;
- increase in cash flow;
- · operating profit or operating margins;
- · revenue growth of the Company;
- · operating expenses;
- · economic profit;
- · return on capital;
- · return on invested capital;
- · earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization;
- unit case volume;
- · operating income;
- · value share of Non Alcoholic Ready-To-Drink segment;
- · volume share of Non Alcoholic Ready-To-Drink segment;
- net revenue;
- gross profit;

Back to Contents

- profit before tax;
- number of transactions (number of physical packages sold); and

productivity.

Any of the performance criteria can be applied on an absolute basis or on a relative basis (e.g., as a relative comparison to a peer group, industry index, broad- base index, etc.), and may be calculated for a single year or calculated on a compound basis over multiple years.

b. Performance Goals. Using any applicable matrices, schedules, or formulae applicable to weighting of the performance criteria, the Compensation Committee will develop, in writing, performance goals for the Participants for a Performance Period, no later than 90 days of the start of the Performance Period (or, if shorter, before 25% of the Performance Period has elapsed) in which they would apply. The Compensation Committee shall have the right to use different performance criteria for different Participants. When the Compensation Committee sets the performance goals for a Participant, the Compensation Committee shall establish the general, objective rules which will be used to determine the extent, if any, that a Participant's performance goals have been met and the specific, objective rules, if any, regarding any exceptions to the use of such general rules, and any such specific, objective rules may be designed as the Compensation Committee deems appropriate to take into account any extraordinary or one-time or other non-recurring items of income or expense or gain or loss or any events, transactions or other circumstances that the Compensation Committee deems relevant in light of the nature of the performance goals set for the Participant or the assumptions made by the Compensation Committee regarding such goals.

In the case of an Executive, in the event that a Participant is assigned a performance goal following the time at which performance goals are normally established for the Performance Period due to placement in a position, or due to a change in position after the start of the Performance Period, the Performance Period for such Participant may be the portion of the Plan Year or original Performance Period remaining, whichever is applicable. In such case, the Compensation Committee will develop in writing performance goals for each such Participant before 25% of the Performance Period in which they would apply elapses.

VI. Awards

An Award to a Participant will be based on a percentage of the Participant's base salary. The Management Committee (or the Compensation Committee) has discretion to adjust base salary for the purposes of the Plan.

The Compensation Committee or the Management Committee may, in each of their respective sole discretion, adjust the Award for each Participant based upon that Participant's over achievement or under achievement in terms of his or her individual performance and the performance of the Participant's operating unit during the Plan Year. However, if any amount of the Award is based upon criteria other than objective measures established in accordance with Section V, the excess will not be performance based compensation under Code Section 162(m).



a. <u>Hiring or Termination During Performance Period</u> An Employee who is selected as a Participant after the beginning of a Plan Year or a Participant who terminates employment after attaining age 55 with 10 Years of Service, who dies, or whose employment is transferred to an Affiliate prior to the end of such Plan Year will be eligible to receive a pro rata share of an Award based on participation during any portion of such Plan Year if, in the sole discretion of the Compensation Committee or the Management Committee, such an award is merited. A Participant whose employment is otherwise terminated prior to the end of such Plan Year will not be eligible for an Award. "Years of Service" for purposes of this section means "Years of Vesting Service" as that term is defined in The Coca-Cola Company Pension Plan, regardless of whether the Participant is a participant in that plan.

b. <u>Termination of Employment after Performance Period, but Prior to Payment</u> A Participant shall receive payment of an Award for any Performance Period if his or her employment with the Company or a Subsidiary has terminated before the date the Award is actually paid unless the Compensation Committee in the exercise of its absolute discretion affirmatively directs the Company not to pay such Award to, or on behalf of, such Participant.

c. <u>Award Limits</u>. A Participant shall not receive payment of an Award for any Performance Period in excess of \$10,000,000.

VII. Determination and Timing of Awards

At the end of each applicable Performance Period, the Compensation Committee shall certify the extent, if any, to which the measures established in accordance with Section V have been met. All Awards to Participants who are Executives will be made by the Compensation Committee in its sole discretion. Awards to all other Participants shall be made by the Management Committee in its sole discretion. Awards will be paid for a particular Plan Year on the March 15th following the end of the Plan Year, or if March 15th is not a business day, the first business day immediately preceding the March 15th following the end of the Plan Year.

VIII. Method of Payment of Awards

a. <u>Payments of Awards</u>. Except as otherwise provided in this Plan, Awards for each Participant will be paid in cash.

b. Deferral of Payment of Award An Award paid in cash may be deferred under The Coca-Cola Company Deferred Compensation Plan (or comparable international plan, if any) if the language of the applicable plan so provides.

c. <u>Recapture of Award</u>.

(i) If, within one year after receiving an Award, any Employee (a) renders services for any organization which, in the sole judgment of the Compensation Committee or Management Committee, is or becomes competitive with the Company, or (b) is terminated for a violation of any written policy of the Company, the Employee shall reimburse the Company the full amount of the Award, except where prohibited by local law.

(ii) Any Award granted under this Plan will be subject to any recoupment or clawback policy that the Company may adopt from time to time and to any requirement of applicable law, regulation or listing standard that requires the Company to recoup or claw back compensation paid pursuant to such an Award.

d. <u>Withholding for Taxes</u>. The Company will have the right to deduct from any and all Award payments any taxes required to be withheld with respect to such payment, including hypothetical taxes under the Company's International Service Program Policy and/or Tax Equalization Policy. For Participants who are International Service Associates or other international employees, all taxes remain the Participant's responsibility, except as expressly provided in the Company's International Service Policy and/or Tax Equalization Policy. The Company and any Subsidiary (i) make no representations or undertaking regarding the treatment of any taxes in connection with any Award; and (ii) do not commit to structure the terms of the Award to reduce or eliminate the Participant's liability for taxes.

e. <u>Payments to Estates</u>. Awards and interest thereon, if any, which are due to a Participant pursuant to the provisions hereof and which remain unpaid at the time of his or her death will be paid in full to the Participant's estate.

f. Offset for Monies Owed Any payments made under this Plan will be offset for any monies that the Management Committee determines are owed to the Company or any Subsidiary.

IX. Amendment and Termination

The Compensation Committee may amend, modify, suspend, reinstate or terminate this Plan in whole or in part at any time or from time to time; provided, however, that no such action will adversely affect any right or obligation with respect to any Award theretofore made. The Compensation Committee and the Management Committee may deviate from the provisions of this Plan to the extent such committee deems appropriate to conform to local, laws and practices.

X. Applicable Law

The Plan and all rules and determinations made and taken pursuant hereto will be governed by the laws of the State of Delaware, to the extent not preempted by federal law, and construed accordingly.

XI. Effect on Benefit Plans

Awards will not be included in the computation of benefits under any group life insurance plan, travel accident insurance plan, personal accident insurance plan or under Company policies such as severance pay and payment for accrued vacation, unless required by applicable laws.

XII. Change in Control

If there is a Change in Control as defined in this Section XII at any time during a Plan Year, (1) the Compensation Committee or the Management Committee promptly shall determine the Award which would have been payable to each Participant under the Plan for such Plan Year if he had continued to work for the Company for such entire year and all performance goals established under Section V had been met in full for such Plan Year by multiplying his target percentage by his annual salary as in effect on the date of such Change in Control and (2) each such Participant's nonforfeitable interest in his Award (as so determined by the Compensation Committee or the Management Committee) thereafter shall be determined by multiplying such Award by a fraction, the numerator of which shall be the number of full, calendar months he is an employee of the Company during such Plan Year and the denominator is 12 or the number of full calendar months the Plan is in effect during such Plan Year, whichever is less. The payment of a Participant's nonforfeitable interest in his Award under this Section XII shall be made in cash as soon as practicable after his employment by the Company terminates or as soon as practicable after the end of such Plan Year, whichever comes first.

A "Change in Control," for purposes of this Section XII, will mean a change in control of a nature that would be required to be reported in response to Item 6(e) of Schedule 14A of Regulation 14A promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange Act") as in effect on January 1, 2004, provided that such a change in control will be deemed to have occurred at such time as (i) any "person" (as that term is used in Sections 13(d) and 14(d)(2) of the Exchange Act as in effect on January 1, 2004) is or becomes the beneficial owner (as defined in Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act as in effect on January 1, 2004) directly or indirectly, of securities representing 20% or more of the combined voting power for election of directors of the then outstanding securities of the Company or any successor of the Company; (ii) during any period of two consecutive years or less, individuals who at the beginning of such period constituted the Board cease, for any reason, to constitute at least a majority of the Board, unless the election or nomination for election of each new director was approved by a vote of at least two-thirds of the directors then still in office who were directors at the beginning of the period; (iii) the shareowners of the Company approve any merger or consolidation as a result of which its stock will be changed, converted or exchanged (other than a merger with a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) or any liquidation of the Company or any sale or other disposition of 50% or more of the assets or earning power of the Company, and such merger, consolidation, liquidation or sale is completed; or (iv) the shareowners of the Company approve any merger or consolidation to which the Company is a party as a result of which the persons who were shareowners of the Company immediately prior to the effective date of the merger or consolidation will have beneficial ownership of less than 50% of the combined voting power for election of directors of the surviving corporation following the effective date of such merger or consolidation, and such merger, consolidation, liquidation or sale is completed; provided, however, that no Change in Control will be deemed to have occurred if, prior to such time as a Change in Control would otherwise be deemed to have occurred, the Board determines otherwise. Additionally, no Change in Control will be deemed to have occurred under clause (i) if, subsequent to such time as a Change of Control would otherwise be deemed to have occurred, a majority of the Directors in office prior to the acquisition of the securities by such person determines otherwise.

	UN				0									
	The	(ôci	160	la C	bompany			A	dmiss	sion Tic	ket			
													C1	12345678
	ENDORSE	MENT_	LINE		SACKPACK	04		00	0000000.	000000 ext 000000 ext 000000 ext	00	0000000	.000000 .000000 .000000	ext
	MR A SAMP DESIGNATI ADD 1 ADD 2 ADD 3 ADD 4 ADD 5 ADD 6		NY)					Av Ins me VA	vailable 24 tead of maili thods outline LIDATION D oxies submi	to Voting In thours a day ng your proxy, ad below to voti ETAILS ARE Li tited by the Init on April 27, 2	ay, 7 days you may cho e your proxy: OCATED BE ternet or tel	a week	the voting	BAR.
										• Go 1 • Or s	by Intern to www.envi can the QR ow the steps	sionreport code with y	our mobile	device.
					_				Canada on a the call.	1-800-652-VO	ephone. The	re is NO C	HARGE to	
	lack ink pen, mark ple. Please do not								Follow the in	structions prov	ided by the r	recorded m	essage.	
Annu	al Maating	Dro	w. C.	ard					(1024 5	270 00	12 34		
Annu	al Meeting	y F10	xy Ca	aru					(1234 5	678 90	12 34		
▼ IF YOU	HAVE NOT VOTE	D VIA TH	EINTERN	NET OR TO	ELEPHONE, FOLD ALONG THE	PERFORAT	ION, DET	TACH AND	RETURN TH	E BOTTOM PO	DRTION IN T	HE ENCLO	SED ENVE	ELOPE.
	als — You mu	st sign	the ca	rd on th	e reverse side for your v	vote to be	count	ed						
		_			e FOR all the nominees	listed.								+
1. Election	ard of Directo on of Directors: ferbert A. Allen	For		ds a vot t Abstain	e FOR all the nominees	listed.		Abstain	11 - Muhta	r Kent	For	Against	Abstain	+
1. Electio 01 - H	on of Directors:	_			e <u>FOR</u> all the nominees I	listed.			11 - Muhta 12 - Rober		For	Against	Abstain	+
1. Electic 01 - H 02 - F	on of Directors: Ierbert A. Allen	_			te <u>FOR</u> all the nominees in 06 - Richard M. Daley	listed.			12 - Rober			Against	Abstain	+
1. Electic 01 - H 02 - F 03 - N	on of Directors: ferbert A. Allen Ronald W. Allen	_			te <u>FOR</u> all the nominees in 06 - Richard M. Daley 07 - Barry Diller	listed.			12 - Rober	t A. Kotick Elena Lagoma		Against	Abstain	+
1. Electic 01 - H 02 - F 03 - N 04 - A	on of Directors: Herbert A. Allen Ronald W. Allen Marc Bolland	_			n 06 - Richard M. Daley 07 - Barry Diller 08 - Helene D. Gayle	listed.			12 - Rober 13 - Maria 14 - Sam	t A. Kotick Elena Lagoma		Against	Abstain	+
1. Electic 01 - F 02 - F 03 - N 04 - A 05 - F	on of Directors: Herbert A. Allen Ronald W. Allen Marc Bolland Ivna Bolin Howard G. Buffett	For	Againsi	t Abstain	e <u>FOR</u> all the nominees I 06 - Richard M. Daley 07 - Barry Diller 08 - Helene D. Gayle 09 - Evan G. Greenberg	For			12 - Rober 13 - Maria 14 - Sam	t A. Kotick Elena Lagoma Nunn		Against	Abstain	+
1. Electic 01 - F 02 - F 03 - M 04 - A 05 - F The Box 2. Advisory	on of Directors: Herbert A. Allen Ronald W. Allen Marc Bolland Ivna Bolin Howard G. Buffett	For	Againsi	t Abstain	 E FOR all the nominees I 06 - Richard M. Daley 07 - Barry Diller 08 - Helene D. Gayle 09 - Evan G. Greenberg 10 - Alexis M. Herman FOR Proposals 2, 3 and 4 3. Approval of the material term Performance Incentive Planc Cocca-Cola Company to perm 	For For A. A. A.	Against		12 - Rober 13 - Maria 14 - Sam 15 - David in 4. Ratif Ems Aud	1 A. Kotick Elena Lagoma Nunn I B. Weinberg Ication of the ap & Young LLP a tors to serve for	ssino			Abstain
1. Electic 01 - F 02 - F 03 - M 04 - A 05 - F The Bo: 2. Advisor executiv	en of Directors: Herbert A. Allen Ronald W. Allen Aarc Bolland Ina Botin Howard G. Buffett ard of Director y vote to approve re compensation	For	Against	Abstain	e <u>FOR</u> all the nominees I 06 - Richard M. Daley 07 - Barry Diller 08 - Helene D. Gayle 09 - Evan G. Greenberg 10 - Alexis M. Herman <u>FOR Proposals 2, 3 and 4</u> 3. Approval of the material term Performance Incentive Plan of	For For A. Softhe ands	Against	Abstain	12 - Rober 13 - Maria 14 - Sam 15 - David in 4. Ratif Ems Aud	1 A. Kotick Elena Lagoma Nunn I B. Weinberg ication of the ap X & Young LLP 4	ssino			Abstain
1. Electic 01 - F 02 - F 03 - M 04 - A 05 - F The Box 2. Advisor executiv The Box 5. Shareo regardi	en of Directors: Herbert A. Allen Ronald W. Allen Aarc Bolland Aarc Bolland Aara Botin Howard G. Buffett ard of Director ard of Director wher proposal ng Hely Land	For	Against	Abstain	e <u>FOR</u> all the nominees I 06 - Richard M. Daley 07 - Barry Diller 08 - Helene D. Gayle 09 - Evan G. Greenberg 10 - Alexis M. Herman <u>FOR Proposals 2, 3 and 4</u> 3. Approval of the material term Performance Incentive Paro Coca-Cod Company to pro- Coca-Cod Company to pro- tax deductibility of certain away	A. For and 7. Fo	Against	Abstain	12 - Rober 13 - Maria 14 - Sam 15 - David in 4. Ratél Ems Audi fitca in 7. Share alignn	1 A. Kotick Elena Lagoma Nunn I B. Weinberg Ication of the ap & Young LLP a tors to serve for	ssino	For For		
1. Electic 01 - F 02 - F 03 - N 04 - A 05 - F The Boo 2. Advisor executiv The Boo 5. Shareo	en of Directors: Herbert A. Allen Ronald W. Allen Aarc Bolland Aarc Bolland Aara Botin Howard G. Buffett ard of Director ard of Director wher proposal ng Hely Land	For	Against Against Against	Abstain	e FOR all the nominees I 06 - Richard M. Daley 07 - Barry Diller 08 - Helene D. Gayle 09 - Evan G. Greenberg 10 - Alexis M. Herman FOR Proposals 2, 3 and 4 3. Approval of the material term Performance Incentive Plan o Coca-Cola Company to perm tax deductibility of certain awa AGAINST Proposals 5, 6 6. Shareowner proposal regar	A. For and 7. Fo	Against	Abstain	12 - Rober 13 - Maria 14 - Sam 15 - David In 4. Ratif Ems Aud fisca fisca 7. Share align and p Voting Itel 9 Attendanc	1 A. Kotick Elena Lagoma Nunn I B. Weinberg ication of the ap t & Young LLP tors to serve for Lyear nowner proposa nent between c olitical and poli ms	pointment of psi Independe the 2016	For ues	Against	
1. Electic 01 - F 02 - F 03 - N 04 - A 05 - F The Box 2. Advisory executiv The Box 5. Shareo regardin Principil	en of Directors: Herbert A. Allen Ronald W. Allen Aarc Bolland Aarc Bolland Aara Botin Howard G. Buffett ard of Director ard of Director wher proposal ng Hely Land	For	Agains	Abstain	 E FOR all the nominees I 06 - Richard M. Daley 07 - Barry Diller 08 - Helene D. Gayle 09 - Evan G. Greenberg 10 - Alexis M. Herman FOR Proposals 2, 3 and 4 3. Approval of the material term Performance Incentive Plan or Coca-Cola Company to perm tax deductibility of certain awa AGAINST Proposals 5, 6 6. Shareowner proposal regard restricted stock	A. For Carlos and T. For Carlo	Against	Abstain	12 - Rober 13 - Maria 14 - Sam 15 - David in 4. Ratif Ems Aud fisca fisca in 7. Share align and p Voting Itel g Attendance te box to the r	n A. Kotick Elena Lagoma Nunn I B. Weinberg ication of the ap t & Young LLP a tors to serve for I year wowner proposa nent between c coticical and poli ms	ssino	For ato UP TO ACCCO	Against Against Against Against Against Against	Abstai

The OcaCola Company

NOTICE OF 2016 ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREOWNERS AND ADMISSION TICKET

When: Wednesday, April 27, 2016 8:45 a.m., local time

Where: World of Coca-Cola 121 Baker Street NW Atlanta, Georgia 30313

We are pleased to invite you to join our Board of Directors and senior leadership at The Coca-Cola Company's 2016 Annual Meeting of Shareowners.

Items of Business:

- 1. To elect the 15 Director nominees identified in the accompanying proxy statement to serve until the 2017 Annual Meeting of Shareowners. (Item 1)
- 2. To hold an advisory vote to approve executive compensation. (Item 2)
- 3. To approve the material terms of the Performance Incentive Plan of The Coca-Cola Company to permit the tax deductibility of certain awards. (Item 3)
- 4. To ratify the appointment of Ernst & Young LLP as Independent Auditors of the Company to serve for the 2016 fiscal year. (Item 4)
- 5. To vote on three shareowner proposals described in the proxy statement, (Items 5 7) if properly presented at the meeting.
- 6. To transact such other business as may properly come before the meeting and at any adjournments or postponements of the meeting.

Record Date:

The Board of Directors set February 29, 2016 as the record date for the meeting. This means that our shareowners as of the close of business on that date are entitled to receive this notice of the meeting and vote at the meeting and any adjournments or postponements of the meeting.

Important Changes to this Year's Annual Meeting:

If you plan to attend the 2016 Annual Meeting in person, see Question 21 on page 98 of the proxy statement for more information about the new location, format and how to attend the meeting. We are also excited to announce a new event – Coca-Cola Shareowner Day – to be held following the annual meeting. Please see "Important Registration Information for Coca-Cola Shareowner Day" on page 101 of the proxy statement.

Webcast of the Annual Meeting:

If you are unable to attend the meeting in person, you can listen to a live webcast of the meeting by visiting the annual meeting page of the Company's website, at www.coca-colacompany.com/investors/annual-meeting-of-shareowners. On the 2016 Annual Meeting page of our website, you can also vote through the Internet, access the proxy materials, submit questions in advance of the 2016 Annual Meeting and learn more about our Company.

March 10, 2016

By Order of the Board of Directors Gloria K. Bowden Associate General Counsel and Secretary

F YOU HAVE NOT VOTED VIA THE INTERNET OR TELEPHONE, FOLD ALONG THE PERFORATION, DETACH AND RETURN THE BOTTOM PORTION IN THE ENCLOSED ENVELOPE.

This Proxy is solicited on behalf of the Board of Directors of The Coca-Cola Company

+

The undersigned, having received the Notice of Annual Meeting of Shareowners and Proxy Statement, hereby (i) appoints James Quincey, Bernhard Goepelt and Kathy N. Waller, and each of them, proxies with full power of substitution, for and in the name of the undersigned, to vote all shares of Common Stock of The Coca-Cola Company owned of record by the undersigned, and (ii) directs Mercer Trust Company, Banco Popular de Puerto Rico and The Manufacturers Life Insurance Company, trustees under The Coca-Cola Company and its subsidiaries' 401(k) and savings plans, to vote in person or by proxy all shares of Common Stock of The Coca-Cola Company allocated to any accounts of the undersigned under such plans, and which the undersigned is entitled to vote, in each case, on all matters which may come before the 2016 Annual Meeting of Shareowners to be held at World of Coca-Cola, 121 Baker Street, NW, Atlanta, Georgia, 30313, on April 27, 2016, at 8:45 a.m., local time, and any adjournments or postponements thereof, unless otherwise specified herein. The proxies, in their discretion, are further authorized to vote (x) for the election of a person to the Board of Directors if any nominee named herein becomes unable to serve or for good cause will not serve, (y) on any matter which the Board of Directors did not know would be presented at the 2016 Annual Meeting of Shareowners and any adjournments or postponements thereof.

You are encouraged to specify your choices by marking the appropriate boxes (SEE REVERSE SIDE), but you need not mark any boxes if you wish to vote in accordance with the Board of Directors' recommendations. The proxies cannot vote your shares unless you sign and return this card.

Authorized Signatures — This section must be completed for your vote to be counted — Date and Sign Below		
Please sign exactly as name(s) appears hereon. Joint owners should e	ach sign. When signing as attorney, executor, administrator, con	rporate officer, trust, guardian, or custodian, please give full title.
Date (mm/dd/yyyy) Please print date below.	Signature 1 — Please keep signature within the box.	Signature 2 - Please keep signature within the box.
/ /		